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42nd ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
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Wednesday, 15th September 2021
15:00 Hrs. (IST)
Video Conference (VC) / Other Audio-Visual Means (OAVM) facility provided by the National 
Securities Depositories Limited (NSDL)
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NOTICE CONVENING 42ND ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
NOTICE is hereby given that the 42nd Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the members of Artson Engineering Limited 
(‘the Company’) will be held on Wednesday,15th September 2021 at 15.00 Hrs. (IST) through Video Conferencing 
(“VC”) / Other Audio-Visual Means (“OAVM”) to transact the following business:

Ordinary Business:
1.	 To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended 

31st March 2021, together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon.

2.	 To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Pralhad Anant Pawar (DIN: 06557071), who retires by rotation and being 
eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

Special Business:
3.	 To ratify the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors for the financial year 2021-22
	 To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the 
Companies Act 2013 (including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) 
and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time, the Company hereby 
ratifies the remuneration of ` 1,00,000/- (Rupees One lakh only), plus applicable taxes and actual out-of-
pocket expenses incurred in connection with the audit, payable to M/s. Sagar & Associates, Cost Accountants 
(Firm Registration No. 000118), who were appointed as the Cost Auditors to conduct the audit of cost records 
maintained by the Company for the financial year 2021-22.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company, the Chief Financial Officer and the 
Company Secretary be and are hereby severally authorised to do all such acts, deeds and things and take all 
such steps, as may be necessary to give effect to this Resolution.”

4.	 To enter into Related Party Transactions (RPTs) with Tata Projects Limited (TPL)
	 To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT in supersession of the earlier resolution passed at the 41st Annual General Meeting of the 
Company held on 15th September, 2020, and pursuant to the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) 
or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force, consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the 
Board of Directors (or any Committee/s thereof), to enter into contracts / arrangements / transactions with Tata 
Projects Limited (TPL), the Company’s Holding Company and a ‘Related Party’ as defined under Section 2 (76) 
of the Companies Act, 2013, in manner and for the maximum amounts per annum, as mentioned below:

S. No. Category Amount/s (per annum)
1 Sale, purchase or supply of any goods or materials, directly or through 

appointment of agents and/ or availing or rendering of any services, 
directly or through appointment of agents

` 300 Crore

2 Selling or otherwise disposing of or buying property of any kind and 
rent/ leasing of property of any kind.

` 20 Crore

Total ` 320 Crore

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the Directors of the Company, the Chief Financial Officer and the Company 
Secretary be and are hereby severally authorized to do or cause to be done all such acts, deeds and things, 
settle any queries, difficulties, doubts that may arise with regard to any transactions with the related party, 
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finalise the terms and conditions as may be considered necessary, expedient or desirable and execute such 
agreements, documents and writings and to make such filings as may be necessary or desirable, in order to give 
effect to this Resolution.”

5.	 To ratify the re-appointment  of Mr. Saket Mathur as the Manager of the Company and payment of remuneration. 
	 To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant the provisions of Sections 2(53), 196, 197, 198, 203 and other applicable provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’), the corresponding rules made thereunder as amended from time to time 
read with Schedule-V of the Act and the Articles of Association of the Company and subject to approvals, if any, 
approval of the members be and is hereby accorded for re-appointment of Mr. Saket Mathur, Chief Operating 
Officer as Manager of the Company with effect from 1st January 2021, for a period of One (1) year, at the 
existing terms and conditions and at such remuneration as detailed in the explanatory statement attached 
hereto, being the minimum remuneration to be paid even in the event of loss or inadequacy of profits. 

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Saket Mathur, shall continue to hold the office as Chief Operating Officer of 
the Company and continue to be designated as the Manager & Chief Operating Officer. 

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company, Company Secretary be and are hereby 
severally authorised to do all such acts, deeds and things and take all such steps, including but not limited to 
execution of all such documents, instruments and writings as may be necessary to give effect to this Resolution.”

NOTES:
1.	 In view of the global outbreak of COVID-19, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), Government of India, has 

vide its General Circular No. 02/2021 dated 13th January 2021, General Circular No. 14/ 2020 dated 8th April 
2020, General Circular No. 17/ 2020 dated 13th April 2020, in relation to “Clarification on passing of ordinary 
and special resolutions by Companies under the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder on 
account of the threat posed by Covid-19” and General Circular No. 20/2020 dated 5th May 2020, in relation 
to “Clarification on holding of Annual General Meeting (AGM) through video conferencing (VC) or other audio 
visual means (OAVM)” (collectively referred to as “MCA Circulars”) and Securities and Exchange Board of 
India vide Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2021/11 dated 15th January 2021 and vide Circular No. 
SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 dated 12th May 2020, in relation to “Additional relaxation in relation to 
compliance with certain provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 
- Covid-19 pandemic” (“SEBI Circular”) have permitted the holding of the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) 
through Video Conferencing (“VC”)/Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”), without the physical presence of the 
Members at a common venue. In compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the 
“Act”) (including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) read with Rule 20 
of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (the “Rules”), as amended from time to time, 
read with the MCA Circulars, SEBI Circular and pursuant to Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”) the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the 
Company is scheduled to be held on Wednesday, 15th September 2021, at 15.00 Hrs. (IST) through VC/OAVM 
and the voting for items to be transacted in the Notice to this AGM only through remote electronic voting process 
(“e-Voting”).

2.	 As per the provisions of Clause 3.A. II. of the General Circular No. 20/ 2020 dated 5th May 2020, read with 
General Circular No. 02/2021 dated 13th January 2021 the matters of Special Business as appearing at Item 
Nos. 3 to 5 of the accompanying notice, are considered to be unavoidable by the Board and hence, form part of 
this Notice.

3.	 The relative explanatory statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Act, in regard to the business as set out in 
item nos. 3 to 5 above and other details as required to be given is annexed.
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4.	 PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF THE ACT, A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE 
AGM IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE ON HIS/ HER BEHALF AND THE 
PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. SINCE THIS AGM IS BEING HELD PURSUANT 
TO THE MCA CIRCULARS THROUGH VC/ OAVM, THE REQUIREMENT OF PHYSICAL ATTENDANCE OF 
MEMBERS HAS BEEN DISPENSED WITH. ACCORDINGLY, IN TERMS OF THE MCA CIRCULARS AND 
THE SEBI CIRCULAR, THE FACILITY FOR APPOINTMENT OF PROXIES BY THE MEMBERS WILL NOT 
BE AVAILABLE FOR THIS AGM AND HENCE, THE PROXY FORM, ATTENDANCE SLIP AND ROUTE MAP 
OF AGM ARE NOT ANNEXED TO THIS NOTICE. HOWEVER, THE BODY CORPORATES ARE ENTITLED 
TO APPOINT AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES TO ATTEND THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM AND 
PARTICIPATE THEREAT AND CAST THEIR VOTES THROUGH E-VOTING.

5.	 Institutional Investors, who are Members of the Company, are encouraged to attend and vote at the AGM 
through VC/ OAVM facility. Corporate Members intending to appoint their authorized representatives to attend 
the AGM through VC or OAVM and to vote thereat through remote e-Voting are requested to send a certified 
copy of the Board Resolution to the Scrutinizer by e-mail at vnp.scrutinizer@gmail.com with a copy marked to 
evoting@nsdl.co.in and investors@artson.net

6.	 In case of joint holders attending the AGM, only such joint holder who is higher in the order of names will be 
entitled to vote.

7.	 The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose of 
reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Act.

8.	 The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 30 minutes before and 15 minutes after the scheduled 
time of the commencement of the AGM by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The Members will 
be able to view the proceedings on National Securities Depository Limited’s (“NSDL”) e-Voting website at www.
evoting.nsdl.com. The facility of participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available to at least 
1,000 Members on a first come first served basis as per the MCA Circulars. However, attendance of Members 
holding more than 2% of the shares of the Company, Institutional Investors as on Wednesday, 8th September 
2021 and Directors and Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee, the Stakeholders Relationship Committee and Auditors will not be restricted on first 
come first serve basis.

9.	 Considering the difficulties caused due to the Covid-19 pandemic, MCA and SEBI have allowed sending soft 
copies of the Annual Report. Therefore the Annual Report has been sent via email to all those members who 
have registered their email IDs with the Company or the Registrar and Transfer Agent or the Depositories or the 
Depository Participants as on Friday, 13th August 2021. 

10.	 The Notice convening the AGM and the Annual Report for FY 2020-21 has been uploaded on the website of the 
Company at www.artson.net and may also be accessed from the relevant section of the websites of the Stock 
Exchange i.e., BSE Limited (“BSE”) at www.bseindia.com. The AGM Notice is also available on the website of 
NSDL at www.evoting.nsdl.com

11.	 The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from Thursday, 9th 
September 2021 to Wednesday, 15th September 2021, both days inclusive.

12.	 As per Regulation 40 of the Listing Regulations, as amended, securities of listed companies can be transferred 
only in dematerialised form with effect from 1st April 2019, except in case of request received for transmission or 
transposition of securities. In view of this and to eliminate all risks associated with physical shares and for ease 
of portfolio management, Members holding shares in physical form are requested to consider converting their 
holdings to dematerialised form.

13.	 Members are requested to intimate changes, if any, pertaining to their name, postal address, e-mail address, 
telephone/mobile numbers, PAN, registering of nomination and power of attorney, Bank Mandate details such 
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as name of the bank and branch details, bank account number, MICR code, IFSC code, etc., to their DP in case 
the shares are held in electronic form and to the RTA in case the shares are held in physical form.

14.	 To prevent fraudulent transactions, Members are advised to exercise due diligence and notify the Company of 
any change in address or demise of any Member as soon as possible. Members are also advised to not leave 
their demat account(s) dormant for long. Periodic statement of holdings should be obtained from the concerned 
DP and holdings should be verified from time to time. 

15.	 Shareholders are requested to address all communications relating to the shares and related matters to the 
Company’s RTA at the address provided below:

	 M/s. Link Intime (India) Private Limited
	 (Unit: Artson Engineering Limited)
	 C 101, 247 Park, L B S Marg, Vikhroli West, Mumbai-400083, Maharashtra
	 Tel No: +91 22 4918 6000; Fax: +91 22 4918 6060
	 Email ID: rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in
16.	 As per the provisions of Section 72 of the Act, facility for making nomination is available for the Members in 

respect of the shares held by them. Members, who have not yet registered their nomination, are requested 
to register the same by submitting Form No. SH-13. The said form can be downloaded from the Company’s 
website www.artson.net (under ‘Investor Relations’ section). Members are requested to submit the said form to 
their DP in case the shares are held in electronic form and to the RTA in case shares are held in physical form.

17.	 The format of the Register of Members prescribed by the MCA under the Act, requires the Company/ RTA to 
record additional details of Members, including their PAN details, e-mail address, bank details for payment 
of dividend etc. A form for capturing additional details is available on the Company’s website www.artson.net 
(under ‘Investor Relations’ section). Members holding shares in physical form are requested to submit the filled 
in form to the Company or RTA in physical mode, after restoration of normalcy, as per instructions mentioned in 
the form. Members holding shares in electronic form are requested to submit the details to their respective DP 
only and not to the Company or RTA.

18.	 Members holding shares in physical form, in identical order of names, in more than one folio, are requested to send 
to the Company or RTA, the details of such folios together with the share certificates for consolidating their holdings 
in one folio. A consolidated share certificate will be issued to such Members after making requisite changes.

19.	 Members desiring inspection of statutory registers during the AGM may send their request in writing to the 
Company at investors@artson.net

20.	 Members who wish to inspect the relevant documents referred in the Notice can send an e-mail to investors@
artson.net up to the date of the AGM.

21.	 This AGM Notice is being sent by e-mail to the eligible Members who have already registered their e-mail 
address with the Depositories/the DP/the Company’s RTA/the Company or who will register their e-mail address 
with RTA, on or before 17:00 Hrs. (IST) on Friday, 13th August 2021.

22.	 To facilitate Members to receive this notice electronically and cast their vote electronically, the Company has 
made arrangement with NSDL for registration of e-mail addresses in terms of the MCA Circulars. Eligible 
Members who have not submitted their e-mail address were requested to provide their e-mail address to the 
RTA/ NSDL, on or before 17:00 Hrs. (IST) on Friday, 13th August 2021. In addition, the Company has intimated 
its shareholders about updating the email IDs through a newspaper publication, its website www.artson.net and 
through the website of BSE Limited www.bseindia.com 

23.	 After successful submission of the e-mail address, NSDL will e-mail a copy of the Annual Report for FY 
2020-21 along with the remote e-Voting user ID and password, within 48 hours of successful registration of 
the e-mail address by the Member. In case of any queries, Members may write to investors@artson.net or  
evoting@nsdl.co.in 
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24.	 For permanent registration of e-mail address, Members are requested to register their e-mail address, in respect 
of electronic holdings, with their concerned DP and in respect of physical holdings, with the RTA.

25.	 Those Members who have already registered their e-mail addresses are requested to keep their e-mail 
addresses validated with their DP/ RTA to enable servicing of notices/ documents/ Annual Reports and other 
communications electronically to their e-mail address in future.

26.	 Process and manner for Members opting for e-Voting is, as under:			 

	 I.	 In compliance with the provisions of Sections 108 and other applicable provisions of the Act, read with Rule 
20 of the Rules and Regulation 44 of the Listing Regulations, the Company is offering only e-Voting facility 
to all the Members of the Company and the business will be transacted only through the electronic voting 
system. The Company has engaged the services of NSDL for facilitating e-Voting to enable the Members 
to cast their votes electronically as well as for e-Voting during the AGM. Resolution(s) passed by Members 
through e-Voting is/are deemed to have been passed as if it/they have been passed at the AGM.

	 II.	 Members are provided with the facility for voting through Voting system during the VC/OAVM proceedings 
at the AGM and Members participating at the AGM, who have not already cast their vote by remote 
e-Voting, are eligible to exercise their right to vote at the AGM.

	 III.	 Members who have already cast their vote by remote e-Voting prior to the AGM will also be eligible to 
participate at the AGM but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again on such resolution(s) for which the 
Member has already cast the vote through remote e-Voting.

	 IV.	 Members of the Company holding shares either in physical form or electronic form as on the cut-
off date i.e., Wednesday, 8th September 2021, may cast their vote by remote e-Voting. The remote 
e-Voting period commences on Saturday, 11th September 2021 at 09:00 Hrs. (IST) and ends on 
Tuesday, 14th September 2021 at 17:00 Hrs. (IST). The remote e-Voting module shall be disabled by 
NSDL for voting thereafter. Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the Member, the Member shall 
not be allowed to change it subsequently.

	 V.	 The instructions for Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM are as under:

		  A.	 The Member will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM through the NSDL 
e-Voting system. Members may access by following the steps mentioned for Access to NSDL 
e-Voting system. After successful login, you can see link of “VC/OAVM link” placed under “Join 
General meeting” menu against Company name. You are requested to click on VC/OAVM link placed 
under Join General Meeting menu. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in Shareholder/Member 
login where the EVEN of Company (116857) will be displayed. Please note that the members who 
do not have the User ID and Password for e-Voting or have forgotten the User ID and Password may 
retrieve the same by following the remote e-Voting instructions mentioned in the notice to avoid last 
minute rush.

		  B.	 Members may join the AGM through laptops, smartphones, tablets and iPads for better experience. 
Further, Members will be required to use Internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance during 
the Meeting. Members will need the latest version of Chrome, Safari, Internet Explorer 11, MS Edge 
or Firefox. Please note that participants connecting from mobile devices or tablets or through laptops 
connecting via mobile hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to fluctuation in their respective 
network. It is, therefore, recommended to use stable Wi-Fi or LAN connection to mitigate any glitches.

		  C.	 Members are encouraged to submit their questions in advance with regard to the financial statements 
or any other matter to be placed at the AGM, from their registered e-mail address, mentioning their 
name, DP ID and Client ID number/folio number and mobile number, to reach the Company’s e-mail 
address at investors@artson.net before 17:00 Hrs. (IST) on Wednesday, 8th September 2021. 
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Queries that remain unanswered at the AGM will be appropriately responded by the Company at the 
earliest post the conclusion of the AGM.

		  D.	 Members who would like to express their views/ask questions as a Speaker at the AGM may pre-
register themselves by sending a request from their registered e-mail address mentioning their 
names, DP ID and Client ID/ folio number, PAN and mobile number to investors@artson.net between 
Saturday, 4th September 2021 (09:00 Hrs. IST) and Wednesday, 8th September 2021 (17:00 Hrs.
IST). Only those Members who have pre-registered themselves as speakers will be allowed to 
express their views/ask questions during the AGM. The Company reserves the right to restrict the 
number of speakers depending on the availability of time for the AGM.

		  E.	 Members who need assistance before or during the AGM, can contact NSDL on evoting@nsdl.co.in 
or contact Ms. Sarita Mote, Assistant Manager - NSDL at saritam@nsdl.co.in or call on 1800 1020 
990/ 1800 22 44 30.

	 The instructions for Members for e-Voting are as under: 
	 The remote e-voting period begins on Saturday, 11th September 2021 at 09:00 Hrs. (IST) and ends on 

Tuesday, 14th September 2021 at 17:00 Hrs. (IST) The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by 
NSDL for voting thereafter. The Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members / Beneficial 
Owners as on the record date (cut-off date) i.e., Wednesday, 8th September 2021, may cast their vote 
electronically. The voting right of shareholders shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-up equity 
share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date, being Wednesday, 8th September 2021.

	 The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned below:

	 Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system
	 A. 	 Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below:

Type of shareholders  Login Method
Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in demat 
mode with NSDL.

1.	 Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz. 
https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on 
a mobile. On the e-Services home page click on the “Beneficial 
Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ 
section, this will prompt you to enter your existing User ID and 
Password. After successful authentication, you will be able to see 
e-Voting services under Value added services. Click on “Access 
to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to see 
e-Voting page. Click on Company name or e-Voting service 
provider i.e., NSDL and you will be re-directed to e-Voting website 
of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or 
joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

2.	 If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register 
is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register 
Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at https://eservices.nsdl.com/
SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp 
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Type of shareholders  Login Method
3.	 Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the 

following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal 
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system 
is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 
‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will 
have to enter your User ID (i.e., your Sixteen digit demat account 
number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code 
as shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you 
will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see 
e-Voting page. Click on Company name or e-Voting service 
provider i.e., NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website 
of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or 
joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in demat 
mode with CDSL

1.	 Existing users who have opted for Easi / Easiest, they can login 
through their user id and password. Option will be made available 
to reach e-Voting page without any further authentication. The 
URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest are https://web.cdslindia.
com/myeasi/home/login or www.cdslindia.com and click on New 
System Myeasi.

2.	 After successful login of Easi / Easiest the user will be also able 
to see the E Voting Menu. The Menu will have links of e-Voting 
service provider i.e., NSDL. Click on NSDL to cast your vote.

3.	 If the user is not registered for Easi / Easiest, option to register 
is available at https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/
EasiRegistration

4.	 Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by 
providing demat Account Number and PAN No. from a link in 
www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the 
user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded 
in the demat Account. After successful authentication, user will 
be provided links for the respective ESP i.e., NSDL where the 
e-Voting is in progress.

Individual Shareholders 
(holding securities in demat 
mode) login through their 
depository participants

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account 
through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL 
for e-Voting facility. upon logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting 
option. Click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL 
Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you can see 
e-Voting feature. Click on Company name or e-Voting service provider 
i.e., NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for 
casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual 
meeting & voting during the meeting.

		  Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User 
ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website.
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		  Contact helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical 
issues related to login through Depository i.e., NSDL and CDSL.

Login type Helpdesk details
Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with NSDL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL 
helpdesk by sending a request at  evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at 
toll free no.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with CDSL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL 
helpdesk by sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.
com or contact at 022- 23058738 or 022-23058542-43

	 B. 	 Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than Individual      
shareholders holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical 
mode.

		  How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?
		  1.	 Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://www.

evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a personal computer or on a mobile.

		  2.	 Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available 
under ‘Shareholders’ section.

		  3.	 A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a Verification 
Code as shown on the screen.

			   Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e., IDEAS, you can log-in at https://eservices.
nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after using your log-in 
credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e., cast your vote electronically.

		  4.	 Your User ID details are given below:

Manner of holding shares i.e., Demat 
(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical

 Your User ID is:

a) 	 For Members who hold shares in demat 
account with NSDL.

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID

For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client 
ID is 12****** then your user ID is IN300***12******.

b) 	 For Members who hold shares in demat 
account with CDSL.

16 Digit Beneficiary ID

For example if your Beneficiary ID is 12************** 
then your user ID is 12**************

c) 	 For Members holding shares in Physical 
Form.

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered 
with the Company

For example if folio number is 001*** and EVEN is 
116857 then user ID is 116857001***

		  5.	 Your password details are given below: 

			   a)	 If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to login and 
cast your vote.
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			   b)	 If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial 
password’ which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need 
to enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will force you to change your password.

			   c)	 How to retrieve your ‘initial password’?

				    (i)	� If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the Company, your ‘initial 
password’ is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from 
NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment i.e., a .pdf file. Open 
the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, 
last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in physical form. 
The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’. 

				    (ii)	� If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for those 
shareholders whose email ids are not registered 

		  6.	 If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “Initial password” or have forgotten your password:

			   a)	 Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat account with 
NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

			   b)	 Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available 
on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

			   c)	 If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request 
at evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your 
name and your registered address.

			   d)	 Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the 
e-Voting system of NSDL.

		  7.	 After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check box.

		  8.	 Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.

		  9.	 After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open.

		  Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system.
		  1.	 After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the Companies “EVEN” in which you are 

holding shares and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status.

		  2.	 Select “EVEN” of Company (116857)  for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting 
period and casting your vote during the General Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you need to 
click on “VC/OAVM” link placed under “Join General Meeting”.

		  3.	 Now you are ready for e-Voting as the voting page opens.

		  4.	 Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of 
shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted.

		  5.	 Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed. 

		  6.	 You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the confirmation 
page.

		  7.	 Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.
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		  General Guidelines for shareholders
		  1	 Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned 

copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested specimen 
signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail 
to vnp.scrutinizer@gmail.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in and investors@artson.net

		  2.	 It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost 
care to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five 
unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through 
the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option available on www.
evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password. 

	 3.	 In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and 
e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or or 
send a request to Ms. Sarita Mote, Assistant Manager - NSDL at  saritam@nsdl.co.in or call on 1800 1020 
990/ 1800 22 44 30.

	 Process for those shareholders whose email IDs are not registered with the depositories for procuring 
user ID and password and registration of e-mail IDs for e-voting for the resolutions set out in this notice:

	 1.	 In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of 
the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), Aadhar (self-attested 
scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to investors@artson.net 

	 2.	 In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit 
beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self-attested 
scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to investors@artson.
net

	 3.	 Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for procuring user id and 
password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents.

	 4.	 In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, 
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account 
maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are required to update their 
mobile number and email ID correctly in their demat account in order to access e-Voting facility.

	 THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE AGM ARE AS UNDER:
	 1.	 The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for remote 

e-voting.

	 2.	 Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have 
not casted their vote on the resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing 
so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system in the AGM.

	 3.	 Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM. However, they will 
not be eligible to vote at the AGM.

	 4.	 The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility for e-Voting 
on the day of the AGM shall be the same person mentioned for Remote e-voting.

27.	 The voting rights of Members shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid-up equity share capital of the 
Company as on the cut-off date i.e., Wednesday, 8th September 2021.
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28.	 Any person who acquires shares of the Company and becomes a Member of the Company after dispatch of the 
Notice and holding shares as of the cut-off date i.e., Wednesday, 8th September 2021, may obtain the login ID 
and password by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or the Company/RTA.

29.	 A person whose name is recorded in the Register of Members or in the Register of Beneficial Owners maintained 
by the Depositories as on the cut-off date i.e., Wednesday, 8th September 2021 only shall be entitled to avail the 
facility of remote e-Voting, as well as voting at the meeting.

30.	 The Board of Directors has appointed Mr. Vishram Panchpor (ICSI Membership No. A20057; CP No. 13027). 
Company Secretary in whole-time practice as Scrutinizer to scrutinize the voting at the AGM and remote e-Voting 
process, in a fair and transparent manner.

31.	 The Chairman shall, at the AGM, allow voting, by use of remote e-Voting system for all those Members who 
are present during the AGM through VC/OAVM but have not cast their votes by availing the remote e-Voting 
facility. The remote e-Voting module during the AGM shall be disabled by NSDL for voting 15 minutes after the 
conclusion of the Meeting.

32.	 The Scrutinizer shall, after the conclusion of voting at the AGM, first count the votes cast during the AGM and, 
thereafter, unblock the votes cast through remote e-Voting and shall make, not later than 48 hours from the 
conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to 
the Chairman or a person authorised by him in writing, who shall countersign the same and declare the result of 
the voting forthwith.

33.	 The Results declared, along with the Scrutinizer’s Report, shall be placed on the Company’s website www.
artson.net and on the website of NSDL www.evoting.nsdl.com, immediately after the declaration of the result by 
the Chairman or a person authorised by him in writing. The results shall also be immediately forwarded to the 
Stock Exchanges where the Company’s Equity Shares are listed viz. BSE and be made available on the website 
viz. www.bseindia.com 

Registered Office
2nd Floor, One Boulevard, Lake Boulevard Road,
Hiranandani Business Park, Powai, Mumbai - 400076, Maharashtra
Email: investors@artson.net; Website: www.artson.net

By Order of the Board
For Artson Engineering Limited

Date: 23rd July 2021
Place: Pune

Vinayak K. Deshpande
Chairman

DIN: 00036827
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT
As required by Section 102 of the Act, the following explanatory statement sets out all material facts relating to the 
special businesses as mentioned in the item nos. 3 to 5 of the accompanying notice dated 23rd July 2021.

Item No. 3: To ratify the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors for the financial year 2021-22
The Board of Directors of the Company, upon the recommendation of the Audit Committee, approved the appointment 
of M/s. Sagar & Associates, Cost Accountants, Hyderabad, to conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company 
for the financial year 2021-22 at a remuneration of ` 1,00,000/- (Rupees One lakh only) plus applicable taxes and 
reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses at actuals, incurred in connection with the audit.

In terms of the provisions of Section 148 of the Act read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the 
remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors is to be ratified by the members of the Company. Accordingly, consent 
of the members is being sought for passing the resolution as set out in item no. 3 of the notice for ratification of the 
remuneration payable to the cost Auditor for the financial year 2021-22. 

Accordingly, the Board of Directors recommends the resolution at item no. 3 of the notice for approval of the members 
by way of Ordinary Resolution. None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives are in any way 
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise in the aforesaid resolution.

Item No. 4: To enter into Related Party Transactions (RPTs) with Tata Projects Limited (TPL)
The Company is engaged in the business of EPC contracting in the field of Oil, Gas and Hydrocarbon Processing 
Industry, specialized in Tankages, Piping, and other Mechanical Packages. The Company, in the ordinary course 
of business, enters into transactions with Tata Projects Limited (TPL) for sale, purchase or supply of any goods or 
materials; sell, dispose, buy, rent, lease property of any kind; and availing or rendering of services.  

TPL, the Company’s Holding Company, is a related party within the meaning of Section 2 (76) of the Act. The 
aforementioned transactions with TPL are likely to exceed the threshold limits provided in Rule 15 (3) of the Companies 
(Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 [‘Rules’] under the respective category of related party transactions.

Pursuant to the provisions of the said Rules, the Company can enter into transactions with related parties, exceeding 
the threshold limits, only with the consent of shareholders by way of an Ordinary Resolution.

In terms of Explanation (3) appended to Rule 15 (3) of the said Rules, the under-noted information is of relevance:

Particulars Information
Name of the Related Party Tata Projects Limited (TPL)
Name of Director(s) or Key Managerial 
Personnel who is related if any

Mr. Vinayak K. Deshpande, Mr. Pralhad Anant Pawar and Mr. K. 
Satyanarayana Directors are related to TPL and are its nominees on the 
Company’s Board of Directors. However, for this transaction, they are not 
related parties.

Nature of Relationship TPL is the Holding Company and the Promoter of the Company.
Nature, Material terms the Contracts / 
arrangements / transactions

Sale, purchase or supply of any goods or materials; sell, dispose, buy, 
rent, lease property of any kind; and availing or rendering of services.
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Particulars Information

Monetary Value (maximum amount 
each Financial Year)

Sale, purchase or supply of any goods or materials, 
directly or through appointment of agents and/ or 
availing or rendering of any services, directly or 
through appointment of agents.

` 300 Crore

Selling or otherwise disposing of or buying property 
of any kind and rent/ leasing of property of any kind.

` 20 Crore

Total ` 320 Crore
Whether the transactions have been 
approved by the Board of Directors

Yes, in the Board Meeting held on 21st April 2021.

Any other information relevant or 
important for the members to decide 
on the proposed transactions NIL

The annual value of the transactions proposed is estimated based on the Company’s current transactions and future 
business projections.

The Board believes that the transactions of sale, purchase or supply of any goods or materials; sell, dispose, buy, 
rent, lease property of any kind; and availing or rendering of services with TPL are in the best interest of the Company.

The Board recommends passing of the Ordinary Resolution at item no. 4 for approval.

Mr. Vinayak K. Deshpande, Mr. Pralhad Anant Pawar and Mr. K. Satyanarayana being nominees of Holding Company, 
may be considered as related to Promoters and therefore may be deemed to be considered as interested or concerned. 
However, they do not hold any share/s in the Company.

No other Director / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their respective relatives other than the Directors 
mentioned herein above are concerned with or interested in the said Resolution.

Item No. 5: To ratify the re-appointment of Mr. Saket Mathur as the Manager of the Company and payment of 
remuneration.
As per the provisions of Section 203 of the Act, read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 every Listed Company and every other public Company having a paid-up share 
capital of Rupees Ten Crore shall have whole-time Key Managerial Personnel (KMP).

The incumbent Manager & Chief Operating Officer (COO), Mr. Saket Mathur, was re-appointed by the Board 
of Directors at their meeting held on 27th October 2020, based on the recommendation of the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee, for a period of 1 year w.e.f from 1st January 2021 to 31st December 2021 at the terms 
and remuneration as detailed below. The same was subject to approval by the members at the ensuing AGM. It is 
submitted that based on the projections, the overall managerial remuneration may exceed the limits specified in Sec. 
197 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

Statement pursuant to Section 198 read with Part II of Schedule V of the Act is as follows:

I General Information
1. Nature of industry Manufacturing of structural metal products, fabrication of 

equipment, industrial & infrastructure construction projects, 
mainly in mechanical works.

2. Date of commencement of commercial 
production

Company was incorporated on 18th September 1978 and 
started its commercial operations in the same financial 
year.



Notice ● Board’s Report ● Financial Statements

Annual Report 2020-21 15

3. Financial Performance The Company is in growth phase and the overall sales of  
` 132 Crores in FY 2017-18 has grown to ` 160 Crores in 
FY 2020-21. Company continues to be networth positive 
since FY ended 31st March 2017. For detailed financials 
please refer the 42nd Annual Report of the Company.

4. Foreign Investment and collaborations Nil

II Information about the appointee
1. Background details Education Qualification – B.E. (Mechanical) from MSRIT, 

Bangalore University, 1985

Currently holding the position of Manager and COO since 
January 2018.

2. Past / Existing remuneration ` 86.83 lakhs
3. Recognition and Awards • Award of Excellence in Engineering from Chhattisgarh 

State, 2007. 

• Member of Indian Institute of Plant Engineers.
4. Job profile and his sustainability Appointee is respected EPC industry professional, skilled 

in attaining peak construction requirements, stabilizing 
operations, addressing volatile marketing needs and deliver 
project/s. A technically adept Mechanical Engineer with 
over 30 years of experience. He has expertise in project 
execution, strategic planning, leadership development, 
customer engagement and risk mitigation.

5. Remuneration proposed Approx. ` 94.00 lakhs
6. Comparative remuneration profile with respect 

to industry, size of the Company, profile of the 
position and person

Proposed remuneration is competitive and based on the 
industry standards. The brief profile of the appointee is 
provided below under the heading ‘additional information’.

7. Pecuniary relationship with the Company, 
relationship with the managerial personnel.

Not related to any of the Directors and other Key Managerial 
Personnel of the Company.

III Other Information
1. Reason for loss or inadequate profits The Company could not post positive PAT till 2015-16 

due to the challenging economic conditions and financial 
pre-qualification issue in PSU sector. Since FY 2016-17 
Company has improved the financial position substantially 
and is networth positive having technical as well as financial 
ability to service the PSU sector of interest. 
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2. Steps taken or proposed to be taken for 
Improvement

The Company improved the Order Book position 
substantially over past 3 years. The y-o-y revenue is also 
increasing gradually. The Company has turned net-worth 
positive since FY 2016-17 and is now in position to address 
the PSU & associated market. Further, the Company 
is servicing the orders from its Holding Company (Tata 
Projects Limited) who have grown rapidly in past couple 
of years thereby improving opportunity for growth for the 
Company. The Management is now looking forward for 
enhancing the EPC and fabrication work portfolios. We 
continue to focus on improving operational excellence and 
productivity and enhancing compliance framework.

3. Expected increase in productivity and profits 
in measurable terms

The Company plans to wipe out the accumulated losses 
within next 2 to 3 years.

IV Disclosures
1. All elements of salary/ remuneration

Provided below2. Details of fixed components, performance 
linked incentives

3. Service contracts Nil
4. Stock Option details Nil

The elements of salary / remuneration including details of fixed component, performance linked incentives proposed 
to be paid

S. No. Particulars Amount (in `)
1 Basic Salary 18,99,035/-
2 House Rent Allowance (HRA) 7,59,614/-
3 Leave Fare Concession 1,58,253/-
4 Other Allowances 27,99,056/-
5 Retirals 6,26,682/-
6 Other Benefits (PLR) 24,40,600/-
7 Annual CTC 86,83,240/-

Accordingly, the Board of Directors recommends the Resolution at item no. 5 of the Notice for approval of the members 
by way of Special Resolution. None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, or their relatives, except Mr. Saket 
Mathur, are in any way concerned or interested, financially or otherwise in the aforesaid resolution.

Brief Profile of Mr. Saket Mathur, Manager & COO
Mr. Saket Mathur is a respected EPC industry professional, skilled in attaining peak construction requirements, 
stabilizing operations, addressing volatile marketing needs and deliver project. A technically adept Mechanical 
Engineer with over Thirty (30) years of working experience. Expertise in Project execution, strategic planning, 
leadership development, customer engagement and risk mitigation.
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Mr. Saket Mathur’s professional summary includes:

•	 Exposure of managing a Business Unit involving functions like Business Development, Engineering and 
Operations Management.

•	 Rich Exposure in Project and Construction Management and EPC contracts.

•	 Ability to provide leadership and assume overall responsibility for deliverables of Works within environment 
safety, quality, time and cost parameters. Excellent knowledge of Early Equipment Management.

•	 Experienced in construction and commissioning of State of art 2.8 MTPA and 0.8 MTPA Blast Furnace complex, 
2 x 40 Sqm. Sinter plant, Non-recovery stamp charged coke ovens and DRI Plants of 350 and 500 tons per day 
capacity, Steel Melting Shop consisting of EAF, VD & LRF, Billet caster with EMS.

•	 Hands on experience in maintenance of Blast Furnace Complex, Raw material handling plants, SMS, Sintering 
Plant, Coke Ovens and DRI Plant.

•	 Rich experience in identifying bottleneck and weaknesses in equipment and reengineering to enhancing the 
plant’s productivity.

•	 Strong knowledge of Industrial Hydraulics, Pneumatics.

•	 Planning and managing capital repairs of plant; executed 8 capital repairs of Blast Furnace complex within 
stipulated time frame.

•	 Experienced in financial Management of works, cost control measures and vendor management.

•	 Experience in implementation and sustenance of ISO systems & TPM and safety standards at the workplace.

Additional Information:
Information pursuant to 36(3) of the Listing Regulations and Para 1.2.5 of Secretarial Standard 2, pertaining to 
Director/ Manager seeking appointment/ re-appointment:

Name Mr. Pralhad Anant Pawar Mr. Saket Mathur
Designation Non-Executive Director Manager & COO
Director Identification

Number (DIN)

06557071 ---

Date of Birth 19th February 1959
(Age: 62 Years)

1st December 1961 
(Age: 59 years)

Qualifications B. Tech (Chemical); and Masters in 
Financial Management

B.E. (Mechanical) from MSRIT, 
Bangalore University

Specialised Expertise Strategy Planning Business Development 
and Project Management

Project Management, Maintenance 
Management and Business 
Development.

Experience Over 3 decades of overall experience. Over 3 decades of overall experience.
Terms and Conditions of 
Appointment

Nominee of Tata Projects Limited (Holding 
Company); Non-Executive Director

Being re-appointed as Manager for 
a period of One (1) year and to be 
designated as Manager & COO.

Remuneration Nil ` 86.83 lakhs
Date of First Appointment 
on the Board

19th April 2013 Not Applicable
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Name Mr. Pralhad Anant Pawar Mr. Saket Mathur
Directorship in other Indian 
Companies

Nil Nil

Positions in Committees of 
other Indian Companies

Nil Nil

Number of shares held in 
the Company

Nil Nil

Relationship, if any, with 
other Directors, Manager 
and other KMP

Not related to any of the Directors and 
KMPs of the Company.

Not related to any of the Directors and 
KMPs of the Company.

Position/s in Committees 
constituted by the Board of 
the Company

Member of AC, SRC and CSRC. Nil

Number of Board Meetings 
attended

Attended all (6) Board Meetings held 
during the FY 2020-21.

Attended all (6) Board Meetings held 
during the FY 2020-21.

* AC: Audit Committee; SRC: Stakeholders Relationship Committee; CSRC: Corporate Social Responsibility Committee.

Registered Office
2nd Floor, One Boulevard, Lake Boulevard Road,
Hiranandani Business Park, Powai, Mumbai - 400076, Maharashtra
Email: investors@artson.net; Website: www.artson.net

By Order of the Board
For Artson Engineering Limited

Date: 23rd July 2021
Place: Pune

Vinayak K. Deshpande
Chairman

DIN: 00036827
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BOARD’S REPORT
To the Members,

The Board presents the 42nd Annual Report of Artson Engineering Limited (the Company or AEL) along with the 
Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2021.

1.	 FINANCIAL RESULTS
Amount (` in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS 2020-21 2019-20
Gross Turnover (including Other Income) 15232.17 16958.87
Profit before Interest and Depreciation (EBIDTA) 613.15 1805.96
Finance Charges 1018.17 1002.07
Depreciation and Amortization 106.16 181.23
Total Expenditure 15743.35 16336.21
Net Profit/(Loss) Before Tax (PBT) (511.18) 622.66
Less: Tax expense (56.70) (696.37)
Net Profit After Tax (PAT) (567.88) (73.71)
Other Comprehensive Income 7.07 5.99
Total Comprehensive income (560.81) (67.72)
Balance of Profit brought forward 146.71 190.25
Balance available for appropriation (414.10) 146.71
Surplus carried to Balance Sheet (414.10) 146.71

2.	 COMPANY’S PERFORMANCE
	 The Company’s revenue from operations for the year under review aggregated to ` 15,028.21 lakhs (Previous 

Year: ` 16,300.21 lakhs), a 8% decline in growth over previous year. The reduction in total revenue was largely 
due to Covid-19 related locked down for 47 days, which resulted in stoppage of work. This also had cascading 
effect to the EBIDTA year on year. In FY 2021, the decline in cost of depreciation by 41.4% to ` 106.16 lakhs 
(PY: ` 181.23 lakhs) is due to change of depreciation method from Written Down Value to Straight-Line Method.

	 The operations of the Company for the year under review resulted in profit/ (loss) before tax of ` (511) lakhs 
(Previous Year: ` 623 lakhs) and profit/ (loss) after tax of ` (568) lakhs (Previous Year: ` (74) lakhs).

	 The Company’s operations were affected to some extent due to the lockdown imposed by Government of India 
in view of COVID-19 pandemic. Government permitted certain activities in the month of April 2020 subject to 
certain restrictions. Accordingly, the Company re-started its operations in phased manner from June 2020 and 
thereafter all the plants and sites are ramping up to the normal course.

	 The Company has completed construction of tanks at BPCL, Haveli, Pune project and achieved over 85 % 
completion of tankage project for IOCL at Dhumad, Gujarat. The Company also completed automated warehouse 
project for ITC at Kapurthala, Punjab, Crude oil storage tanks project at IOCL Paradip, Odisha and Aluminium 
Dross project for Runaya resource at Jharsuguda, Odisha.

	 The Nagpur unit of the Company has executed orders for supply of over 6100 MT of steel structures to various 
clients, including ThyssenKrupp, BHEL, John Zink and Tata Projects Limited (TPL), ISRO.
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	 The Nashik unit of Company delivered over 1308 tonnes of process equipment and achieved highest turnover 
of ` 3597 lakhs. The unit also booked orders worth ` 6378 lakhs during the financial year. The unit has also 
completed supply and erection and handed over all 6 sets of Air storage vessels to TPL for their prestigious 
ISRO project.

	 This year, the unit has completed delivery of Air Vessels under PESO approval, Cladded Water Tanks under 
ASME ‘U’ stamp, Preheater of SS 304, Super Heater of T-22 material, Monol-400 cladded vessels and heat 
exchangers to prestigious client like TPL-OGH, Hindalco Industries Limited, Grasim Industries Limited, Finolex 
Limited, Schenk Process Etc. The unit has also marked its entry into metallurgically complex Hastelloy cladded 
plate segment by delivering 1520 MT (9870 Sq. Mtr) of cladded plates to TPL.

	 During the year under review, the Company received new orders with estimated value of approximately INR 
25450 lakhs. The closing order backlog of the Company for the year ended 31st March 2021 stood at approx. 
INR 26518 lakhs.

	 Some of the major orders received during the year are as follows:

	 ●	 From IOCL, Paradip refinery for Construction of 3 Nos. Large Diameter Storage Tanks on LSTK Basis.

	 ●	 From TPL:

		  □	 For Supply, Fabrication and Erection of Pipe Rack Structures for their NFC Kota Project.

		  □	 For Tankages and Mechanical Works at ONGC Kakinada.

		  □	 For Manufacture and Supply of Hastelloy Cladded Plates for their FGD Projects.

		  □	 For Manufacturing of Shop Fabricated Tanks, Pressure Vessels for their NFC Kota Project.

		  □	 For Fabrication of Technological Structures for their ONGC Kakinada and ISRO Projects

	 BUSINESS OUTLOOK
	 Before the pandemic hit in 2020, the Indian manufacturing industry was working to regain the momentum it 

had reached after the 2008 recession. However, after the first wave of pandemic-driven shutdowns, segment 
recoveries for various manufacturers have been uneven. Looking ahead to 2021, the virus resurgence adds 
uncertainty to India's growth forecast for 2021; however, it is likely that the economic damage will remain 
restricted to the April-June quarter. It is expected India's real GDP to grow at 9.6 per cent in 2021 and 7 per cent 
in 2022.

	 Agility will be key to your Company’s resilience. The Company will focus on rebuilding lost revenue streams 
where we have felt the greatest impact from the pandemic and recalibrate supply networks to serve increasing 
client demands. The Company will be continuing to invest in initiatives to upgrade the manufacturing process 
and supply network.

	 The near-term future is now for the Oil and Gas sector. The stance and commitment of Government on 
clean energy has turned into a “fast-forward” scenario for the industry, where what might have taken years to 
happen has instead unfolded in a matter of months. Several new prospects in fabrication of storage tanks and 
structures, manufacturing process vessels, heat exchangers, columns and industrial structures are visible in 
near future. Your Company, being one of the key players in these sectors, expect to be largely benefitted from 
these opportunities.

	 In India Pre-Engineered Steel Buildings (PEB) market is experiencing fair growth fuelled by infrastructure 
development and the increasing popularity of PEB systems in the industrial sector. Sectors such as automotive, 
power, logistics, Pharma, FMCG, and capital goods provide good growth opportunity for PEB in India. Stemming 
from the PEB industry, what is taking shape is the new Heavy Engineering and larger Infrastructure projects 
which is the next in line for the infrastructural development of the country. Projects like Airports, International 
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terminals, power plants, ports, refinery, and metallurgical plants etc require heavy steel structures and a different 
approach in comparison to PEB.

	 The Company is consolidating its focus on EPC and tankage construction. Company shall focus on high 
quality fabrication / project construction work only from reputed customers. This shall ensure timely execution, 
continuous cashflows and improvement in our Balance Sheet.

	 The Company continues to maintain excellent record on Employee’s Health and Safety at all factory locations 
and project sites and has received token of appreciation from its clients.

	 The Company has taken several measures to ensure the well-being of its employees including leveraging 
the power of technology to enable them to work from home. For those employees who are working in sales 
offices and manufacturing locations their safety was ensured by stringent use of protective gear, abiding by 
social distancing norms, and taking all safety precautions. Standing by its core commitment the Company is 
navigating through these unprecedented times by building stronger and deeper relationships with consumers 
and its partners.

	 The Company’s Management, with the support of TPL, is making sincere efforts to further improve the operations 
of the Company and record better performance over the impending years.

3.	 AWARDS, RECOGNITION AND ACHIEVEMENTS
	 •	 Received a certificate of appreciation from GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited (GHIAL) for 

continuous improvement and excellent performance in Occupational Health, Safety & Environment at their 
Additional Fuel Tanks and Associated Project Works at Hyderabad.

	 •	 Enlisted with Engineers India Limited (EIL) for a period of Three years for manufacturing of Pressure 
Vessels of shell thickness upto 60mm.

4.	 CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS
	 The basic nature of the business of the Company i.e., construction of storage tanks and associated works, 

manufacturing of process plant equipment, fabrication of structures, etc. remains the same and there was no 
change in the nature of business of the Company during the year under review.

5.	 CREDIT RATING
	 M/s. India Rating and Research Private Limited (Ind-Ra) has assigned a long-term issuer rating of ‘IND AA-’. 

The Outlook is stable. The instrument-wise rating is as follows:

	 •	 “IND AA-/Stable” for the Term Loan.

	 •	 “IND AA-/Stable/IND A1+” for the fund based working capital facilities.

	 •	 “IND AA-/Stable/IND A1+” for the non-fund based working capital facilities.

6.	 DIVIDEND
	 Considering the financial position of the Company, the Board of Directors have not recommended dividend 

for the year 2020-21. Further, as the members are aware, pursuant to the revised terms of the loan (interest 
free for 20 years), conversion of ` 10.00 Crores payables into loans (interest free for ten years) given by the 
Holding Company, Tata Projects Limited (TPL), your Company is not permitted to declare dividend to the equity 
Shareholders (including the Holding Company/ promoter) until the re-payment of loan to TPL.

7.	 TRANSFER OF AMOUNT TO RESERVES
	 The Company does not propose to transfer any amount to General Reserve for the year ended 31st March 

2021.
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8.	 BORROWINGS
	 The total borrowings of the Company including long-term loans and working capital facilities stood at ` 5295 

lakhs as on 31st March 2021.

9.	 ANNUAL RETURN
	 The Annual Return of the Company for the FY 2020-21 in the prescribed form MGT-7 as required under section 

92(3) of the Act is available on the website of the Company i.e., www.artson.net

10.	� MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 
COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR TO WHICH THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT

	 No material changes and/ or commitments affecting the financial position of the Company, occurred between 
the end of the financial year of the Company to which the financial statements relate i.e., 31st March 2021 and 
the date of the report i.e., 23rd July 2021.

11.	 DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
	 a)	 Cessation of Directors
		  During the year under review, Mr. Arvind Chokhany, resigned from the position of Non-Executive Director 

of the Company, consequent to his resignation as Chief Financial Officer of the Holding Company.

	 b)	 Directors retiring by rotation
		  As per the provisions of the Act and the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Pralhad Anant Pawar, 

Director, retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. The proposal for re-
appointment of Mr. Pralhad Anant Pawar is being placed at the AGM along with the necessary details.

	 c)	 Changes in Directorship
		  Mr. Sunil Sheshagirirao Potdar, Mr. K. Satyanarayana and Mr. Arvind Chokhany were appointed as 

Additional Directors of the Company at the Board meeting held on 30th April 2020. Their appointment(s) 
were confirmed / regularised at the 41st AGM of the Company held on 15th September 2020.

	 d)	 Changes in the Key Managerial Personnel
		  The Board of Directors at their meeting held on 27th October 2020, had re-appointed Mr. Saket Mathur 

as the Manager and COO of the Company for a period of One-year w.e.f. 1st January 2021. In terms of 
the provisions of the Companies Act 2013 and the rules made thereunder, the ratification of the aforesaid 
re-appointment is placed at the ensuing AGM for approval of the members.

	 e)	 Declaration by Independent Directors
		  As per the requirement of Section 149 (7) of the Act, Mr. Nalin M. Shah, Ms. Leja Hattiangadi and Mr. 

Sunil Sheshagirirao Potdar, the Independent Directors of the Company, have submitted their respective 
declarations that they fulfil the criteria of independence under Section 149 of the Act, read with Regulation 
25 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

12.	 NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS
	 During the financial year, the Board met Six (6) times i.e., on 30th April 2020, 11th May 2020, 31st July 2020, 

27th October 2020, 22nd January 2021; and 19th March 2021. The gap between any two consecutive Board 
Meetings did not exceed One Hundred and Twenty days.
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13.	 ANNUAL EVALUATION
	 Pursuant to the provisions of the Act and Regulation 25 of the Listing Regulations, the Board has carried out an 

annual evaluation of its own performance, performance of the Directors individually as well as the evaluation of 
the working of the Committees.

	 The following process was adopted for Board evaluation:

	 i.	 Feedback was sought from each Director about their views on the performance of the Board covering 
various criteria such as degree of fulfilment of key responsibilities, Board structure and composition, 
establishment, and delineation of responsibilities to various Committees, effectiveness of Board processes, 
information and functioning, Board culture and dynamics, quality of relationship between the Board and 
the Management and efficacy of communication with external stakeholders.

	 ii.	 The feedback received from all the Directors was discussed at the Meeting of Independent Directors and 
the NRC. The performance of the Non-Independent Non-Executive Directors and Board Chairman was 
also reviewed by them.

	 iii.	 The collective feedback on the performance of the Board (as a whole) was discussed by the Chairperson 
of the NRC with the Chairman of the Board. It was also presented to the Board.

	 iv.	 Assessment of performance of every statutorily mandated Committee of the Board was conducted and 
these assessments were presented to the Board for consideration. Areas on which the Committees of 
the Board were assessed included degree of fulfilment of key responsibilities, adequacy of Committee 
composition and effectiveness of Meetings.

	 v.	 During the year under review, the recommendations made in the previous year were satisfactorily 
implemented.

	 Based on the annual evaluation process and the overall engagement of the Independent Directors in the affairs 
of the Company during the year, the Board of Directors are of the opinion that the Independent Directors of the 
Company possess, practice, and preach highest standards of integrity and have the required experience and 
expertise in their respective areas which enable them to provide guidance to the Management and adds value 
in the Company’s decision process.

14.	 DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
	 Based on the framework of internal financial controls and compliance systems established and maintained by 

the Company, the work performed by the Internal, Statutory and Secretarial Auditors and the reviews performed 
by the Management and the relevant Board Committees, including the Audit Committee, the Board believes that 
the Company’s internal financial controls were adequate and effective during the year ended 31st March 2021. 
Accordingly, pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Act, based on the above and the representations received from 
the Operating Management, the Board of Directors, to the best of their knowledge and ability confirm that:

	 •	 In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed and 
that there was no material departure therefrom.

	 •	 They have, in the selection of the accounting policies, consulted the Statutory Auditors and have applied 
their recommendations consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent 
to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March 2021 and of the profit/ 
loss of the Company for the year ended on that date.

	 •	 They have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Act, for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing 
and detecting frauds and other irregularities.
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	 •	 They have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis.

	 •	 They have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such internal 
financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively during the year ended 31st March 2021; and 
proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that 
such systems were adequate and operating effectively during the year ended 31st March 2021.

15.	 AUDIT COMMITTEE
	 The Audit Committee (AC) of the Company comprises of 3 Independent Director(s) and 1 Non-Executive 

Director.

S. No. Name Role Designation
1 Mr. Nalin M. Shah Chairman Independent Director
2 Ms. Leja Hattiangadi Member Independent Director
3 Mr. Pralhad Anant Pawar Member Non-Executive Director
4 Mr. Sunil Sheshagirirao Potdar Member Independent Director

	 The composition of the Committee is as per the requirements of the provisions of Section 177 of the Act and 
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (Listing Regulations). During 
year under review, Mr. Sunil Sheshagirirao Potdar, Independent Director was inducted as the member of Audit 
Committee.

	 The Audit Committee continues to provide valuable advice and guidance in the areas of costing, finance, and 
internal financial controls. The Committee is governed by terms of reference, which are in line with the regulatory 
requirements mandated by the Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations.

	 During the financial year, the Audit Committee met Four (4) times i.e., on 11th May 2020, 31st July 2020, 27th 
October 2020; and 22nd January 2021.

16.	 NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
	 The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) of the Company comprises of 2 Independent Director(s) 

and 1 Non-Executive Director.

S. No. Name Role Designation
1 Ms. Leja Hattiangadi Chairperson Independent Director
2 Mr. Vinayak K. Deshpande Member Non-Executive Director
3 Mr. Nalin M. Shah Member Independent Director

	 The composition of the Committee is as per the requirements of the provisions of Section 178 of the Act and the 
Listing Regulations. During the year under review, there were no changes in the composition of the NRC.

	 The Committee is governed by terms of reference, which are in line with the regulatory requirements mandated 
by the Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations

	 During the financial year, the NRC met Five (5) times i.e., on 28th April 2020, 31st July 2020, 27th October 2020, 
22nd January 2021; and 19th March 2021.

17.	 STAKEHOLDERS’ RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE
	 The Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee (SRC) of the Company comprises of 2 Independent Director(s) and 

1 Non-Executive Director.
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S. No. Name Role Designation
1 Ms. Leja Hattiangadi Chairperson Independent Director
2 Mr. Nalin M. Shah Member Independent Director
3 Mr. Pralhad Anant Pawar Member Non-Executive Director

	 The composition of the Committee is as per the requirements of the provisions of Section 178 of the Act and the 
Listing Regulations. During the year under review, there were no changes in the composition of the SRC.

	 The Committee is governed by terms of reference, which are in line with the regulatory requirements mandated 
by the Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations

	 During the financial year, the SRC met four (4) times i.e., on 11th May 2020, 31st July 2020, 27th October 2020; 
and 22nd January 2021.

18.	 CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE
	 The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (CSRC) of the Company comprises of 1 Independent Director 

and 2 Non-Executive Director(s).

S. No. Name Role Designation
1 Ms. Leja Hattiangadi Chairperson Independent Director
2 Mr. Vinayak K. Deshpande Member Non-Executive Director
3 Mr. Pralhad Anant Pawar Member Non-Executive Director

	 The composition of the Committee is as per the requirements of the provisions of Section 135 of the Act and the 
Listing Regulations. During the year under review, there were no changes in the composition of the CSRC.

	 During the financial year, the CSRC met once (1) i.e., on 19th March 2021.

	 Per provision of the Companies Act 2013, the Rules made thereunder and in compliance with the CSR policy 
adopted by the Board, an amount of ̀  7.86 lakhs, being 2% of the average net profit for the preceding 3 financial 
years was required to be spent on CSR activities. Accordingly, the Company has sponsored scholarship for 
11 students through the Foundation for Academic Excellence and Access (FAEA), Delhi, under its “TATA-
FAEA SCHOLARS” program totalling to ` 7.70 lakhs. Further, an amount of ` 20,000 was donated to the 
Prime Minister’s Citizen Assistance and Relief in Emergency Situations Fund (PM CARES Fund) towards CSR 
expenditure for the FY 2020-21.

	 The CSR policy and details of spending in the format as per the provision of the Act and listing Regulations is 
enclosed as Annexure 1.

19.	 REMUNERATION POLICY
	 Based on the recommendations of the NRC, the Board of Directors approved and adopted a Remuneration 

Policy for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees of the Company as required under Section 
178(3) of the Act. The Company has adopted Governance Guidelines which inter alia covers the composition 
and role of the Board, Board Appointment, Induction and Development, Director’s Remuneration, Code of 
Conduct, Board Effectiveness Review, and mandates of the Board Committees. The Remuneration Policy is 
placed on the website of the Company www.artson.net for reference and enclosed as Annexure 2.

20.	 PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS
	 The Company has neither given any loans or guarantee, nor provided any security in connection with any loan 

to any Body Corporate or person, nor has it acquired by subscription, purchase or otherwise, the securities of 
any Body Corporate as provided under Section 186 of the Act.
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21.	 PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES
	 All the contracts/ arrangements/ transactions entered by the Company during the year under review with related 

parties were in the ordinary course of business and at arm’s length basis. The particulars of such contracts or 
arrangements with related parties, pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(3)(h) and Rule 8 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, in the prescribed form AOC-2 is enclosed as Annexure 3.

22.	� CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS 
AND OUTGO

	 Particulars as prescribed under Section 134(3)(m) of the Act pertaining to the conservation of energy, technology 
absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo is enclosed as Annexure 4.

23.	 RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY
	 The Company has adopted measures for risk management and mitigation thereof. A formal risk reporting system 

has been devised by the Company. Project Review Committee has been constituted comprising of Directors and 
senior officials of the Company to review, assess and mitigate the risks, conversion of risk into opportunities, 
problems/ irregularities related to implementation and execution of projects (including project delay, change in 
scope and estimation errors) and implementation of checks and balances for proper execution of future work. 
The key risk management and mitigation practices include those relating to identification of key risks associated 
with the business objectives, impact assessment, risk evaluation and reporting.

24.	 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES OR JOINT VENTURES OR ASSOCIATE COMPANY
	 The Company neither has any joint venture with nor does it have any associate or subsidiary Company as 

defined under various provisions of the Act.
25.	 PARTICULARS OF DEPOSITS
	 During the year under review, the Company has neither accepted any deposit covered under Chapter V of the 

Act nor has it contravened the compliance requirements of Chapter V of the Act.
26.	 PARTICULARS OF SIGNIFICANT/ MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED, IF ANY
	 During the year under review, there were no significant and/ or material orders passed by any Regulator/ Court/ 

Tribunal which could impact the going concern status of the Company and its operations in future.
27.	 AUDITORS
	 a)	 Statutory Auditors
		  Pursuant to the provisions of Sections 139, 142 and other applicable provisions of the Act read with Rules 

made thereunder, the Shareholders at the 38th Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company held on 
21st September 2017, approved the appointment of M/s. Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants 
LLP, (PwC) (Firm Registration Number - 304026E/E-300009) as the Statutory Auditors of the Company to 
hold office for a period of 5 years commencing from the conclusion of the 38th AGM till the conclusion of 
the 43rd AGM to be held in the year 2022.

		  The Auditors’ Report issued by PwC for the financial year 2020-21 does not contain any qualification, 
reservations, adverse remark, or disclaimer.

	 b)	 Internal Auditors
		  In terms of the provisions of Section 139 of the Act and based on the recommendation of Audit Committee, 

the Board of Directors at their Meeting held on 21st April 2021 re-appointed M/s. Ernst & Young LLP (EY) 
(AAB-4343) as the Internal Auditors of the Company. EY confirmed their willingness to be re-appointed as 
the Internal Auditors of the Company. Further, the Audit Committee in consultation with Internal Auditors, 
formulated the scope, functioning, periodicity and methodology for conducting the internal audit.
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	 c)	 Cost Auditors

		  In terms of the provisions of Section 148 of the Act read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules 
2014, and based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors at their Meeting 
held 21st April 2021 re-appointed M/s. Sagar and Associates, Cost Accountants (Firm Registration No. 
000118), as the Cost Auditors for the financial year 2021-22 to conduct the audit of Steel Products of 
the Company. The necessary consent letter and certificate of eligibility was received from M/s. Sagar & 
Associates, confirming their eligibility to be re-appointed as the Cost Auditors of the Company.

		  A resolution seeking ratification of remuneration payable to M/s. Sagar and Associates, Cost Accountants 
(Firm Registration No. 000118) to conduct the audit of Steel Products of the Company for the financial year 
2020-21 has been included in the notice convening 42nd AGM of the Company.

	 d)	 Secretarial Auditors

		  In terms of Section 204 of the Act, read with the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014, and based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors 
at their Meeting held on 11th May 2020 had appointed M/s. MKS & Associates, Company Secretaries 
(Firm Registration No. S2017TL460500) as the Secretarial Auditors for the financial year 2020-21. The 
Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year 2020-21 in the prescribed form MR-3 on the audit carried out 
by the said Auditor is enclosed to this Report as Annexure 5.

		  Further, based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors at their Meeting 
held on 21st April 2021 re-appointed M/s. MKS & Associates, Company Secretaries (Firm Registration 
No. S2017TL460500) as the Secretarial Auditors of the Company for the financial year 2021-22. The 
necessary consent letter and certificate of eligibility was received from M/s. MKS & Associates, Company 
Secretaries, confirming their eligibility to be re- appointed as the Secretarial Auditors of the Company.

28.	 INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

	 The Company has adopted adequate internal financial controls, commensurate with the size and complexity of 
its operations. During the year, such controls were tested and no reportable material weakness in the design or 
operations was observed. The Company has policies and procedures in place for ensuring proper and efficient 
conduct of its business, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the 
accuracy and completeness of accounting records and the timely preparation of reliable financial information.

	 The Company has adopted accounting policies which are in line with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind-AS) 
and the Act. These are in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles in India. Changes in 
policies, if required, are made in consultation with the Auditors and are approved by the Audit Committee.

	 The Company’s internal audit system is geared towards ensuring adequate internal controls commensurate with 
the size and needs of the business, with the objective of efficient conduct of operations through adherence to the 
Company’s policies, identifying areas of improvement, evaluating the reliability of financial statements, ensuring 
compliances with applicable laws and Regulations, and safeguarding of assets from unauthorized use.

	 Based on the framework of internal financial controls and compliance systems established and maintained by the 
Company, work performed by the Internal, Statutory, Cost and Secretarial Auditors, including audit of the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting by the Statutory Auditors, and the reviews performed by the Management 
and the relevant Board and Committees, including the Audit Committee, the Board is of the opinion that the 
Company’s internal financial controls were adequate and effective during the financial year 2020-21.



28 Annual Report 2020-21

ARTSON ENGINEERING LIMITED

29.	� DISCLOSURE AS PER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, 
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

	 The Company has adopted a policy on prevention, prohibition, and redressal of sexual harassment at workplace 
in line with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 
Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder. The Company has also constituted a Committee for 
Prevention of Sexual Harassment at workplace. POSH  theme training was conducted for employees and allied 
resources. No complaints were received under the said policy during the year under review.

30.	 PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES
	 During the year under review, no employee in the Company drew remuneration in excess of the amounts 

prescribed under Section 197(12) of the Act, read with Rule 5 (2) and 5 (3) of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. Further the information pursuant to Section 197 of the Act 
read with Rule 5 (1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 
as amended from time to time is enclosed as Annexure 6.

31.	 SHARE CAPITAL
	 The authorised share capital of the Company is ` 17,00,00,000/- comprising of 15,00,00,000 equity shares of  

` 1/- and 2,00,000 preference shares of ` 100/- each. Further, the paid-up equity share capital of the Company 
is ` 3,69,20,000/- divided into 3,69,20,000 equity shares of ` 1/- each. During the year under review, there was 
no change in the capital structure of the Company. Disclosure under Section 67(3)(c) of the Act in respect of 
voting rights not exercised directly by the employees of the Company is not applicable.

32.	 ISSUE OF SHARES
	 During the year under review, the Company has not:

	 i.	 Issued any shares with differential voting rights pursuant to the provisions of Rule 4 of the Companies 
(Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014.

	 ii.	 Issued any sweat equity shares to any of its employees, pursuant to the provisions of Rule 8 of the 
Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014.

	 iii.	 Implemented any Employee Stock Option Scheme for its employees.

33.	 PURCHASE OF SHARES OF THE COMPANY
	 During the period under review, the Company has not given any loan, guarantee or security, or any financial 

assistance to the employees of the Company for the purpose of purchase or subscription for any shares of the 
Company or its Holding Company pursuant to Section 67(2) of the Act.

34.	 VIGIL MECHANISM
	 The Company has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy to report to the Management, the instances of unethical 

behaviour, actual or suspected, fraud or violation of the Company’s code of conduct or ethics policy. Under the 
policy, the employees can approach the Company’s Ethics Counsellor/ Chairman of the Audit Committee for 
reporting.

35.	� REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 
(MDAR)

	 Pursuant to the Regulation 15(2) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, compliance with the Corporate Governance provisions as specified in 
Regulations 17 to 27 and 46 (2) and para C, D and E of Schedule V are not applicable to the Company because, 
neither the paid-up share capital exceeds ` 10 Crore nor the net-worth exceeds ` 25 Crore as on the last day 
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of previous financial year i.e., 31st March 2021. Accordingly, the report pertaining to the Code of Corporate 
Governance have not been annexed to this report.

	 Further, pursuant to the provision of Regulation 34 read with para B of schedule V, the Management Discussion 
Analysis Report is enclosed as Annexure 7.

36.	 ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
	 The Directors wish to place on record their sincere appreciation for the unrelenting support received during the 

year from the Shareholders, Tata Projects Limited (Holding Company), customers - both in India and abroad, 
suppliers and vendors, Banks, and other Government and Regulatory authorities, Financing, and lending 
institutions. The Board wishes to record its deep appreciation to all the employees and workers of the Company 
for their dedication and commitment.
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ANNEXURE - 1

REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES
[Pursuant to Section 134(3)(o) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies (CSR) Rules, 2014]

1.	� Brief outline of the Company’s policy, including overview of projects/programs proposed to be 
undertaken: 

	 Artson Engineering Limited (AEL), believes in responsibility towards society and positively impacting and 
supporting both the environment and the communities. Company shall give preference to the local area and areas 
around it where it operates, focusing on sustainability of programs and empowerment of these communities. 

	 AEL shall strive to align with the Tata Group CSR and other national and international frameworks like the 
UN Sustainable Development Goals (SDG), in line with the schedule VII of the Companies Act 2013, as 
recommended by the CSR Committee of the Board and approved by the Board from time to time. 

	 AEL will participate in Tata Group CSR Initiatives in the area of Skill Development, Water, Education and Disaster 
Response. 

	 AEL is committed to improving the quality of life of members of the community, especially the underprivileged, 
and wherever possible, interact with identified NGOs and augment their efforts in this direction. 

	 AEL shall play an active role in promotion of inclusive growth through deployment of Affirmative Action initiatives 
to drive significant impact. 

	 AEL’s focus areas of development shall include programs on:

	 Water: Provide Safe drinking water and develop social entrepreneurs in water space.

	 Skill Development: To support the National Skill Development and help Industries to move to a virtuous circle 
of higher productivity, employment, income growth, enhance employability and development. 

	 Education: To improve literacy/education efforts by participating in various Government schemes and initiatives 
of other Corporates and NGOs.

	 Implementation of the CSR Policy:
	 •	 The corpus to be spent on CSR shall include at least 2% of the average net profit of India operations for 

the preceding three financial years (or as may be amended by law/ rules from time to time). Any surplus 
arising out of the CSR programs and projects shall not form part of business profits of the Company.

	 •	 We will implement all CSR activities directly or through Tata Projects Community Development Trust or 
other partners like NGOs, academic institutions, Government, other Trusts etc.

	 •	 Implementation of this policy will be monitored and reviewed periodically through a two-tier structure 
comprising: CSR Committee of the Board and CSR Department/ team of AEL.

	 We shall build partnerships and promote innovation through incubation of ideas and technology to address 
societal needs (Centers of Excellence). We shall continue to actively promote volunteerism to enable our 
employees, our partners to contribute their skills, talents and expertise for development.
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2.	 Composition of CSR Committee:

S. 
No. Name of Director

Designation/ 
Nature of 

Directorship

Number of meeting 
of CSR Committee 

held during the year

Number of meetings 
of CSR Committee 

attended during the year
1 Ms. Leja Hattiangadi Chairperson 1 1
2 Mr. Vinayak K. Deshpande Member 1 1
3 Mr. Pralhad Anant Pawar Member 1 1

3.	 Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR Committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the 
Board are disclosed on the website of the Company: www.artson.net

4.	 Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 
of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the report): Not 
Applicable.

5.	 Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate 
Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial year, if any: Not 
Applicable.

6.	 Average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5): ` 392.61 Lakhs
7.	 (a) 	 Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5): ` 7.86 Lakhs
	 (b) 	 Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years: Not 

Applicable
	 (c) 	 Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: Not Applicable
	 (d) 	 Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c): ` 7.86 Lakhs
8.	 (a) 	 CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Total Amount Spent 
for the Financial 

Year. (in ` )

Amount Unspent (in ` )

Total Amount transferred to Unspent 
CSR Account as per section 135(6).

Amount transferred to any fund 
specified under Schedule VII as per 
second proviso to section 135(5).

7.90 Lakhs Not Applicable

	 (b) 	 Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11)

S. 
No.

Name 
of the 

Project

Item from 
the list of 
activities 

in 
Schedule 
VII to the 

Act

Local 
area 
(Yes/
No)

Location of the 
project

Project 
duration

Amount 
allocated 

for the 
project 
(in ` )

Amount 
spent 
in the 

current 
financial 
Year (in 

` )

Amount 
transferred to 
Unspent CSR 
Account for 

the project as 
per Section 
135(6) (in ` )

Mode of 
Implementation 
- Direct (Yes/No)

Mode of Implementation 
- Through Implementing 

Agency

State District Name
CSR 

Registration 
number

Not Applicable
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	 (c) 	 Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)

S. 
No.

Name of the 
Project

Item from 
the list of 

activities in 
schedule VII 
to the Act.

Local 
area 
(Yes/ 
No)

Location of the 
project.

Amount 
spent 
for the 
project 
(in ` )

Mode of 
implementation - 
Direct (Yes/No)

Mode of implementation 
- Through implementing 

agency

State District Name
CSR 

registration 
number

1 Tata - FAEA 
Scholars Program

Education PAN India 7.70 
Lakhs

No Foundation 
for Academic 
Excellence 
and Access 
(FAEA)

CSR00002144

2 Prime Minister’s 
Citizen Assistance 
and Relief in 
Emergency 
Situations Fund 
(PM CARES) 

Citizen 
Assistance 
and Relief in 
Emergency 
Situations

Not Applicable 0.2 Lakh Yes Not Applicable

	 (d) 	 Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil
	 (e) 	 Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Not Applicable
	 (f) 	 Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e): ` 7.90 Lakhs
	 (g) 	 Excess amount for set off, if any: Not Applicable

S.No. Particulars Amount (in ` )
(i) Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5)

Not Applicable

(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year
(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)]
(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of 

the previous financial years, if any
(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)]

9.	 (a) 	 Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:

S.No.
Preceding 
Financial 

Year

Amount 
transferred 
to Unspent 

CSR Account 
under section 

135 (6)  
(in ` )

Amount 
spent in the 

reporting 
Financial 

Year  
(in ` ).

Amount transferred to 
any fund specified under 

Schedule VII as per section 
135(6), if any

Amount 
remaining to 
be spent in 
succeeding 

financial 
years. (in ` )

Name of 
the Fund

Amount 
(in ` )

Date of 
transfer

Not Applicable
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	 (b) 	 Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s):

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9)

S. 
No

Project 
ID

Name 
of the 

Project

Financial 
Year in 

which the 
project was 
commenced

Project 
duration

Total 
amount 

allocated 
for the 
project 
(in ` )

Amount 
spent 
on the 
project 
in the 

reporting 
Financial 
Year (in 

` )

Cumulative 
amount 
spent at 

the end of 
reporting 
Financial 

Year. (in ` )

Status 
of the 

project - 
Completed 
/Ongoing

Not Applicable

10.	 In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or acquired 
through CSR spent in the financial year: Not Applicable

	 (a)	 Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s): Not Applicable
	 (b)	 Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset: Not Applicable
	 (c)	 Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is registered, 

their address etc: Not Applicable
	 (d)	 Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and location of the 

capital asset): Not Applicable.

11.	 Specify the reason(s), if the Company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per section 
135(5): Not Applicable.

By Order of the Board
For Artson Engineering Limited

Date: 23rd July 2021
Place: Hyderabad

Vinayak K. Deshpande
Chairman
DIN: 00036827

Leja Hattiangadi
Independent Director 

DIN: 00198720
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ANNEXURE - 2

REMUNERATION POLICY
Policy for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees

The philosophy for remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (“KMP”) and all other employees of Artson 
Engineering Limited (“Company”) is based on the commitment of fostering a culture of leadership with trust. The 
remuneration policy is aligned to this philosophy.

This remuneration policy has been prepared pursuant to the provisions of Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 
(“Act”) and Regulation 19 read with Part - D of Schedule II of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. In case of any inconsistency between the provisions 
of law and this remuneration policy, the provisions of the law shall prevail, and the Company shall abide by the 
applicable law. While formulating this policy, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) has considered 
the factors laid down under Section 178(4) of the Act, which are as under:

a.	 “the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate Directors 
of the quality required to run the Company successfully.

b.	 relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks; and

c.	 remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management involves a balance between 
fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the 
Company and its goals”

Key principles governing this remuneration policy are as follows:
1.	 Remuneration for Independent Directors and Non-Independent Non-Executive Directors
	 •	 Independent Directors (“ID”) and Non-Independent Non-Executive Directors (“NED”) may be paid sitting 

fees (for attending the Meetings of the Board and of Committees of which they may be members) and 
commission within regulatory limits.

	 •	 Within the parameters prescribed by law, the payment of sitting fees and commission will be recommended 
by the NRC and approved by the Board.

	 •	 Overall remuneration (sitting fees and commission) should be reasonable and enough to attract, retain and 
motivate Directors aligned to the requirements of the Company (taking into consideration the challenges 
faced by the Company and its future growth imperatives).

	 •	 Overall remuneration should be reflective of size of the Company, complexity of the sector/ industry/ 
Company’s operations and the Company’s capacity to pay the remuneration.

	 •	 Overall remuneration practices should be consistent with recognized best practices.

	 •	 Quantum of sitting fees may be subject to review on a periodic basis, as required.

	 •	 The aggregate commission payable to all the NEDs and IDs will be recommended by the NRC to the 
Board based on Company performance, profits, return to investors, shareholder value creation and any 
other significant qualitative parameters as may be decided by the Board.

	 •	 The NRC will recommend to the Board the quantum of commission for each Director based upon the 
outcome of the evaluation process which is driven by various factors including attendance and time spent 
in the Board and Committee Meetings, individual contributions at the Meetings and contributions made by 
Directors other than in Meetings.
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	 •	 In addition to the sitting fees and commission, the Company may pay to any Director such fair and reasonable 
expenditure, as may have been incurred by the Director while performing his/ her role as a Director of 
the Company. This could include reasonable expenditure incurred by the Director for attending Board/ 
Board Committee Meetings, General Meetings, Court convened Meetings, Meetings with Shareholders/ 
Creditors/ Management, site visits, induction and training (organized by the Company for Directors) and in 
obtaining professional advice from independent advisors in the furtherance of his/ her duties as a Director.

2.	 Remuneration for Managing Director (“MD”) / Executive Directors (“ED”)/ KMP/ rest of the employees
	 •	 The extent of overall remuneration should be sufficient to attract and retain talented and qualified individuals 

suitable for every role. Hence remuneration should be:

	 •	 Market competitive (market for every role is defined as Companies from which the Company attracts talent 
or Companies to which the Company loses talent),

	 •	 Driven by the role played by the individual,

	 •	 Reflective of size of the Company, complexity of the sector/ industry/ Company’s operations and the 
Company’s capacity to pay,

	 •	 Consistent with recognized best practices and

	 •	 Aligned to any regulatory requirements.

	 In terms of remuneration mix or composition,
	 •	 The remuneration mix for the MD/ EDs is as per the contract approved by the shareholders.

	 •	 In case of any change, the same would require the approval of the shareholders.

	 •	 Basic/ fixed salary is provided to all employees to ensure that there is a steady income in line with their 
skills and experience.

	 •	 In addition to the basic/ fixed salary, the Company provides employees with certain perquisites, allowances 
and benefits to enable a certain level of lifestyle and to offer scope for savings and tax optimization, where 
possible. The Company also provides all employees with a social security net (subject to limits) by covering 
medical expenses and hospitalization through re-imbursements or insurance cover and accidental death 
and dismemberment through personal accident insurance.

	 •	 The Company provides retirement benefits as applicable.

	 •	 In addition to the basic/ fixed salary, benefits, perquisites and allowances as provided above, the Company 
provides MD/ EDs such remuneration by way of commission, calculated with reference to the net profits 
of the Company in a particular financial year, as may be determined by the Board, subject to the overall 
ceilings stipulated in the Act.

	 •	 The specific amount payable to the MD/ EDs would be based on performance as evaluated by the Board 
or the NRC and approved by the Board.

	 •	 In addition to the basic/ fixed salary, benefits, perquisites and allowances as provided above, the Company 
provides MD/ EDs such remuneration by way of an annual incentive remuneration/ performance linked 
bonus subject to the achievement of certain performance criteria and such other parameters as may be 
considered appropriate from time to time by the Board. An indicative list of factors that may be considered 
for determination of the extent of this component are:

		  a.	 Company performance on certain defined qualitative and quantitative parameters as may be decided 
by the Board from time to time,
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		  b.	 Industry benchmarks of remuneration,

		  c.	 Performance of the individual.

	 •	 The Company provides the rest of the employees a performance linked bonus. The performance linked 
bonus would be driven by the outcome of the performance appraisal process and the performance of the 
Company.

	 Remuneration payable to Director for services rendered in other capacity
	 •	 The remuneration payable to the Directors shall be inclusive of any remuneration payable for services 

rendered by such Director in any other capacity unless:

		  a.	 The services rendered are of a professional nature; and

		  b.	 The NRC believes the Director possesses requisite qualification for the practice of the profession.

	 Policy implementation
	 •	 The NRC is responsible for recommending the remuneration policy to the Board. The Board is responsible 

for approving and overseeing implementation of the remuneration policy.

By Order of the Board
For Artson Engineering Limited

Date: 23rd July 2021
Place: Pune

Vinayak K. Deshpande
Chairman

DIN: 00036827
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ANNEXURE - 3

FORM AOC-2
For the financial year ended 31st March 2021

[Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014]

I. 	 Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis

S.
No.

Name(s) of 
the Related 
party and 
nature of 

relationship

Nature of 
Contract/ 

arrangement/ 
transaction

Duration of 
Contract/ 

arrangement/ 
transaction

Silent terms of 
Contract/arrangement/
transaction, including 

value, if any

Date of 
Approval 

by the 
Board

Amount 
paid as 

advances, 
if any

NIL

II. 	 Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm’s length basis

S. 
No.

Nature of Contracts/ arrangements/ 
transactions

Duration of 
the contracts/ 
arrangements/ 
transactions

Salient terms of 
the contracts/ 
arrangements/ 
transactions 
including the 

value, if any (INR 
in Lakhs)

Dates of 
approval 

by the 
Board

Amount 
paid as 

advances, 
if any (INR 
in Lakhs)

Name of the related party: Tata projects Limited (Holding Company)
1 SBG3/Hosur/Chiller Plant/Artson/LOA/03042021

dated 3rd April 2021
Ongoing till  

Aug 21
383.00 NA Nil

2 SBU-CS (Construction Services)/ NFC Piping 
Project /340092/68086 Amendment

Ongoing till  
Nov 21

594.00 NA Nil

3 SBU - O&G (Oil, Gas & Hydrocarbons)/KG DWN 
98 2 Project/500049/12468

Ongoing till  
Nov 21

540.00 NA Nil

4 O&G/ ISRO-TWT/ Plenum Suction Piping 
Works/001 dated 25th January 2021 

Ongoing till 
Sept 21

153.00 NA Nil

5 PO No. SBU-CS/NFC Powder Plant/ 
340090/68025 dated 24th February 2021 

Ongoing till 
Sept 21

235.00 NA Nil

6 SBU - O&G (Oil, Gas & Hydrocarbons)/ISRO- 
2/500048/11237

Ongoing till 
Sept 21

212.05 NA Nil

7 PO No. SBU-CS (Construction Services)/ 
NFC Powder Plant/340090/660215 dated 27th 
November 2020

Completed  
July 21

490.62 NA Nil

8 SBU- PG (Power Generation) / NTPC Tamil 
Nadu Energy Co. Ltd. / 100047 / 201020 dated 
3rd September 2020 for fabrication of cladded 
plates

Ongoing till 
March 22

514.28 NA Nil

9 SBU- PG (Power Generation) / NTPC Talcher FGD 
Project / 100048/ 20131 dated 8th September 
2020 for Fabrication of Cladded Plates

Ongoing till 
March 22

1542.85 NA Nil

10 SBU-CS (Construction Services) / NFC Powder 
Plant /340090/64636 dated 11th September 2020 
- Manufacture and Transport of Tanks / Vessels

Ongoing till  
Jan 22

1796.97 NA 179
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S. 
No.

Nature of Contracts/ arrangements/ 
transactions

Duration of 
the contracts/ 
arrangements/ 
transactions

Salient terms of 
the contracts/ 
arrangements/ 
transactions 
including the 

value, if any (INR 
in Lakhs)

Dates of 
approval 

by the 
Board

Amount 
paid as 

advances, 
if any (INR 
in Lakhs)

11 SBU / PG (Power Generation TSTPP 
Ramagundam / 100045/19927 dated 27th July 
2020 for Fabrication of Structures for Ramagundam  

Ongoing till 
Sept 21

162.06 NA Nil

12 SBU-CS(Construction Services)/ NFC Piping 
project /340092/64578 dated 9th September 
2020 for Fabrication and Erection of Pipe Rack 
Structures for NFC Kota

Ongoing till 
March 21

3630.00 NA Nil

13 SBU-O&G (Oil, Gas & Hydrocarbons)/ISRO-2/ 
500048 / 9857 dated 4th September 2020 for 
Fabrication of Loading Frame Structures for 
ISRO Project

Ongoing till 
Sept 21

108.27 NA Nil

14 Related Party Biennial Rate Contract for 
Fabrication of Unit and Blocks at GRSE 

Ongoing till 
March 22

3175.00 NA Nil

15 LOI No: TPL / 20-21 / LOI / ONGC Kakinada 
dated 23rd  June 2020 Mechanical Works of 
Piping and Tankages for Onshore Terminal at 
ONGC Kakinada

Ongoing  
March 21

1345.00 NA Nil

16 SBU-CS(Construction Services) / NFC Kota 
Powder Plant/340090/63308 dated 26th June 
2020 for Design and Detailed Engineering of 
Shop Fabricated Tanks

Completed  
in June 21

20.00 NA Nil

17 Shared services/ re-imbursement of expenses Ongoing 57.26 NA Nil
18 Rent, maintenance and allied Services Ongoing 28.18 NA Nil
19 Deputation of employees Ongoing 85.93 NA Nil
Name of the related party: Key Managerial Personnel – CS, CFO & Manager/COO
20 Remuneration Ongoing 136.02 NA Nil

 

By Order of the Board
For Artson Engineering Limited

Date: 23rd July 2021
Place: Pune

Vinayak K. Deshpande
Chairman

DIN: 00036827
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ANNEXURE - 4

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND 
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

[Information as per Section 134(3)(m) read with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and forming part of the Board’s 
Report for the Financial Year ended 31st March 2021]

A	 Conservation of Energy
	 The Company is conscious of the need for energy conservation and striving to explore possibilities of reducing 

energy consumption in all the areas of operations including office premises as well as its manufacturing facilities 
at Nashik and Nagpur. Environment and energy conservation days were observed to create awareness among 
employees and business associates on conservation of energy.

B	 Technology Absorption: Not Applicable
C	 Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgoings

(` In Crores)
Foreign Exchange Financial Year ended  

31st March 2021
Financial Year ended  

31st March 2020
Earnings 4.07 4.48
Outgo 2.98 7.10

By Order of the Board
For Artson Engineering Limited

Date: 23rd July 2021
Place: Pune

Vinayak K. Deshpande
Chairman

DIN: 00036827
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ANNEXURE - 5

Form MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

For the Financial Year ended 31st March 2021
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]
To
The Members
Artson Engineering Limited
Mumbai.
I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to 
good corporate practices by Artson Engineering Limited (hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit 
was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory 
compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.
Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by the Company and also the information provided and declarations made by the Company, its officers, 
agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, 
the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2021 complied with 
the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:
I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by “the 
Company” for the financial year ended on 31st March 2021 according to the provisions of:
(i)	 The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;
(ii)	 The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;
(iii)	 The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;
(iv)	 Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of 

Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;
(v)	 The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 

1992 (‘SEBI Act’):
	 (a)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 

2011;
	 (b)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015
	 (c)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2009;
	 (d)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock 

Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999;
	 (e)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;
	 (f)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 

Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;
	 (g)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; and

	 (h)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998;



Annual Report 2020-21 41

Notice ● Board’s Report ● Financial Statements

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i)	 Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India i.e., Secretarial Standard – for 
Board Meeting and Secretarial Standards - 2 for General Meetings.

(ii)	 SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 [Except those as prescribed under 
Regulation 15(2) read with Regulations 15(3)]

Further as per the explanation given by the Company there are no specific acts applicable to be Company to be 
reported in my Report.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, 
Guidelines, Standards, etc.

*As per Regulation 15 (2) to SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, 
the provisions of regulations 17, [17A], 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24, [24A], 25, 26, 27 and clauses (b) to (i) [and 
(t)] of sub-regulation (2) of regulation 46 and para C, D and E of Schedule V shall not apply in respect of a 
listed entity whose paid up equity share capital does not exceed ` 10 crores and net worth does not exceed 
` 25 crores as on March 31, 2021 to the extent that they are addition to the requirements specified under the 
Companies Act, 2013.
I further report that:  
I further report that The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive 
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of 
Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda 
were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and 
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and recorded as part of the 
minutes.

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and 
operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

      	
	 For MKS and Associates

(Reg. No. S2017TL460500)

Manish Kumar Singhania
Practicing Company Secretary:

ACS No. 22056
Place: Hyderabad 	 C P No: 8068
Date: 15.07.2021 	 UDIN: A022056C000636208
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To
The Members
Artson Engineering Limited
Mumbai.
My Secretarial Audit Report of even date is to be read along with this letter.
1	 The maintenance of Secretarial records is the responsibility of the Management of the Company. Further, the 

Company is also responsible for devising proper systems and process to ensure the compliance of the various 
statutory requirements and Governance systems.

2	 It is the responsibility of the Management of the Company to ensure that the systems and process devised for 
operating effectively and efficiently.

3	 My responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit.
4	 I have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the 

correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that 
correct facts are reflected in Secretarial records. I believe that the process and practices followed provide a 
reasonable basis for my opinion.

5	 Wherever required, I have obtained the Management representations about the compliance of laws, rules and 
regulations and happening of events etc.

6	 The Compliance of the provisions of other applicable laws, rules and regulations is the responsibility of the 
Management. My examination was limited to the verification of procedure on test basis.

7	 The secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy 
or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

     				  

For MKS and Associates
(Reg. No. S2017TL460500)

Manish Kumar Singhania
Practicing Company Secretary:

ACS No. 22056
Place: Hyderabad  	 C P No: 8068
Date: 15.07.2021 	 UDIN: A022056C000636208

By Order of the Board
For Artson Engineering Limited

Date: 23rd July 2021 
Place: Pune 

Vinayak K. Deshpande
Chairman

DIN: 00036827
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 ANNEXURE - 6

STATEMENT OF DISCLOSURE OF REMUNERATION
[Information pursuant to Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 (1) of the Companies (Appointment 

and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

I.	  �Ratio of remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of employees for the financial year 
ended 31st March 2021

(` in Lakhs)
Name of the Director Designation Ratio Remuneration

Mr. Vinayak K. Deshpande Chairman --- ---
Mr. Nalin M. Shah Independent Director 1:1.10 5.30
Mr. Sunil Sheshagirirao Potdar Independent Director 0.81:1 3.90
Mr. Pralhad Anant Pawar Non-Executive Director --- ---
Ms. Leja Hattiangadi Independent Director 1:1.39 6.70
Mr. K. Satyanarayana* Non-Executive Director --- ---
Mr. Arvind Chokhany* Non-Executive Director --- ---

	 * For part of the year

	 Note: The sitting fees is paid only to the Independent Directors of the Company for attending the Meetings of the 
Board and Committees thereof.

II.	 % Increase of remuneration of each Director & KMPs in the financial year ended 31st March 2021
(` in Lakhs)

Directors Designation % Increase in Remuneration
Mr. Vinayak K. Deshpande Chairman NA
Mr. Nalin M. Shah Director 26.20
Mr. Sunil Sheshagirirao Potdar Director NA
Mr. Pralhad Anant Pawar Director NA
Ms. Leja Hattiangadi Director 28.85
Mr. K. Satyanarayana Director NA
Mr. Arvind Chokhany* Director NA
Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)
Mr. Saket Mathur Manager & Chief Operating Officer

NilMr. S. Balaji Chief Financial Officer
Mr. Deepak Tibrewal Company Secretary

	 * For part of the year

III.	 % Increase in median remuneration of employees in the Financial Year: 4.50%
IV.	 Number of permanent Employees on the roll of the Company: 178
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V.	 The explanation on the relationship between average increase in remuneration against the performance of the 
Company.

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
Total Income 15232.17 16958.87
EBITDA 613.15 1805.96
EBITDA as % of total Income 4.03% 10.65%
PAT (567.88) (73.71)
PAT as % of total Income (3.73%) (0.43%)

	 Average increase in the remuneration of employees is in line with market scenario and as a measure to motivate 
employees for better future performance.

VI.	 Average percentile increases already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel 
in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and 
justification thereof and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial 
remuneration:

	 •	 average percentile increases already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial 
personnel in the last financial year: Nil

	 •	 percentile increase in the managerial remuneration: Nil
	 Average increase in the remuneration of employees is in the line with market scenario and as a measure to 

motivate employees for better future performance.

VII.	 It is affirmed that the remuneration paid to Directors, Key Managerial Persons and employees during the year is 
as per the remuneration policy of the Company.

By Order of the Board
For Artson Engineering Limited

Date: 23rd July 2021
Place: Hyderabad

Vinayak K. Deshpande
Chairman

DIN: 00036827
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 ANNEXURE - 7

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT
Forward-looking Statements
This document contains certain forward-looking statements based on the currently held beliefs and assumptions of 
the Management of ARTSON Engineering Limited, which are expressed in good faith, and in its opinion and judgment, 
are reasonable. For this purpose, forward looking statements mean statements, remarks, or forecasts that address 
activities, events, conditions, or developments that the Company expects or anticipates which may occur in the future. 
Because of the inherent risks and uncertainties in the social and economic scenarios, the actual events, results, or 
performances may differ materially and substantially from those indicated by these statements. Artson Engineering 
Limited disclaims any obligation to update these forward-looking statements to reflect future events or developments.

FY 22 outlook – a new beginning

Growth forecast for India is predicted to be around 8.3% from the earlier 10.1% as estimated in April, as the economic 
rebound in early part of this year collapsed amidst a devastating resurgence of corona virus infections. Following 
deteriorating pandemic-related developments, the Reserve Bank of India announced further measures to support 
liquidity provision to micro, small, and medium enterprises and loosened regulatory requirements on the provisioning 
for non-performing loans for banks and NBFCs.

Economic activity in FY22 will benefit from policy support, including higher spending on infrastructure, rural 
development, health, and a stronger-than-expected recovery in services and manufacturing, The Construction and 
Manufacturing sector outlook is “improving” for FY22 from “Negative” for FY21. Manufacturing Industry perceives 
higher cost pressures mainly stemming from purchase of inputs and salary expenses and some increase in selling 
prices during Quarter 1. In Q2 of FY 22, it is expected that production volumes, new orders, and job landscape will 
strengthen and an environment of optimism on the overall financial situation will prevail provided the pandemic does 
not re-surface as a third wave.

Enhanced outlays for key sectors like defense services, railways, and roads, transport and highways would provide 
impetus to steel consumption, which is expected to grow by 10-12% in FY22 to cross 100 million tons for the first time 
ever. An up-cycle in steel prices is expected to continue in FY22. Stimulus package unveiled by the Government will 
keep demand for steel high. Steel is a major raw material in operations of your Company and the dynamics of steel 
market will always have an impact.  

Industrial Infrastructure sector is likely to recover post registering two consecutive years of revenue decline. The 
sector’s execution profile was hindered in FY20, majorly on account of the general elections coupled with government 
changes in few states resulting in changes in the priorities. This, coupled with unseasonal rainfall and impact of 
pandemic, led to sector revenue falling 7.1% y-o-y during the year.

However, contracting Companies have been able to address the supply side issues such as manpower mobilization 
and logistics for raw material procurement in a quicker pace than anticipated, resulting in a faster than expected 
recovery in the order book execution. This is expected to continue in FY22, based on the union budget’s proposal of 
higher allocations for infrastructure than in the past few years and that sector revenue is expected to grow by 15%-
20% YoY in FY22. Artson is now focused on tapping suitable business opportunities in the EPC sector.

The Oil Storage Tank market is anticipated to showcase moderate growth during 2021-2024, owing to increased 
demand for crude oil and gas and growing expenditure in onshore and offshore oil operations across India.

The Company’s unit at Nashik is involved in manufacturing of complex process equipment such as cryogenic 
vessels, columns and large and high-pressure heat exchangers and other pressure vessels for process plants Space, 
Hydrocarbon and Oil and Gas industry. Precision fabrication in different materials such as Carbon Steel, Stainless 
Steel, Titanium and other specially cladded plates is handled from this manufacturing facility.
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Heavy structural fabrication is undertaken at the work center located at Nagpur, which caters to fabricated structure 
requirements for the metallurgical, power, and nuclear sectors. 

Several new prospects in manufacturing process vessels, heat exchangers, columns and industrial structures are 
visible in the near future. Your Company, being one of the key players in these sectors, expect to be largely benefitted 
from these opportunities. The Company is also embarking on a drive to upgrade its manufacturing facilities at Nashik 
and Nagpur, to retain its competitive advantage and market leading position.

Risk Management
The major identified risk areas for Artson are input cost pressure, contract execution delays due to pandemic, stretched 
cash flows and personnel. The Company also seeks to protect its stakeholders’ interests through a robust Project 
Risk Management (PRM) framework enabling it to match risk profiles with the expected returns before making any 
financial commitment.

The contracts cell of the Company oversees the risks that may have adverse effect on the project cost and time 
schedule. The Operations and the Business Development teams of the Company, takes necessary steps to mitigate the 
risks by prudently bidding for tenders, considering, the various risks which are likely to be involved in project execution 
and making the business terms clear with the client before taking up the project. The Project Review Committee of 
Board periodically monitors, evaluates, and reviews strategy to eliminate and minimize risks in coordination with the 
respective departments.

Environmental Protection and Sustainability
As the Company operates in an increasingly resource-constrained world, being environmentally conscious and efficient 
are keys to its operations. The Company has a Corporate Environment, Health, Safety and Quality (EHSQ) Policy 
to articulate, guide, and adopt an integrated approach towards implementing EHSQ objectives and the Company 
remains committed towards the said policy. These established systems certified by reputed certifying agencies have 
helped to monitor and manage our operations systematically, safely and in an environment- friendly manner. The 
Company continues to abide by regulations concerning the environment by allocating adequate investment and 
resources on a continuous basis to adopt and implement pollution control measures. Our continuous endeavor to go 
beyond compliance and conserve natural resources helps to march towards attaining excellence in environmental 
management and efficient and sustainable operations as well.

Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Operational Performance
The financial position as on March 31, 2021, and performance of the Company during the FY ended on that date are 
tabulated hereunder:

Overview of our results of operations:

 Particulars
Amount (` in Lakhs)

2020-21 2019-20
Gross Turnover (including Other Income) 15232.17 16958.87
Profit before Interest and Depreciation (EBIDTA) 613.15 1805.96
Finance Charges 1018.17 1002.07
Depreciation and Amortization 106.16 181.23
Total Expenditure 15743.35 16336.21
Net Profit Before Tax (PBT) -511.18 622.66
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 Particulars
Amount (` in Lakhs)

2020-21 2019-20
Less: Tax expense -56.7 -696.37
Net Profit After Tax (PAT) -567.88 -73.71
Other Comprehensive Income 7.07 5.99
Total Comprehensive income -560.81 -67.72
Balance of Profit brought forward 146.71 190.25
Balance available for appropriation -414.10 146.71
Surplus carried to Balance Sheet -414.10 146.71

Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
Total Income 15232.17 16958.87
EBITDA 613.15 1805.96
EBITDA as % of total Income 4.03% 10.65%
PAT -567.88 -73.71
PAT as % of total Income -3.73% -0.43%

In FY 2021, Company registered a total revenue from operation of 15,028.21 lakhs (FY 2020: ` 16,300.21 lakhs), a 
8.2% decline in growth over previous year. The reduction in total revenue was largely due to Covid-19 related lock 
down for 47 days, which has resulted in stoppage of work. This also resulted in cascading effect to EBIDTA year on 
year.

In FY 2021, the decline in cost of depreciation by 41.4% to ` 106.16 lakhs (PY: ` 181.23 lakhs) is due to change of 
depreciation method from Written Down Value to Straight-Line Method.

Internal Control System and Their Adequacy
The Company’s internal control system is commensurate with the nature of its business and the size and complexity 
of its operations, which provide among other things, reasonable assurance of authorization, recording and reporting 
of the transactions of its operations in all material aspects. The internal control system is managed through continuous 
internal audit by outside professionals, duly supported by respective teams. The audit is carried out through an internal 
audit plan, which is reviewed in consultation with the Audit Committee, which reviews the adequacy of internal control 
checks in the system across all significant areas of the Company’s operations. The Audit Committee also meets 
the Company’s Statutory Auditors to ascertain their views on the financial statements, financial reporting system, 
internal control system and compliance to accounting policies and procedures. Significant observations made in the 
internal audit reports on internal control process improvements and the status on implementation of recommended 
measures are presented to and reviewed by the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors. The Company also has 
a documented comprehensive internal control manual for all the major processes, viz, payroll, contract labour, human 
resources, procurement and purchase of material, fixed asset, inventory control, cash management and foreign 
exchange transactions, etc., which have been designed to provide reasonable assurance with regard to recording 
and providing reliable  financial information, complying with the applicable statutes, safeguarding of assets from 
unauthorized use or losses, authorization of transactions and adherence to corporate policies.
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Human Resources & Industrial Relations
The human resources (HR) strategy at Artson is focused on introducing a performance-driven atmosphere in the 
Company, where innovation is encouraged, performance is pursued, and employees are motivated to realize the 
Company’s goals. The Company’s HR department co-creates all HR strategies along with the Senior Management 
and the Board to influence change, attract talent and build capabilities. The HR department responds to varied human 
resources needs of the Company’s business to enable the human strategic advantage.

Talent Development and employee engagement
Key components of talent development at the Company are initiating various skill and leadership development 
program as well as creating a culture of continued employee engagement. During the year, the Company organized 
150 training programs with a total attendance of 142 participants, covering 441 Training Man-days. Safety, Personality 
& Leadership development, and Statutory procedures were some of the key topics covered during these programs.

Talent Diversity
Artson aims to create healthy talent and gender diversity. The Company’s human capital comprises of 178 employees 
(9 women) across its manufacturing units and at various construction sites. 50% of the Company’s human resources 
is below 35 years. Artson is able to maintain an average employee tenure of 4 years and 5 months with overall 
average experience of 13 years and the annual attrition rate has been 24.3% in FY21. About 59% of the Company’s 
work force comprises of technically qualified as well as engineers such as BE, B Tech, MBA, DCE, DME & ITI. 

*****
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To the Members of Artson Engineering Limited
Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion 
1.	 We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Artson Engineering Limited (“the Company”), 

which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2021, the statement of profit and loss (including other 
comprehensive income), the statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then 
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information. 

2.	 In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so 
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of 
the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021, and total comprehensive income (comprising of loss 
and other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for opinion
3.	 We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) 

of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance 
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical 
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the 
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements 
and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion.

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern 
4.	 We draw your attention to Note 46 to the financial statements, regarding the preparation of the Statement 

on going concern basis. The Company has incurred a net loss of ` 567.88 lakhs during the year ended 31st 
March 2021 and, as of that date, the Company’s accumulated losses (including other comprehensive income) 
and net worth stood at ` 4,714.60 lakhs and 11.47 lakhs respectively. These factors indicate the existence 
of a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern. However, based on the detailed assessment shared by the Management and other factors mentioned 
in the aforementioned Note, these financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis and no 
adjustment has been made to the carrying value of the assets and liabilities of the Company as at the reporting 
date. Our conclusion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Emphasis of Matter
5.	 We draw your attention to Note 45 to the financial statements, which describes the Management’s assessment 

of the impact of the outbreak of Coronavirus (COVID-19) on the business operations of the Company. In view of 
the uncertain economic environment, a definitive assessment of the impact on the subsequent periods is highly 
dependent upon circumstances as they evolve. Our conclusion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key audit matters 
6.	 Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit 

of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of 
the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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opinion on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the material uncertainty related to going concern  
section, we have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in 
our report. 

Key audit matter description
Assessment of recoverability of Deferred Tax Asset in respect of unabsorbed tax losses
(Refer Note 2.8 and Note 7 to the financial statements)
The Company has recognised a deferred tax asset in respect of unabsorbed depreciation and business losses 
pertaining to the earlier assessment years. The balance of such deferred tax asset as at 31st March 2021 is ` 328.00 
lakhs (comprising of deferred tax asset of ` 166.82 lakhs and ` 161.18 lakhs in respect of unabsorbed depreciation 
and business losses respectively), which is included in Deferred tax assets (net) amounting to ` 424.16 lakhs. The 
deferred tax asset is recognised as it is considered to be recoverable based on the Company’s projected taxable 
profits in the forthcoming years. Under Indian Accounting Standard 12, Income Taxes, the carrying amount of a 
deferred tax asset is required to be reviewed at the end of each reporting period.

This has been determined as a key audit matter as the amount is significant to the financial statements and significant 
judgement was required by the Company’s Management in the preparation of forecasts of future taxable profits based 
on the underlying business plans. 

How our audit addressed the key audit matter 
Our procedures included the following: 

•	 Evaluation of the design and testing operating effectiveness of the Company’s control relating to assessment of 
carrying amount of deferred tax assets, the preparation of the forecast and its related inputs/ assumptions.

•	 Comparing the Company’s business forecast prepared in the previous year with its actual performance during 
the year; 

•	 Assessing the business plans used by the Management in evaluating the utilization of the deferred tax asset; 

•	 Testing the reasonability of Management estimates (including testing of reasonability of the provision made by 
the Management for unrecoverable portion of the Deferred Tax Asset) and key assumptions such as growth 
rate and estimated percentage of gross profit used in Management projections of the future taxable profits and 
whether tax losses can be utilized within the forecast recoupment period; 

•	 Evaluating the progress made by the Company in recent periods vis-à-vis the budget along with reasons for 
variance, if any, which inter-alia included monitoring of progress of projects and related costs and improvement 
of order book position; 

Based on the above procedures, we assessed the reasonability of the assumptions and estimates used by the 
Management in assessing the recoverability of Deferred Tax Asset in respect of unabsorbed tax losses.

Key audit matter description
Estimation of construction contract revenue and related costs (Refer Note 2.3 and Note 20 to the financial 
statements)
The Company enters into engineering, procurement and construction contracts, which generally extend over a period 
of 1-2 years. Contract prices are usually fixed, however they also include an element of variable consideration, 
including variations and claims net of assessed value of liquidated damages. Variable consideration is recognized 
when its recovery is assessed to be highly probable.

Estimated costs are determined based on techno commercial assessment of the work to be performed that includes 
certain cost contingencies and cost savings which take into account specific circumstances in each contract. 
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Contract revenue is measured based on the proportion of contract costs incurred for work performed till the Balance 
Sheet date, relative to the estimated total contract costs. 

The recognition of revenue and profit/loss therefore rely on estimates in relation to total estimated costs and estimated 
contract price of each contract. Therefore, we considered these estimates of revenue recognised and related costs 
recorded as a key audit matter given the complexities involved and the significance of the amounts to the financial 
statements.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter 
Our procedures included the following: 

•	 Understood and evaluated the design and tested the operating effectiveness of controls around estimation of 
construction contract costs and contract price including the reviews and approvals thereof;

•	 Inspected minutes of project review meetings with appropriate participation by those charged with governance 
in relation to estimates and status of the project; 

•	 For selected contracts, performed the following procedures:

	 a)	 Obtained and reviewed project related source documents such as contract agreements and variation 
orders;

	 b)	 Evaluated the business team’s probability assessment of recovery of variations/claims that contributes 
towards estimation of construction contract revenue and levy of liquidated damages by reference to 
contractual terms, expert’s assessment and legal advice, wherever considered necessary;

	 c)	 Assessed the basis for determining the total costs including changes made over period by reference to 
supporting documentation and estimates made in relation to cost to complete the projects;

	 d)	 Tested the calculation of percentage of completion under Input method including the testing of costs 
incurred and recorded against the contract;

	 e)	 Evaluated the reasonableness of key assumptions included in the estimates in relation to revenue 
recognised and related costs; and

	 f)	 Assessed the appropriateness of the revenue recognition accounting policies in line with Ind AS 115 
“Revenue from Contracts with Customers.”

Based on the procedures performed above, no significant exceptions were noted in estimates of construction contract 
revenue, related costs and disclosures made.

Other Information
7.	 The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises 

the information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, but does not include the 
financial statements and our Auditor’s Report thereon.

	 Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon.

	 In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in 
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our 
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have 
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report 
that fact. 

	 We have nothing to report in this regard.



52 Annual Report 2020-21

ARTSON ENGINEERING LIMITED

Responsibilities of Management and those charged with governance for the financial statements
8.	 The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect 

to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial 
performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This 
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions 
of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates 
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

9.	 In preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue 
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern 
basis of accounting unless Management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has 
no realistic alternative but to do so. Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s 
financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
10.	 Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an Auditor’s Report that includes our 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

11.	 As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

	 •	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

	 •	 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for 
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

	 •	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by Management. 

	 •	 Conclude on the appropriateness of Management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions 
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude 
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our Auditor’s Report to the related 
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our Auditor’s Report. However, 
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 
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	 •	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a 
manner that achieves fair presentation.

12.	 We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
identify during our audit. 

13.	 We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that 
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

14.	 From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were 
of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key 
audit matters. We describe these matters in our Auditor’s Report unless law or regulation precludes public 
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be 
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to 
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements 
15.	 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government 

of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure B a statement on the 
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

16.	  As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

	 (a) 	 We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

	 (b) 	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 
appears from our examination of those books. 

	 (c) 	 The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the 
Statement of Changes in Equity and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with 
the books of account. 

	 (d) 	 In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under 
Section 133 of the Act. 

	 (e) 	 On the basis of the written representations received from the Director as on March 31, 2021 taken on 
record by the Board of Directors, none of the Directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2021 from being 
appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

	 (f) 	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the 
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”. 

	 (g) 	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us: 

	 	 i. 	 The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial 
statements – Refer Note 43 to the financial statements; 

	 	 ii. 	 The Company has made provision as at March 31, 2021, as required under the applicable law or 
accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts – Refer Note 
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19 to the financial statements. The Company did not have any long-term derivative contracts as at 
March 31, 2021.

	 	 iii. 	 There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2021.

	 	 iv. 	 The reporting on disclosures relating to Specified Bank Notes is not applicable to the Company for 
the year ended March 31, 2021.

17.	 The Company has paid/ provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals 
mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act. 

	 For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
	 Firm Registration Number: 304026E/E-300009
	 Chartered Accountants

	 Sunit Kumar Basu
	 Partner
Place: Hyderabad	 Membership Number: 55000
Date: April 21, 2021	 UDIN: 21055000AAAADX6931
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Referred to in paragraph 16(f) of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Artson 
Engineering Limited on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Act
1. 	 We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Artson Engineering 

Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the 
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
2. 	 The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based 

on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively 
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the 
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of 
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility
3. 	 Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to 

financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit 
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing 
deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial 
controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards 
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

4. 	 Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing 
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The 
procedures selected depend on the Auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5. 	 We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements
6. 	 A Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide 

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for 
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company’s internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the 
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions 
of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary 
to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, 
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and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations 
of Management and Directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention 
or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a 
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements
7.  	 Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including 

the possibility of collusion or improper Management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or 
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree 
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion
8. 	 In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with 

reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 
were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria 
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. Also refer paragraph 5 of our main audit report.

	 For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
	 Firm Registration Number: 304026E/E-300009
	 Chartered Accountants

	 Sunit Kumar Basu
	 Partner
Place: Hyderabad	 Membership Number: 55000
Date: April 21, 2021	 UDIN: 21055000AAAADX6931
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Referred to in paragraph 15 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Artson 
Engineering Limited on the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2021

i. 	 (a)	 The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and 
situation, of fixed assets.

	 (b)	 The fixed assets are physically verified by the Management according to a phased programme designed 
to cover all the items over a period of three years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the 
size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the programme, a portion of the fixed assets 
has been physically verified by the Management during the year and no material discrepancies have been 
noticed on such verification. 

	 (c)	 The title deeds of immovable properties, as disclosed in Note 3 on fixed assets and Note 8 on Other Assets 
to the financial statements, are held in the name of the Company.

ii.	 The physical verification of inventory have been conducted at reasonable intervals by the Management during the 
year. The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of inventory as compared to book records were not material. 

iii. 	 The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to Companies, Firms, Limited Liability 
Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act. Therefore, the 
provisions of Clause 3(iii), (iii)(a), (iii)(b) and (iii)(c) of the said Order are not applicable to the Company.

iv. 	 The Company has not granted any loans or made any investments, or provided any guarantees or security to 
the parties covered under Section 185 and 186. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(iv) of the said Order are 
not applicable to the Company. 

v.	 The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 
of the Act and the Rules framed there under to the extent notified.

vi. 	 Pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government of India, the Company is required to maintain cost 
records as specified under Section 148(1) of the Act in respect of its products. We have broadly reviewed 
the same, and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made 
and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the records with a view to determine 
whether they are accurate or complete. 

vii. 	 (a)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by 
us, in our opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues in respect of 
income tax, provident fund, professional tax, goods and service tax, though there has been a slight delay in 
a few cases, and is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including employees’ state insurance, 
sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess, and other material statutory 
dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities. 

 	 (b)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by 
us, there are no dues of income-tax, service-tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, goods and service tax 
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which have not been deposited on account of any dispute. The particulars of dues of sales tax and value 
added tax as at March 31, 2021 which have not been deposited on account of a dispute, are as follows:

Name of the 
statute

Nature of 
dues

Amount 
disputed

(` In Lakhs)

Amount 
deposited

(` In Lakhs)

Period to 
which the 
amount 
relates

Forum where the 
dispute is pending

Central Sales Tax 
Act, 1956

Central Sales 
Tax 

41.40 4.24 F.Y 2007-08 Maharashtra Sales Tax 
Tribunal

Punjab Value Added 
Tax Act, 2005

Value Added 
Tax 

4.84 1.21 F.Y 2009-10 Joint Director cum- 
Deputy Excise & Taxation 
Commissioner (Appeals)

Punjab Value Added 
Tax Act, 2005

Value Added 
Tax 

2.32 Nil F.Y 2009-10 Excise & Taxation Officer - 
cum-Officer Incharge

viii.	 According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanation given to us, 
the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to any financial institution or bank or 
Government or dues to debenture holders as at the balance sheet date. 

 ix.	 In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the moneys raised by way of 
term loans have been applied for the purposes for which they were obtained. The Company has not raised any 
moneys by way of initial public offer, further public offer (including debt instruments) and term loans. 

x.	 During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance with 
the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and explanations given to us, 
we have neither come across any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or 
employees, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the Management.

xi.	 The Company has paid/ provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals 
mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act. 

xii. 	 As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the provisions of 
Clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

xiii.	 The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the provisions of Sections 
177 and 188 of the Act. The details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial 
statements as required under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures specified 
under Section 133 of the Act.

xiv. 	 The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible 
debentures during the year under review. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xiv) of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company.
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xv. 	 The Company has not entered into any non cash transactions with its Directors or persons connected with him. 
Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xvi. 	 The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. 
Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

	
	 For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
	 Firm Registration Number: 304026E/E-300009
	 Chartered Accountants

	 Sunit Kumar Basu
	 Partner
Place: Hyderabad	 Membership Number: 55000
Date: April 21, 2021	 UDIN: 21055000AAAADX6931



60 Annual Report 2020-21

ARTSON ENGINEERING LIMITED

(All amounts are in ₹ Lakhs unless otherwise stated)
 Particulars Note  

No.
 As at  

31st March, 2021 
 As at  

31st March, 2020 
 ASSETS 
 Non-current assets 
 (a) Property, plant and equipment 3  881.28  871.49 
 (b) Capital work-in-progress 3  26.96  24.78 
 (c) Intangible assets 4  11.68  13.61 
 (d) Right of use assets 4  69.47  92.80 
 (e) Financial assets

 (i) Trade receivables 5  226.96  307.85 
 (ii) Other financial assets 6  37.31  8.53 

 (f) Deferred tax assets (net) 7  424.16  505.31 
 (g) Non-current tax assets (net)  351.60  352.98 
 (h) Other non-current assets 8  244.10  244.15 
 Total non-current assets  2,273.52  2,421.50 
 Current assets 
 (a) Inventories 9  1,160.11  1,720.84 
 (b) Financial assets

 (i) Trade receivables 5  6,380.09  3,163.90 
 (ii) Cash and cash equivalents 10  51.17  66.77 
 (iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above 11  131.82  108.99 
 (iv) Other financial assets 6  5,832.21  7,100.91 

 (c) Other current assets 8  1,624.39  1,392.84 
 Total current assets  15,179.79  13,554.25 
 Total assets   17,453.31  15,975.75 
 EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
 Equity 
 (a) Equity share capital 12  369.20  369.20 
 (b) Other equity 13  (357.73)  146.71 
 Total equity  11.47  515.91 
 Liabilities 
 Non-current liabilities 
 (a) Financial liabilities

 (i) Borrowings 14  1,117.67  1,814.77 
 (ii) Lease liabilities 44  47.06  68.18 

 (b) Provisions 15  55.66  76.98 
 Total non-current liabilities  1,220.39  1,959.93 
 Current liabilities 
 (a)  Financial liabilities

 (i) Borrowings 16  3,427.79  3,916.85 
 (ii) Lease liabilities 44  29.99  29.99 
 (iii) Trade payables 17

- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 447.30  595.10 
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 8536.96  6,187.83 

 (iv) Other financial liabilities 18  954.27  333.54 
 (b) Provisions 15  8.54  9.70 
 (c) Other current liabilities 19  2,816.60  2,426.90 
Total current liabilities  16,221.45  13,499.91 
Total liabilities  17,441.84  15,459.84 
Total equity and liabilities  17,453.31  15,975.75 
See accompanying notes forming part of financial statement 1-47
This is the Statement of Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
FRN: 304026E/ E-300009

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sunit Kumar Basu
Partner
Membership No. 55000
Place: Hyderabad

Vinayak K. Deshpande 
Chairman
DIN:00036827
Place: Pune

Nalin M. Shah
Director
DIN:00882723
Place: Mumbai

Saket Mathur
Manager 
Place: Hyderabad

S. Balaji
Chief Financial Officer
Place: Hyderabad

Deepak Tibrewal
Company Secretary
Place: Hyderabad

Date: 21 April 2021 Date: 21 April 2021

 BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2021
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This is the Statement of Profit and loss referred to in our report of even date.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
FRN: 304026E/ E-300009

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sunit Kumar Basu
Partner
Membership No. 55000
Place: Hyderabad

Vinayak K. Deshpande 
Chairman
DIN:00036827
Place: Pune

Nalin M. Shah
Director
DIN:00882723
Place: Mumbai

Saket Mathur
Manager 
Place: Hyderabad

S. Balaji
Chief Financial Officer
Place: Hyderabad

Deepak Tibrewal
Company Secretary
Place: Hyderabad

Date: 21 April 2021 Date: 21 April 2021

(All amounts are in ₹ Lakhs except for earnings per share information)

Particulars Note 
No.

 For the year  
ended  

31st March, 2021 

 For the year  
ended  

31st March, 2020 
I Revenue from operations 20  15,028.21  16,300.21 
II Other income 21  203.96  658.66 
III Total income (I + II)  15,232.17  16,958.87 
IV Expenses    

(a) Cost of materials consumed 22  6,679.29  6,306.73 
(b) Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade and work- in-progress 23  457.61  210.81 
(c) Employee benefit expense 24  1,288.38  1,343.85 
(d) Finance costs 25  1,018.17  1,002.07 
(e) Depreciation and amortisation expense 26  106.16  181.23 
(f) Project execution expenses 27  5,428.14  6,306.11 
(g) Other expenses 28  765.60  985.41 
Total expenses (IV)  15,743.35  16,336.21 

V Profit/(Loss) before tax (III-IV)  (511.18)  622.66 
VI Income tax expense:

(a) Current tax  -  - 
(b) Deferred tax 29  56.70  696.37 
Total tax expense (VI)  56.70  696.37 

VII Loss for the year (V - VI)  (567.88)  (73.71)
VIII Loss for the year  (567.88)  (73.71)
IX Other comprehensive income

(i)	 �Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to the 
statement of profit and loss

	 -	 �Remeasurement gains of post employment 
benefits on defined benefit plan (net)  9.79  8.30 

(ii) 	 Income tax relating to these items  (2.72)  (2.31)
X  Total other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax  7.07  5.99 
XI  Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year (VIII + X)   (560.81)  (67.72)

Earnings per equity share (Face value : ₹ 1) 31
Basic earnings per share ( ₹ )  (1.54)  (0.20)
Diluted earnings per share ( ₹ )  (1.54)  (0.20)

See accompanying notes forming part of financial statements 1-47

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021
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(All amounts are in ₹ Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

 Particulars 
 For the year 

ended  
31st March, 2021 

 For the year 
ended  

31st March, 2020 
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit/(Loss) before tax for the year  (511.18)  622.66 
Adjustments for :
Finance costs  1,018.17  1,002.07 
Interest income  (50.51)  (193.88)
(Gain)/Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment  4.69  (0.33)
Provision for onerous contracts  6.01  - 
Depreciation and amortisation expense  106.16  181.23 
Liabilities/provisions no longer required written back  (106.20)  (411.82)
Provision for doubtful debts no longer required written back  (0.40)  (34.60)
Provision for doubtful debts on trade receivables  34.00  33.47 
Provision for doubtful debts on unbilled revenue  (2.51)  5.53 
Actuarial gain on defined benefit plan (Net)  7.07  5.99 
Unrealised (gain)/loss on foreign currency transactions  (11.08)  (10.64)

 494.22  1,199.68 
Movements in working capital
(Increase)/decrease in Trade Receivables  (3,157.82)  157.08 
(Increase)/decrease in Inventories  560.73  115.87 
(Increase)/decrease in Other Financial Assets  1,311.87  (1,415.10)
(Increase)/decrease in Other Assets  (261.01)  (231.63)
Increase/(decrease) in Trade Payables  2,307.53  (1,243.97)
Increase/(decrease) in Provisions  (29.55)  17.82 
Increase/(decrease) in Other Financial Liabilities  (22.10)  15.16 
Increase/(decrease) in Other Liabilities  383.69  93.47 
Cash (used in)/generated from operations  1,587.56  (1,291.62)
Less: Income Taxes (refund)/paid  (1.38)  (4.52)
Net cash (used in)/generated from operating activities  1,588.94  (1,287.10)

Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets  (199.43)  (489.55)
(Increase)/Decrease in other bank balances  (51.61)  9.03 
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment  -  1.56 
Interest received  9.85  4.42 
Net Cash used in investing activities  (241.19)  (474.54)

 STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021
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 STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021
(All amounts are in ₹ Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

 Particulars 
 For the year 

ended  
31st March, 2021 

 For the year 
ended  

31st March, 2020 
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from Long Term Borrowings  -  1,500.00 
Repayment of Long Term Borrowings  -  (1,500.00)
Proceeds from Short Term Borrowings  1,600.00  - 
Finance Costs paid  (853.17)  (808.07)
Principal Payment of lease liabilities  (12.25)  (17.96)
Interest Payment of lease liabilities  (8.87)  (10.83)
Net Cash used in financing activities  725.71  (836.86)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  2,073.46  (2,598.50)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  (3,850.08)  (1,251.59)
Effects of exchange rate changes on the balance of cash and cash 
equivalents held in foreign currencies  -  0.01 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  (1,776.62)  (3,850.08)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  51.17  66.77 
Bank overdraft  (1,827.79)  (3,916.85)
Cash and cash equivalents (including Bank overdraft) at the end of the 
year  (1,776.62)  (3,850.08)

This is the Statement of Cash Flow referred to in our report of even date.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
FRN: 304026E/ E-300009

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sunit Kumar Basu
Partner
Membership No. 55000
Place: Hyderabad

Vinayak K. Deshpande 
Chairman
DIN:00036827
Place: Pune

Nalin M. Shah
Director
DIN:00882723
Place: Mumbai

Saket Mathur
Manager 
Place: Hyderabad

S. Balaji
Chief Financial Officer
Place: Hyderabad

Deepak Tibrewal
Company Secretary
Place: Hyderabad

Date: 21 April 2021 Date: 21 April 2021
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(All amounts are in ₹ Lakhs unless otherwise stated)
A. 	 Equity Share Capital

Particulars
For the year  

ended  
31st March, 

2021

For the year  
ended  

31st March, 
2020

Balance as at 1st April 369.20 369.20
Changes in equity share capital during the year  -  - 
Balance as at 31st March 369.20 369.20

B. 	 Other Equity

Particulars

  For the year ended  
31st March, 2021  

  For the year ended  
31st March, 2020  

Retained  
Earnings

Equity  
component 
of financial 
instruments

Total Retained  
Earnings

Equity  
component 
of financial 
instruments

Total

Balance as at 1st April (4,153.79) 4,300.50 146.71 (4,086.07) 4,276.32 190.25

Profit /(Loss) for the year (567.88) - (567.88) (73.71) - (73.71)
Other comprehensive income for 
the year 7.07 - 7.07 5.99 - 5.99
Financial gain due to corporate 
guarantee - 78.10 78.10 - 127.46 127.46
Deferred tax liability on equity 
component - (21.73) (21.73) - (103.28) (103.28)
Total comprehensive income for 
the year (4,714.60) 4,356.87 (357.73) (4,153.79) 4,300.50 146.71

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021

This is the Statement of Changes in Equity referred to in our report of even date.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
FRN: 304026E/ E-300009

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sunit Kumar Basu
Partner
Membership No. 55000
Place: Hyderabad

Vinayak K. Deshpande 
Chairman
DIN:00036827
Place: Pune

Nalin M. Shah
Director
DIN:00882723
Place: Mumbai

Saket Mathur
Manager 
Place: Hyderabad

S. Balaji
Chief Financial Officer
Place: Hyderabad

Deepak Tibrewal
Company Secretary
Place: Hyderabad

Date: 21 April 2021 Date: 21 April 2021
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2021

1)	 General Information

	 Artson Engineering Limited (“the Company’’) is a Company limited by shares incorporated under the erstwhile 
Companies Act, 1956. The Company’s Registered Office is situated at Mumbai. The Company’s shares are 
listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) and the Scrip Code is 522134.

	 The Company was incorporated in the year 1978 and since inception, the Company has commissioned, on turn-
key basis, several fuel storage and handling facility systems. The Company is operating in one segment viz. 
Supply of fabricated steel structure and site services of mechanical works.

	 The Company was referred to the BIFR as a sick Company under the provisions of Section 3 (1) (O) of the 
Sick Industrial Companies (Special Provisions) Act, 1985. The Company’s reference as a sick Company was 
registered under Case No. 152/ 2004 with the BIFR. Meanwhile, with effect from December 1, 2016, the Ministry 
of Finance, Government of India notified the SICA Repeal Act, 2003 (“Repeal Act, 2003”) by virtue of which 
BIFR stood dissolved and all the appeals, references, inquiries and proceedings pending before the BIFR stand 
abated except for the Schemes already sanctioned. The Management is of the opinion that considering the 
current financial performance and order booking, the Company does not require to refer the case to the NCLT 
for approval of the above.

1.1	 New and amended standards adopted by the Company:

	 The Company has applied the following amendments to Ind AS for the first time for their annual reporting period 
commencing 1st April 2020: 

	 • 	 Definition of Material – amendments to Ind AS 1 and Ind AS 8 

	 • 	 Definition of a Business – amendments to Ind AS 103 

	 • 	 COVID-19 related concessions – amendments to Ind AS 116 

	 • 	 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform – amendments to Ind AS 109 and Ind AS 107 

	 The amendments listed above did not have any impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods and are not 
expected to significantly affect the current or future periods.

2)	  Significant Accounting Policies:

2.1 	 Basis of preparation

	 (a) 	 Compliance with Ind AS

	 	 The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified 
under the Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act), the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2015 and other relevant provisions of the Act.

	 (b) 	 Historical cost convention

	 	 The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial assets 
and liabilities and defined benefit plans (plan assets), which are measured at fair values at the end of each 
reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below:

	 	 Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is 
directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset 
or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants 
would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
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	 	 In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorized into Level 1, 2, 
or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the 
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

	 	 • 	 Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that 
the Company can access at the measurement date;

	 	 • 	 Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the 
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

	 	 • 	 Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

2.2 	 Estimates

	 The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the Management to make estimates, 
judgements and assumptions. These estimates, judgements and assumptions affect the application of accounting 
policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent liabilities at the date 
of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the year. Application of 
accounting policies that require critical accounting estimates involving complex and subjective judgements and 
the use of assumptions in these financial statements have been disclosed. Accounting estimates could change 
from period to period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are 
made as the Management becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes 
in estimates are reflected in the financial statements in the period in which changes are made and, if material, 
their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

2.3 	 Revenue Recognition

	 The Company recognizes revenue on satisfaction of performance obligation to its customer. Revenue is 
measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer and excludes taxes collected on 
behalf of the government authorities.

	 Determination of transaction price and its subsequent assessment:

	 The Company assesses the transaction price considering the contract price as agreed with the customer in 
the contract document, that includes Letter of Acceptance/Intent or any document evidencing the contractual 
arrangement. Where consideration is not specified within the contract and is variable, the Company estimates 
the amount of consideration to be received from its customer. The consideration recognized is the amount which 
the Company assesses to be highly probable not to result in a significant reversal in future periods.

	 Modification(s) to an existing contract, if any, are assessed to be either a separate performance obligation or 
an extension of existing scope and transaction price is determined accordingly.The Company considers the 
retention moneys held by customer to be protection money in the hands of the customers and hence are not 
subjected to discounting pursuant to para 61 and 62(c) of Ind AS 115. The mobilisation advances received, 
free of interest, from customers, also are not subjected to discounting, as the Company considers the objective 
behind the transaction to be that of ensuring and protecting timely execution of the project and not deriving 
financial benefit in the nature of interest.

	 Company deploys revenue recognition both as (a) over a period of time, and (b) at a point of time, as considered 
appropriate to the nature of product/service delivered to the customer.
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	 Revenue from operations:

	 (i) 	 Revenue from construction activities is recognized over a period of time and the Company uses the input 
method to measure progress of delivery.

	 (ii) 	 Revenue from sale of goods is recognized at a point in time when title has passed to the customer. 
Revenue is recognized when control of the goods is transferred to the buyer, which generally coincides 
with the delivery of goods to customers. Amount disclosed as revenue is inclusive of excise duty and 
net of returns, trade allowances, rebates, value added taxes, goods and service tax (GST) and amounts 
collected on behalf of third parties.

	 (iii) 	 Revenue from services rendered is recognised at a point in time based on the arrangements/ agreements 
with the concerned parties and when the services are rendered.

	 Revenue from other sources:

	 (i) 	 Interest income is accrued on a time basis using the effective interest method by reference to the principal 
outstanding and the effective interest rate, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash 
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount.

	 (ii) 	 Any amount received/receivable in respect of Arbitration Awards in favour of the Company is treated as 
income of the year of receipt of the award.

	 Performance obligations in a contract with customer

	 Company determines the performance obligations, considering the nature and scope of each contract.

	 Measuring Progress of a construction contract

	 When the outcome of individual contracts can be estimated reliably, contract revenue and contract costs are 
recognized as revenue and expenses respectively by reference to the stage of completion as at the reporting 
date. The stage of completion is determined on the basis of proportion of cost of work performed to-date, to the 
total estimated contract costs. Costs are recognized as incurred and revenue is recognized on the basis of the 
proportion of total actual costs as at the reporting date, to the estimated total costs of the contract.

	 For the purpose of recognizing revenue, contract revenue comprises the initial amount of revenue agreed in the 
contract, the variations in contract work, claims and incentive payments to the extent that it is probable they will 
result in revenue and they are capable of being reliably measured.

	 The percentage of completion method is applied on a cumulative basis in each accounting year to the current 
estimates of contact revenue and contract costs. The effect of a change in the estimate of the outcome of a 
contract is accounted for as a change in accounting estimates and the effect of which is recognized in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which the change is made and in subsequent years.

	 When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is recognized only to the 
extent of contract costs incurred of which recovery is probable and the related contract costs are recognized as 
an expense in the year in which they are incurred.

	 When it is probable that the total contract cost will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognized 
as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which such probability occurs.

	 Provision is made for all known or expected losses on individual contracts once such losses are foreseen. 
Revenue in respect of variations to contracts and incentive payments is recognized when it is probable it will be 
agreed by the customer.
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	 The Company adjusts the impact of uninstalled materials from the contract value, budgeted costs and costs 
incurred to measure the percentage of completion. The revenue on such items is recognized equal to the cost 
incurred on such items.

	 No profit is recognized till a minimum of 10% progress is achieved on the contract.

	 Contract Assets and Contract Liabilities

	 If the Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration 
or before payment is due, such amount is recognized as a contract asset, excluding any amounts presented 
as a receivable. The contract asset represents the Company’s right to consideration in exchange for goods or 
services that the Company has transferred to the customer. The Company shall assess a contract asset for 
impairment in accordance with Ind AS 109. An impairment of a contract asset shall be measured, presented and 
disclosed on the same basis as a financial asset that is within the scope of Ind AS 109.

	 If the customer pays consideration, or an Company has a right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional, 
before the Company transfers a good or service to the customer, such amount is recognized as a contract 
liability. The contract liability represents the Company’s obligation to transfer goods or services to the customer 
for which the Company has received consideration from the customer.

2.4 	 Foreign Currency Translation

	 (i) 	 Functional and presentation currency

	 	 Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic 
environment in which the Company operates (‘the functional currency’). The financial statements are 
presented in Indian Rupee (INR), which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.

	 (ii) 	 Transactions and balances

	 	 Transactions in foreign currency are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of transaction. 
Foreign currency monetary items outstanding at the Balance Sheet date are restated at the prevailing 
year-end rates. The resultant gain / loss upon such restatement along with gain / loss on account of foreign 
currency transactions is accounted in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

2.5 	 Employee Benefits

	 i) 	 Short-term obligations

	 	 Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly 
within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are 
recognized in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at 
the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current 
employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

	 (ii) 	 Other long-term employee benefit obligations

	 	 Other long-term employee benefits comprise of earned leave and sick leave compensated absences that 
are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees 
renders related services. These obligations are therefore measured as the present value of expected 
future payments and expected utilisations (in case of sick leaves) to be made in respect of services 
provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method. The 
benefits are discounted using the appropriate market yields at the end of the reporting period that have 
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terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Remeasurements as a result of experience 
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in profit or loss.

	 (iii) 	 Post-employment obligations

	 	 The Company operates the following post-employment schemes:

	 	 (a) 	 defined benefit plans such as gratuity and

	 	 (b) 	 defined contribution plans such as provident fund.

		  (a) 	 Defined benefit plans - Gratuity

	 	 	 The liability or asset recognized in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plan is 
the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair 
value of plan assets. The gratuity plan is a funded plan and the Company makes contributions to 
Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC). The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by 
actuaries using the projected unit credit method.

	 	 	 The present value of the defined benefit obligation denominated in INR is determined by discounting 
the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period 
on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. The 
estimated future payments which are denominated in a currency other than INR, are discounted 
using market yields determined by reference to high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated 
in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms approximating to the terms of 
the related obligation.

	 	 	 The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined 
benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense 
in the statement of profit and loss.

	 	 	 Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial 
assumptions are recognized in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive 
income. They are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the 
balance sheet.

	 	 	 Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or 
curtailments are recognized immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.

		  (b) 	 Defined contribution plan

	 	 	 The Company pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered provident funds as per local 
regulations. The Company has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been 
paid. The contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans and the contributions are 
recognized as employee benefit expense when they are due.

2.6 	 Earnings Per Share

	 (i) 	 Basic earnings per share

	 	 Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

	 	 •	 the profit attributable to owners of the Company

	 	 •	 by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year.
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	 (ii) 	 Diluted Earnings per share

	 	 Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take 
into account:

	 	 •	 the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential 
equity shares, and

	 	 •	 the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming 
the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

2.7 	 Leasing

	 Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which the leased 
asset is available for use by the Company. Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The 
Company allocates the consideration in the contract to the lease and non-lease components based on their 
relative stand-alone prices. However, for leases of real estate for which the Company is a lessee, it has elected 
not to separate lease and non-lease components and instead accounts for these as a single lease component.

	 Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include 
the net present value of the following lease payments:

	 • 	 fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable

	 •	 amounts expected to be payable by the Company under residual value guarantees

	 • 	 the exercise price of a purchase option if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

	 • 	 payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising that 
option.

	 Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also included in the measurement 
of the liability. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot 
be readily determined, which is generally the case for leases in the Company, the lessee’s incremental borrowing 
rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain 
an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms, security 
and conditions.

	 Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss 
over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the 
liability for each period.

	 Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

	 • 	 the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability

	 • 	 any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received

	 • 	 any initial direct costs, and

	 • 	 restoration costs.

	 Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a 
straight-line basis. If the Company is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is 
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life. Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment 



Annual Report 2020-21 71

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2021 (Contd.)

Notice ● Board’s Report ● Financial Statements

and all leases of low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-
term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value assets comprise IT equipment and 
small items of office furniture.

2.8 	 Taxation

	 The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based 
on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities 
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

	 The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the 
end of the reporting period in India in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961. Management 
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation 
is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be 
paid to the tax authorities.

	 Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the 
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. However, deferred 
income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other 
than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit 
(tax loss). Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially 
enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset 
is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

	 Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is 
probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

	 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets 
and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and 
tax liabilities are offset where the Company has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle 
on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

	 Current and deferred tax is recognized in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in 
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognized in other comprehensive 
income or directly in equity, respectively.

2.9 	 Property, Plant and Equipment & Intangible Assets

	 Property, Plant and Equipment

	 Property, Plant and Equipment are carried at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment 
losses, if any. The cost of Property, Plant and Equipment comprises its purchase price and other attributable 
expenditure incurred in making the asset ready for its intended use and interest on borrowings attributable to 
acquisition of qualifying Property, Plant and Equipment up to the date the asset is ready for its intended use.

	 Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, 
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the 
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate 
asset is derecognized when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the 
reporting period in which they are incurred.

	 Property, Plant and Equipment retired from active use and held for sale are stated at the lower of their net book 
value and net realizable value and are disclosed separately.
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	 Intangible Assets:

	 Intangible assets comprise of the application and other software procured through perpetual licences. The 
intangible assets are capitalized on implementation of such software and comprises of the prices paid for 
procuring the licences and implementation cost of such software.

	 Depreciation and Amortization methods, useful lives and residual value:

	 Depreciation and amortization has been provided for on the Straight line method as per the useful life prescribed 
in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013, which are as follows:

Nature of assets Useful life (in years)
Buildings 30
Plant and Equipment* 5-15
Computers 3
Office equipment 5
Furniture and fixtures 10
Electrical Installations 10
Vehicles 8
Softwares 3

	 * Plant and Equipment includes components for which depreciation is charged as per the useful life of the components.

	 The residual values are not more than 5% of the original cost of the asset. The assets’ residual values and useful 
lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

	 An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount 
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

	 Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included 
in profit or loss within other gains/(losses).

	 The Company has changed the depreciation method from written down value to straight line with effect from  
1st April, 2020 to ensure consistency with the policies followed by the Holding Company, practises followed 
by the entities in the Construction industry and to reflect the expected pattern of consumption of the future 
economic benefits based on internal technical and commercial assessment.

	 Impairment:

	 All Property, Plant and Equipment are tested for impairment at the end of each financial year. The impairment loss 
being the excess of carrying value over the recoverable value of the assets, if any, is charged to the Statement 
of Profit and Loss in the respective financial year. The impairment loss recognized in prior years is reversed in 
cases where the recoverable value exceeds the carrying value, upon reassessment in the subsequent years.

2.10 	Inventories

	 Raw materials and Work-in-Progress are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost of raw 
materials comprises cost of purchases. Cost of work-in-progress comprises direct materials, direct labour and 
an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overhead expenditure, the latter being allocated on the basis of 
normal operating capacity. Cost of inventories also include all other costs incurred in bringing the inventories 
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to their present location and condition. Costs are assigned to individual items of inventory on the basis of first-
in first-out (FIFO) basis. Costs of purchased inventory are determined after deducting rebates and discounts. 
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of 
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

2.11	 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

	 Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past events, it is probable 
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated. 
The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present 
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the 
obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its 
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows.

	 A contingent liability is:

	 (a) 	 a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the 
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the 
Company; or

	 (b) 	 a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized because:

	 	 (i) 	 it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle 
the obligation; or

	 	 (ii) 	 the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

	 	 When it is probable at any stage of the contract that the total cost will exceed the total contract revenue, 
the expected loss is recognized immediately.

2.12 	Financial Instruments

	 Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instruments.

	 Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and 
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial 
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the 
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognized immediately 
in profit or loss.

	 (i) 	 Financial assets carried at amortized cost: - Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where 
those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest 
income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method. Any 
gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognized directly in profit or loss and presented in other gains/(losses). 
Impairment losses are presented as separate line item in the statement of profit and loss.

	 (ii) 	 Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): - Assets that are held 
for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows 
represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying 
amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest income 
and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognized in profit and loss. When the financial asset is 
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derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or 
loss and recognized in other gains/(losses). Interest income from these financial assets is included in other 
income using the effective interest rate method. Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in other 
gains/(losses) and impairment expenses are presented as separate line item in statement of profit and loss.

	 (iii) 	 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: - Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised 
cost or FVOCI are measured at fair value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that 
is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss is recognized in profit or loss and presented 
net within other gains/(losses) in the period in which it arises. Interest income from these financial assets 
is included in other income.

	 (iv) 	 Financial liabilities: - Financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

	 Impairment of Financial Assets

	 The Company applies the expected credit loss model for recognizing impairment loss on financial assets 
measured at amortized cost, trade receivables, other contractual rights to receive cash or other financial asset.

	 For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from 
transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115, the Company always measures the loss allowance at an 
amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses. Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected 
credit loss allowance for these assets, the Company has used a practical expedient method as permitted under 
Ind AS 109. This expected credit loss allowance is computed based on a provision matrix which takes into 
account historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking information.

	 Derecognition of Financial Assets

	 A financial asset is derecognized only when

	 1.	 the Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or

	 2.	 retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual 
obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

	 Where the Company has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially 
all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is derecognized. 
Where the Company has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, 
the financial asset is not derecognized.

	 Where the Company has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of 
ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognized if the Company has not retained control 
of the financial asset. Where the Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be 
recognized to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset.

	 Income recognition

	 Interest income from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is disclosed as interest income within 
other income. Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost and financial assets at FVOCI is calculated 
using the effective interest method is recognized in the statement of profit and loss as part of other income.

	 Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial 
asset except for financial assets that subsequently become credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets 
the effective interest rate is applied to the net carrying amount of the financial asset (after deduction of the loss 
allowance).
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2.13 	Operating cycle

	 All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating 
cycle. The operating cycle is the time between acquisition of assets for construction/fabrication activities and 
their realization in cash and cash equivalents. Based on the nature of activities performed and time between 
acquisition of assets for construction/fabrication activities and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the 
Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months.

2.14 	Cash and cash equivalents

	 For the purpose of presentation in the Statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on 
hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original 
maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject 
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings 
in current liabilities in the Balance Sheet.

2.15 	Trade Receivables

	 Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services performed in the ordinary course 
of business. Trade receivables are recognized initially at the amount of consideration that is unconditional 
unless they contain significant financing components, when they are recognized at fair value. The Company 
holds the trade receivables with the objective to collect the contractual cash flows and therefore measures them 
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less loss allowance.

2.16 	Offsetting financial instruments

	 Financial Assets and Liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet where there is 
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on net basis or 
realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on 
future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency 
or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

2.17 	Trade and Other Payables

	 These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial 
year which are unpaid. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due 
within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognized initially at their fair value and subsequently 
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

2.18 	Borrowings

	 Borrowings are initially recognized at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently 
measured at amortized cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption 
amount is recognized in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

	 Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, 
cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished 
or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities 
assumed, is recognized in profit or loss as other gains/(losses).

	 Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement 
of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of a material provision 
of a long-term loan arrangement on or before the end of the reporting period with the effect that the liability 
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becomes payable on demand on the reporting date, the Company does not classify the liability as current, if the 
lender agreed, after the reporting period and before the approval of the financial statements for issue, not to 
demand payment as a consequence of the breach.

2.19 	Borrowing Costs

	 General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production 
of a qualifying asset are capitalized during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset 
for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get 
ready for their intended use or sale.

	 Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on 
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

	 Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

2.20 	Segment reporting

	 The Company operates in only one business segment viz. Supply of steel structure and site services for 
mechanical works. Therefore, segment-wise reporting under Ind AS 108 is not applicable.

2.21 	Rounding of amounts

	 All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per 
the requirement of Schedule III, unless otherwise stated.
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3. 	 Property, plant and equipment

Particulars Buildings Plant and 
Equipment Computers Office 

Equipment
Furniture 
& Fixtures

Electrical 
Installations Vehicles Total

Capital 
work-in-
progress

Gross carrying amount - Cost/
Deemed cost
Balance as at 1st April, 2019 88.67 534.73 66.09 15.94 45.94 18.65 1.82 771.84 20.98
Additions 27.02 490.63 7.03 33.95 12.15 - - 570.78 24.78
Disposals - (11.14) - (0.32) (0.11) - - (11.57) (20.98)
Balance as at 31st March, 2020 115.69 1,014.22 73.12 49.57 57.98 18.65 1.82 1,331.05 24.78
Balance as at 1st April, 2020 115.69 1,014.22 73.12 49.57 57.98 18.65 1.82 1,331.05 24.78
Additions 7.00 71.47 1.52 10.03 - 1.86 - 91.88 2.18
Disposals - (10.80) (8.27) (0.84) (0.02) - - (19.93) -
Balance as at 31st March, 2021 122.69 1,074.89 66.37 58.76 57.96 20.51 1.82 1,403.00 26.96

           

Particulars Buildings Plant and 
Equipment Computers Office 

Equipment
Furniture 
& Fixtures

Electrical 
Installations Vehicles Total

Capital 
work-in-
progress

Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at 1st April, 2019 35.12 215.65 30.79 10.47 14.49 12.41 1.01 319.94 -
Depreciation expense 6.43 93.16 24.89 12.93 10.93 1.52 0.12 149.98 -
Disposals - (9.96) - (0.30) (0.10) - - (10.36) -
Balance as at 31st March, 2020 41.55 298.85 55.68 23.10 25.32 13.93 1.13 459.56 -
Balance as at 1st April, 2020 41.55 298.85 55.68 23.10 25.32 13.93 1.13 459.56 -
Depreciation expense 3.10 56.26 8.13 6.04 3.36 0.47 0.04 77.40 -
Disposals - (6.93) (7.56) (0.74) (0.01) - - (15.24) -
Balance as at 31st March, 2021 44.65 348.18 56.25 28.40 28.67 14.40 1.17 521.72 -

Particulars Buildings Plant and 
Equipment Computers Office 

Equipment
Furniture 
& Fixtures

Electrical 
Installations Vehicles Total

Capital 
work-in-
progress

Net carrying amount
Balance as at 31st March, 2020 74.14 715.37 17.44 26.47 32.66 4.72 0.69 871.49 24.78
Balance as at 31st March, 2021 78.04 726.71 10.12 30.36 29.29 6.11 0.65 881.28 26.96

3.1 	 During the current year the Company has changed the depreciation method from written down value to straight 
line with effect from 1 April, 2020 to ensure consistency with the policies followed by the Holding Company, 
practices followed by the entities in the Construction industry and to accurately reflect the expected pattern of 
consumption of the future economic benefits based on internal technical and commercial assessment. This 
change has resulted in decrease in depreciation expense amounting to ` 107.86 lakhs for the year ended  
31st March 2021.

3.2 	 Property, plant and equipment pledged as security
	 Refer to Note 14 for information on property, plant and equipment pledged as security by the Company.

3.3	 Self Constructed Asset
	 Additions to Plant and Equipment include an amount of ₹ Nil (31st March, 2020 - ₹ 8.96 lakhs) representing self 

constructed asset capitalised from the inventory to raw materials.
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3.4 	 Buildings
	 Buildings are constructed on leasehold land not owned by the Company.

3.5 	 Contractual Obligations
	 Refer to Note 42 for disclosure of contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment.

3.6 	 Capital work-in-progress
	 Capital work-in-progress comprises of temporary structure for central stores to be constructed at the Nagpur 

factory.

4(a) Intangible assets

Particulars Computer software
Gross carrying amount - Cost/Deemed cost
Balance as at 1st April, 2019  27.92 
Additions  14.86 
Disposals  - 
Balance as at 31st March, 2020  42.78 
Balance as at 1st April, 2020  42.78 
Additions  3.50 
Disposals  - 
Balance as at 31st March, 2021  46.28 

Particulars Computer software
Accumulated Amortisation
Balance as at 1st April, 2019  21.25 
Amortisation expense  7.92 
Disposals  - 
Balance as at 31st March, 2020  29.17 
Balance as at 1st April, 2020  29.17 
Amortisation expense  5.43 
Disposals  - 
Balance as at 31st March, 2021  34.60 

Particulars Computer software
Net Carrying Amount
Balance as at 31st March, 2020  13.61 
Balance as at 31st March, 2021  11.68 
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4(b)	 Right-of-use assets

Particulars Right-of-use assets
Gross carrying amount - Cost/Deemed cost
Balance as at 1st April, 2019  116.13 
Additions  - 
Disposals  - 
Balance as at 31st March, 2020  116.13 
Balance as at 1st April, 2020  116.13 
Additions  - 
Disposals  - 
Balance as at 31st March, 2021  116.13 

Particulars Right-of-use assets
Accumulated Amortisation
Balance as at 1st April, 2019  23.33 
Amortisation expense  - 
Disposals  - 
Balance as at 31st March, 2020  23.33 
Balance as at 1st April, 2020  23.33 
Amortisation expense  23.33 
Disposals  - 
Balance as at 31st March, 2021  46.66 

Particulars Right-of-use assets
Net Carrying Amount
Balance as at 31st March, 2020  92.80 
Balance as at 31st March, 2021  69.47 
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5. 	 Trade receivables

Particulars  As at  
31st March, 2021 

 As at  
31st March, 2020 

Non-Current
Unsecured, considered good  226.96  307.85 
Unsecured, considered doubtful  68.25  68.68 
Allowance for doubtful debts  (68.25)  (68.68)

 226.96  307.85 
Current
Unsecured, considered good  6,380.09  3,163.90 
Unsecured, considered doubtful  84.90  50.87 
Allowance for expected credit loss  (84.90)  (50.87)

 6,380.09  3,163.90 

5.1  Expected Credit Loss Allowance on receivables
	 The Company applies the simplified approach for providing for expected credit losses prescribed by Ind AS 

109, which permits the use of the lifetime expected loss provision for all the trade receivables (including unbilled 
revenue disclosed under other financial assets). The loss allowance provision is determined as follows after 
incorporating forward looking information. 

	 (i) 	 At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews every receivable balance and in case an issue 
is identified with regard to the recovery of the balance, a specific provision is made for the same.

	 (ii) 	 The Company also computes the Expected Credit Loss Allowance (ECLA) by applying the average 
percentage of bad debts write-offs on turnover  determined on a historical basis over the past 4 years. 
Expected Credit Loss Allowance is determined on the closing balance of all receivables (including unbilled 
revenue disclosed under other financial assets) from external customers at each reporting date.

	 No Expected Credit loss provision has been created for receivables from the Holding Company since the 
Company considers the life time credit risk of these financial assets to be very low.

5.2  	 Expected Credit Loss Allowance on other financial assets
	 No Expected Credit Loss provision, other than specific provisions, has been created for Cash and Cash 

equivalents and Other financial assets (other than unbilled revenue), since the Company considers the life time 
credit risk of these financial assets to be very low.

5.3  	 Movement in the Expected Credit Loss Allowance

Particulars  As at  
31st March, 2021 

 As at  
31st March, 2020 

Balance at the beginning of the year  349.18  628.06 
Less: Provision no longer required written back during the year  (0.40)  (317.88)
Less: Bad Debts written off during the year  -  - 
Add: Additional provision for the current year  31.49  39.00 
Balance at the end of the year  380.27  349.18 
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5.4  	 Break up of the Expected credit loss allowance

Particulars  As at  
31st March, 2021 

 As at  
31st March, 2020 

Allowance for expected credit loss on Non Current Trade Receivables 
(Note 5)  68.25  68.68 
Allowance for expected credit loss on Current Trade Receivables 
(Note 5)  84.90  50.87 
Allowance for expected credit loss on Non Current - Other Financial 
Assets (Note 6)  199.00  199.00 
Allowance for expected credit loss on Current - Other Financial 
Assets (Note 6)  28.12  30.63 
Total  380.27  349.18 

6. 	 Other Financial Assets

Particulars  As at  
31st March, 2021 

 As at  
31st March, 2020 

Non-Current
Security deposits
Unsecured, considered good  8.53  8.53 
Unsecured, considered doubtful  199.00  199.00 

 207.53  207.53 
Less: Allowance for doubtful deposits  (199.00)  (199.00)

 8.53  8.53 
In deposit accounts with banks remaining maturity for more than 12 months  28.78  - 

 37.31  8.53 
Current
Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated
Contractual Reimbursable expenses  300.66  300.66 
Less: Allowance for doubtful amounts  (13.04)  (13.04)

 287.62  287.62 
Security deposits  25.17  29.79 
Interest accrued on deposits/Arbitration  225.94  185.28 
Unbilled Revenue  5,308.56 6,615.81
Less: Allowance for doubtful amounts  (15.08)  (17.59)

 5,293.48  6,598.22 
Total  5,832.21  7,100.91 
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7. 	 Deferred tax assets (net)

Particulars  As at  
31st March, 2021 

 As at  
31st March, 2020 

Deferred tax assets 
On differences in the Net carrying amount of Property, Plant and 
Equipment as per Income Tax and the Companies Act, 2013  42.00  68.68 
On Provision for expected credit loss on receivables and other 
financial assets  110.63  101.98 
On Provision for expected claims  13.91  13.91 
On Provision for Compensated Absences  16.49  21.33 
 On Provision for Gratuity  1.37  2.79 
On Provision for Bonus  13.55  17.98 
On Unabsorbed business losses and Unabsorbed depreciation  328.00  403.00 
On Amortisation of Guarantee Commission relating to Corporate 
Guarantee issued by the Holding Company  202.66  172.75 
On interest expense relating to the interest-free loan received from the 
Holding Company  46.71  32.32 

Sub Total (A)  775.32  834.74 

Deferred tax liabilities 
On Equity portion of the Corporate Guarantee issued by the Holding 
Company  219.94  198.21 
On Equity portion of the interest-free loan received from the Holding 
Company  131.22  131.22 

Sub Total (B)  351.16  329.43 
Net Deferred tax assets (A - B)  424.16  505.31 

Significant estimates - Deferred tax assets on unabsorbed business losses and unabsorbed depreciation 

The Company has recognised deferred tax assets on unabsorbed business losses and unabsorbed depreciation. 
The Company has incurred losses in the earlier years and it has started to make profits over the past couple of years. 
The Management has concluded that the deferred tax assets will be recoverable using the estimated future taxable 
income based on the approved business plans and budgets. The losses can be carried forward for a period of 8 years 
as per the requirements of the Income Tax Act, 1961. A portion of these losses can be carried forward until Financial 
Year 2021-22. After set off of the losses, the Company is expected to generate taxable income in the Financial Year 
2021-22.  
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Movement in Deferred tax assets (net)

Financial Year 2020-21 Opening 
balance

Recognised 
in statement 
of profit or 

loss

Recognised 
in Other 

Comprehensive 
Income 

Recognised 
in  

Other 
Equity

Closing  
Balance

Deferred tax (liabilities)/assets in relation to
On differences in the Net carrying amount of Property, Plant and Equipment 
as per Income Tax and the Companies Act, 2013 68.68 (26.68) - - 42.00
Provision for compensated absences 21.33 (4.84) - - 16.49
Provision for Gratuity 2.79 1.30 (2.72) - 1.37
On Provision for expected credit loss on trade receivables and other financial 
assets 101.98 8.65 - - 110.63
On Provision for expected claims 13.91 - - - 13.91
Provision for Bonus 17.98 (4.43) - - 13.55
Unabsorbed business losses and Unabsorbed depreciation 403.00 (75.00) - - 328.00
On Amortisation of Guarantee Commission relating to Corporate Guarantee 
issued by the Holding Company 172.75 29.91 - - 202.66
On interest expense relating to the interest-free loan received from the 
Holding Company 32.32 14.39 - - 46.71
On Equity portion of the Corporate Guarantee issued by the Holding Company (198.21) - - (21.73) (219.94)
On Equity portion of the interest-free loan received from the Holding Company (131.22) - - - (131.22)

505.31 (56.70) (2.72) (21.73) 424.16

Previous Year 2019-20 Opening 
balance

Recognised  
in statement 
of profit or 

loss

Recognised 
in Other 

Comprehensive 
Income 

Recognised 
in  

Other 
Equity

Closing  
Balance

Deferred tax (liabilities)/assets in relation to
On differences in the Net carrying amount of Property, Plant and Equipment 
as per Income Tax and the Companies Act,2013 71.24 (2.56) - - 68.68
Provision for compensated absences 15.20 6.13 - - 21.33
Provision for Gratuity 2.39 2.67 (2.31) - 2.79
On Provision for expected credit loss on trade receivables and other financial 
assets 179.56 (77.58) - - 101.98
On Provision for expected claims 13.91 - 13.91
Provision for Bonus 14.48 3.50 - - 17.98
Unabsorbed business losses and Unabsorbed depreciation 1,078.00 (675.00) - - 403.00
On Amortisation of Guarantee Commission relating to Corporate Guarantee 
issued by the Holding Company 138.69 34.06 - - 172.75
On interest expense relating to the interest-free loan received from the 
Holding Company 19.91 12.41 - - 32.32
On Equity portion of the Corporate Guarantee issued by the Holding Company (162.75) - - (35.46) (198.21)
On Equity portion of the interest-free loan received from the Holding Company (63.40) - - (67.82) (131.22)

1,307.23 (696.37) (2.31) (103.28) 505.31
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8. 	 Other Assets

Particulars  As at  
31st March, 2021 

 As at  
31st March, 2020 

Non-Current
Balances with government authorities
VAT credit receivable  241.53  241.53 
Prepayments (Refer Note (a) below)  2.57  2.62 

Total  244.10  244.15 
Current

Balances with government authorities
	 CENVAT credit receivable  0.14  0.14 
 	 GST credit receivable  1,094.54  938.57 
Advances to staff  14.04  6.83 
Advances to suppliers  343.90  233.47 
Prepaid expenses  50.51  63.56 
Financial benefit on the Corporate Guarantee received from the 
Holding Company  56.41  85.84 
Other Advances  64.85  64.43 

Total  1,624.39  1,392.84 

Note (a) - Represents amount paid towards land lease for a period of 95 years which is amortised on straight line 
basis over the term of the lease. The amortisation expenses is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss under 
Note 28 - “Other Expenses”. For the year ended 31st March, 2021, the charge is ₹ 0.05 lakh (31st March, 2020  
₹ 0.05 lakh).

9. 	 Inventories

Particulars  As at  
31st March, 2021 

 As at  
31st March, 2020 

Raw materials (At lower of cost and net realisable value)  640.30  740.69 
Work-in-progress (At lower of cost and net realisable value)  177.16  736.61 
Contracts-in-progress (At lower of cost and net realisable value) (Refer 
notes (a) below)  317.65  215.81 
Scrap (At estimated realisable value)  25.00  27.73 
Total  1,160.11  1,720.84 

Notes:

(a) 	 Contracts-in-progress disclosed under Inventories as at 31st March, 2021 represents costs of construction 
materials lying at project sites which would be consumed in the next year.



Annual Report 2020-21 85

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2021 (Contd.)

Notice ● Board’s Report ● Financial Statements

10. 	 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Particulars  As at  
31st March, 2021 

 As at  
31st March, 2020 

Balances with banks in current accounts  48.61  61.68 
Cash on hand  2.56  5.09 
Total  51.17  66.77 
There are no repatriation restrictions with regard to cash and cash equivalents of as at the end of the reporting 
period and prior period. Cash and cash equivalents held in foreign currencies as at 31st March, 2021 is ₹ 0.20 lakh  
(31st March, 2020 - ₹ 0.26 lakh).

11. 	 Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Particulars  As at  
31st March, 2021 

 As at  
31st March, 2020 

In Deposit Accounts with maturity more than 3 months but less than 12 
months [Refer note (a) below]  131.82  108.99 
Total  131.82  108.99 
Note (a): The entire amount of ` 131.82 lakhs (31st March, 2020 - ` 108.99 lakhs) is held as lien by banks towards 
the various non-fund facilities sanctioned by them. 

12. 	 Equity Share Capital

Particulars  As at  
31st March, 2021 

 As at  
31st March, 2020 

Authorised Share Capital
150,000,000 equity shares of ₹ 1 each (31st March, 2020 : 150,000,000)  1,500.00  1,500.00 
200,000 preference shares of ₹ 100/- each (31st March, 2020 : 200,000)  200.00  200.00 

 1,700.00  1,700.00 
Issued and Subscribed Capital
36,920,000 fully paid equity shares of ₹ 1 each (31st March, 2020 : 36,920,000)  369.20  369.20 
Total  369.20  369.20 

Notes:
(i)	 Reconciliation of the Number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the 

year

Particulars Number of 
Shares in ‘000s

Equity Share 
Capital (Amount  

₹ Lakhs)
As at 1st April, 2019  36,920  369.20 
Shares Issued during the year  -  - 
As at 31st March, 2020  36,920  369.20 
As at 1st April, 2020  36,920  369.20 
Shares Issued during the year  -  - 
As at 31st March, 2021  36,920  369.20 
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(ii)	 Terms/rights attached to equity shares 
	 The Company’s issued, subscribed and paid-up capital comprises of equity shares only and no preference 

shares have been issued. The Company’s paid-up capital comprises only one class, i.e. equity shares having 
par value of  ₹ 1 per share. They entitle the holder to participate in dividends, and to share in the proceeds of 
winding up of the Company in proportion to the number of and amounts paid on the shares held. 

	 Every holder of equity shares present at a meeting in person or by proxy, is entitled to one vote, and upon a poll 
each share is entitled to one vote.

	 The liability of the members is limited.

(iii)	 Restriction on distribution of dividend:
	 Pursuant to the terms of the loan given by the Holding Company, the Company is not permitted to declare any 

dividend to the equity shareholders without the payment of loan amount to the Holding Company in full.

(iv)	 No bonus shares have been issued during the last five years.

(v)	 No shares have been issued for consideration other than cash during the last five years.

(vi)	 No shares have been bought back during the last five years.

(vii) 	Shares of the Company held by holding Company

Particulars

As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020
Number of 

Shares  
in ‘000s

% age of 
holding 

Number of 
Shares  

in ‘000s
% age of 
holding 

Equity shares of ₹ 1 each 
Tata Projects Limited, Holding Company  27,690 75  27,690 75

(viii) 	Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5%

Particulars

As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020
Number of 

Shares  
in ‘000s

% age of 
holding 

Number of 
Shares  

in ‘000s

% age of 
holding 

Equity shares of ₹ 1 each 
Tata Projects Limited, Holding Company  27,690 75  27,690 75
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13. 	 Other equity
13 (a) Reserves and Surplus

Particulars  As at  
31st March, 2021 

 As at  
31st March, 2020 

Retained Earnings 
Balance as at the beginning of the year  (4,153.79)  (4,086.07)
Total  (4,153.79)  (4,086.07)
Loss for the year  (567.88)  (73.71)
Items of other comprehensive income recognised directly in retained 
earnings

-	 �Remeasurement gains of post employment benefits on defined 
benefit plan, net of deferred tax    7.07  5.99 

Balance at the end of the year  (4,714.60)  (4,153.79)

13 (b) Equity component of financial instruments

Particulars  As at  
31st March, 2021 

 As at  
31st March, 2020 

Balance as at the beginning of the year  4,300.50  4,276.32 
Add: Financial benefit on the corporate guarantee received from the 
Holding Company (Refer Note (i) below)  78.10  127.46 
Less: Deferred Tax Liability on the equity component of financial 
instruments  (21.73)  (103.28)
Balance at the end of the year  4,356.87  4,300.50 

Notes:
(i) 	 Term loan from bank disclosed under Note 14, Current Maturities of Term loan under Note 18 and Loans 

repayable on demand from banks disclosed under Note 16 include amounts that have been granted by the 
banks at a concessional interest rate based on a corporate guarantee provided by the Holding Company. As per 
the requirements of Ind AS 109, the Company has computed the deemed financial benefit on the borrowings 
availed at concessional rate and the said benefit has been taken to Other Equity. The financial benefit accounted 
is being amortised in the Statement of Profit and Loss over the period of the loans. The amount of financial 
benefit taken to Other Equity as at 31st March, 2021 is ₹ 827.55 lakhs (31st March, 2020 - ₹ 771.18 lakhs). 
Additionally, during the year, the Company has recognised an amount of ₹ 107.52 lakhs (31st March, 2020 -  
₹ 122.42 lakhs) as guarantee commission charge in the Statement of Profit and Loss under Note 25 - Finance 
costs.     
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14. 	 Non-current borrowings   

Particulars  As at  
31st March, 2021 

 As at  
31st March, 2020 

Secured - at amortised cost
Term loan from bank (Refer note (i) below)  742.68  1,491.50 

      Loans from related parties (Refer note (ii) below)  374.99  323.27 
Total for non-current borrowings  1,117.67  1,814.77 
(i) 	 The amount represents Term Loan of ₹1,500 lakhs availed from Axis Bank secured by pari passu charge 

on movable fixed and current assets of the Company, both present and future. The loan is repayable in 4 
equal quarterly installment commencing from 27th month from the date of first disbursement of the facility i.e. 
27th September 2019 and carries an interest rate of 12 months MCLR plus 1.20% per annum i.e. 8.7% per 
annum, currently. Additionally, the term loan from bank is guaranteed unconditionally with irrevocable corporate 
guarantee from the Holding Company. A portion of the term loan amounting to ₹ 750 lakhs is repayable within 
the next 12 months, hence the same has been regrouped to Other financial liabilities as Current maturities of 
long term debt under Note 18 as at 31st March 2021.

(ii) 	 During the year 2016-17, the Company revised the terms of the term loan received from the Holding Company 
of ₹ 1,930.39 lakhs and inter- corporate deposit received from the Holding Company of ₹ 2,100 lakhs. As per 
the revised terms, the total loan from the Holding Company is repayable in a single installment at the end of 20 
years and does not bear any interest. As per the requirements of Ind AS 109, the loan from Holding Company 
was recorded at its fair value of ₹207.10 lakhs as at 31st March, 2017 and the difference of ₹ 3,823.29 lakhs 
between the loan received from the Holding Company of ₹4,030.39 lakhs and the fair value of the loan was 
taken to Other Equity. The loan is secured by mortgage of leasehold land at Nashik. The leasehold land has 
been disclosed as prepayments under Other Non Current Assets (Note 8). Also refer the table below for the 
movement in the loan from related party:

Particulars  As at  
31st March, 2021 

 As at  
31st March, 2020 

Opening balance  323.27  278.68 
Add: Additions during the year  -  - 
Add: Interest accrued during the year  51.72  44.59 
Balance as at the end of the year  374.99  323.27 

Net Debt Reconciliation
This section sets out the changes in liabilities arising from financing activities in the statement of cash flows:

Particulars  As at  
31st March, 2021 

 As at  
31st March, 2020 

Opening balance as at 1st April (Current, Non-Current borrowings 
and Current maturities of long-term debt)*:  1,835.11  1,786.72 
Add:	 Proceeds from Borrowings  1,600.00  1,490.00 
Less:	 Repayments of Borrowings  -  (1,500.00)
Add:	 Interest expense 286.50  195.75 
Less:	 Repayments of Interest (245.90)  (137.36)
Closing balance (Including interest accrued and due) 3,475.71  1,835.11 
*Bank overdraft balances are not included above as they are considered as cash and cash equivalents.
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15. 	 Provisions

Particulars  As at  
31st March, 2021 

 As at  
31st March, 2020 

Non-Current
Gratuity (Refer Note 32)  0.41  5.85 
Compensated Absences  55.25  71.13 

 55.66  76.98 
Current 

Gratuity (Refer Note 32)  4.52  4.17 
Compensated Absences  4.02  5.53 

 8.54  9.70 
Total  64.20  86.68 

16. 	 Current Borrowings

Particulars  As at  
31st March, 2021 

 As at  
31st March, 2020 

Secured - at amortised cost
Loans repayable on demand from banks
- Bank Overdraft (Refer Note (i) below)  1,827.79  3,916.85 
- Working capital demand loans  1,600.00  - 

Total  3,427.79  3,916.85 
Note:
(i)	 Overdraft facilities and Working capital demand loans of ₹ 3,427.49 lakhs (31st March, 2020 - ₹ 3,916.85 

lakhs) are secured by pari passu charge on the inventories, trade receivables and other current assets of the 
Company. The current interest rates charged by banks range from 8.2% to 10% per annum. Additionally, the 
working capital loans amounting to ₹ 2,437.01 lakhs (31st March, 2020 - ₹ 1,296.09 lakhs) from banks are 
guaranteed unconditionally with irrevocable corporate guarantee from the Holding Company.

17. 	 Trade Payables

Particulars  As at  
31st March, 2021 

 As at  
31st March, 2020 

Trade Payables
Dues of micro and small enterprises under Micro, Small and Medium 
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (Refer Note 38) 447.30  595.10 
Others 8536.96  6,187.83 

Total  8,984.26  6,782.93 
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18. 	 Other Financial Liabilities

Particulars  As at  
31st March, 2021 

 As at  
31st March, 2020 

Current
a) Current maturities of long-term debt  758.04  8.04 
b) Liability for expenses  7.02  7.02 
c) Capital Creditors  -  104.05 
d) Interest accrued and due  26.60  29.72 
e) Employee benefits payable  162.61  184.71 
Total  954.27  333.54 

19. 	 Other Current Liabilities

Particulars  As at  
31st March, 2021 

 As at  
31st March, 2020 

(a) Advances from customers including mobilisation advances  2,638.17  2,231.16 
(b) Advance billing to customers  10.08  18.61 
(c) Statutory dues  162.34  177.13 
(d) Provision for onerous contracts  6.01  - 
Total  2,816.60  2,426.90 

20.	  Revenue from Operations

Particulars
 For the year 

ended  
31st March, 2021 

 For the year 
ended  

31st March, 2020 
(a) Income from sale of goods  4,336.50  5,094.86 
(b) Income from contracts  10,555.78  11,148.39 
(c) Other operating revenues  135.93  56.96 
Total  15,028.21  16,300.21 

Note: Income from sale of goods includes an amount of ₹ 1,257.28 lakhs (31st March, 2020: ₹ 398.56 lakhs) pertaining 
to service income from fabrication activity.

Unsatisfied long-term contracts:

The following table shows unsatisfied performance obligations resulting from fixed-price long-term contracts.

Particulars
 For the year 

ended  
31st March, 2021 

 For the year 
ended  

31st March, 2020 
Aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated to long-term contracts 
that are partially unsatisfied as at reporting date 20,403.17  10,375.89 
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Management expects that 82% of the transaction price allocated to the unsatisfied contracts as of 31st March 2022 
will be recognised as revenue during the next reporting period.

The sale contracts for sale of goods are for periods of one year or less. As permitted under Ind AS 115, the transaction 
price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.

Reconciliation of revenue recognised with contract price:

Particulars
 For the year 

ended  
31st March, 2021 

 For the year 
ended  

31st March, 2020 
Contract price 14,889.72 15,829.41
Adjustments for: 
Contract Modifications in respect of claims raised/Additional work  138.49 470.80
Revenue from continuing operations 15,028.21 16,300.21

Critical judgements in recognising revenue
The following are the critical estimates while determining the Revenue from construction activities:

(i) 	 Estimated Total Costs – Management determines the Estimated Total Costs for the project, which is used to 
determine the stage of completion of the contract.

These estimates may depend on the outcome of future events and may need to be reassessed at the end of each 
reporting period. Refer Note 2.3 for the accounting policy on Revenue from Construction activities.

21.	 Other Income

Particulars
 For the year 

ended  
31st March, 2021 

 For the year 
ended  

31st March, 2020 
(a) Interest income

Bank deposits  7.72  5.66 
Interest on tax refunds  6.78  26.14 
Interest on arbitration awards  35.74  161.86 
Others  0.27  0.22 

 50.51  193.88 
(b) Other non-operating income

Liabilities/provisions no longer required written back  106.20  411.82 
Provision for doubtful debts no longer required written back  0.40  34.60 
Miscellaneous Income  46.85  18.36 

 153.45  464.78 
Total  203.96  658.66 
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22. 	 Cost of Materials Consumed

Particulars
 For the year 

ended  
31st March, 2021 

 For the year 
ended  

31st March, 2020 
(a) Opening Stock (including Scrap)  768.42  673.48 

 768.42  673.48 
(b) Purchases  6,576.17  6,410.63 
(c) Less: Capitalised during the year (Refer Note 3.3)  -  (8.96)
(d) Less: Closing Stock (including Scrap)  (665.30)  (768.42)

 5,910.87  5,633.25 
Total  6,679.29 6,306.73

23. 	 Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade and work-in-progress

Particulars
 For the year 

ended  
31st March, 2021 

 For the year 
ended  

31st March, 2020 
(a) Opening Work-in-progress  736.61  926.30 

Opening Contracts-in-progress (Refer Note 9(a))  215.81  236.93 

(b) Less: Closing Work-in-progress  (177.16)  (736.61)
Less: Closing Contracts-in-progress  (317.65)  (215.81)

Total  457.61  210.81 

24. 	 Employee benefit expense

Particulars
 For the year 

ended  
31st March, 2021 

 For the year 
ended  

31st March, 2020 
Salaries and wages  1,210.23  1,257.02 
Contribution to provident and other funds (Refer Note 32.1)  68.25  73.54 
Staff welfare expenses  9.90  13.29 
Total  1,288.38  1,343.85 
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25. 	 Finance Costs

Particulars
 For the year 

ended  
31st March, 2021 

 For the year 
ended  

31st March, 2020 
Interest expense on :
       (i)	 Borrowings  536.91  523.99 
       (ii) 	 Mobilisation advances received from customers  116.83  126.54 
       (iii) 	 Loan received from the Holding Company  51.72  44.59 
       (iv) 	 Delay in payment of statutory dues  7.69  0.05 
       (v) 	 Others  139.25  92.44 
       (vi) 	 Lease liabilities  8.87  10.82 
Guarantee commission on Corporate guarantee received from the Holding 
Company  107.52  122.42 
Other borrowing costs  49.38  81.22 
Total  1,018.17  1,002.07 

26. 	 Depreciation and amortisation expense

Particulars
 For the year 

ended  
31st March, 2021 

 For the year 
ended  

31st March, 2020 
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Refer Note 3.1)  77.40  149.98 
Amortisation of intangible assets  5.43  7.92 
Amortisation of right-of-use assets  23.33  23.33 
Total  106.16  181.23 

27. 	 Project Execution Expenses

Particulars
 For the year 

ended  
31st March, 2021 

 For the year 
ended  

31st March, 2020 
Cost of erection services  5,153.58  6,019.27 
Insurance charges  74.31  70.03 
Bank guarantee and letter of credit charges  56.76  45.05 
Other site expenses  143.49  171.76 
Total  5,428.14  6,306.11 
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28. 	 Other Expenses

Particulars
 For the year 

ended  
31st March, 2021 

 For the year 
ended  

31st March, 2020 
Rent (Refer Note 36)  39.02  30.90 
Rates and taxes  24.64  88.84 
Repairs  2.48  2.07 
Travelling expenses  29.92  70.99 
Legal and professional fees (Refer Note 40)  181.54  311.45 
Postage and telephone  19.40  23.14 
Printing and stationery  15.62  14.30 
Business development expenses  3.54  3.64 
Directors’ fees  15.90  12.20 
Loss on forex fluctuation  29.77  - 
Bad debts written off  9.91  - 
Provision for doubtful debts  31.49  39.00 
Provision for onerous contracts  6.01  - 
Corporate Social Responsibility expenses (Refer Note 41)  7.90  - 
Loss on sale of Property, Plant and Equipment  4.69  - 
Motor vehicle expenses  118.41  101.93 
Electricity and water charges  197.37  226.15 
Miscellaneous expenses  27.99  60.80 
Total  765.60  985.41 

29. 	 Income Taxes

Tax expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss comprises:

Particulars
 For the year 

ended  
31st March, 2021 

 For the year 
ended  

31st March, 2020 
Current Taxes on profits for the year  -  - 
Adjustments for current tax of prior periods  -  - 
Deferred Taxes charge  56.70  696.37 
Income Tax expense  56.70  696.37 
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Tax expense recognised in Other Comprehensive Income comprises:

Particulars
 For the year 

ended  
31st March, 2021 

 For the year 
ended  

31st March, 2020 
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified subsequently to 
Statement of Profit and Loss  (2.72)  (2.31)
Income Tax expense recognised in Other Comprehensive Income  (2.72)  (2.31)

Tax expense recognised directly in Equity comprises:

Particulars
 For the year 

ended  
31st March, 2021 

 For the year 
ended  

31st March, 2020 
Aggregate current and deferred tax arising in the reporting period and not 
recognised in net profit or loss or other comprehensive income but directly 
debited/(credited) to equity:
Deferred tax:
On equity portion of the Corporate Guarantee issued by the Holding Company  21.73  35.46 
On equity portion of the Interest - free loan received from the Holding Company  -  67.82 
Income Tax expense recognised directly in Equity  21.73  103.28 

The following table provides the details of income tax assets and income tax liabilities as at 31st March, 2021 and 
31st March, 2020.

Particulars
 For the year 

ended  
31st March, 2021 

 For the year 
ended  

31st March, 2020 
Non- current Income tax assets  351.60  352.98 
Current Income tax liabilities  -  - 
Net current income tax assets at the end of the year  351.60  352.98 

29.1 The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:

Particulars
 For the year 

ended  
31st March, 2021 

 For the year 
ended  

31st March, 2020 
Profit /(Loss) before tax from continuing operations  (511.18)  622.66 
Tax rate at 27.82% for FY 2020-21 (FY 2019-20 : 27.82%) (A)  (142.21)  173.22 
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in calculating 
taxable income (B) 31.83  6.14 
Effect of changes in the deferred tax assets recognised in the previous 
year (C) 167.08  517.01 
Income tax expense (A+B+C)  56.70  696.37 
Tax expense recognised  in profit or loss (relating to continuing operations)  56.70  696.37 
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30. 	 Related party transactions
30.1 Details of related parties

Description of relationship Names of related parties
(i) 	 Holding Company Tata Projects Limited
(ii) 	 Key Management Personnel Mr. Vinayak K. Deshpande, Chairman

Mr. Nalin M. Shah, Independent Director
Mr. Pralhad Anant Pawar, Director
Ms. Leja Hattiangadi, Independent Director
Mr. Michael Bastian, Independent Director (Upto 5th August 2019)
Mr. Sunil Sheshagirirao Potdar, Independent Director (From 30th April 2020)
Mr. Satyanarayana Kasinadhuni, Director (From 30th April 2020)
Mr. Arvind Chokany, Director (From 30th April 2020 upto 12th March 2021)
Mr. Saket Mathur, Manager
Mr. S. Balaji, Chief Financial Officer
Mr. Deepak Tibrewal, Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

30.2	 Details of related party transactions with the Holding Company during the year ended 31st March, 2021 
and balance outstanding as at 31st March, 2021.

Particulars
Transactions during  

the year ended
Balances Outstanding  at 

the end of the year
31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20

1 Income from sale of goods  (1,927.16)  (2,274.32)  -  - 
2 Income from contracts  (5,825.91)  (4,135.69)  -  - 
3 Purchase of Inventory  53.77  - 
4 Reimbursement of expenses to Holding 

Company (including employee deputation cost)  171.37  162.40  -  - 
5 Interest on loan received from the Holding Company  51.72  44.59  -  - 
6 Guarantee commission on Corporate guarantee 

received from the Holding Company  107.52  150.08  -  - 
7 Trade receivables  -  - 3,159.42  2,446.65 
8 Trade payables  -  -  (1,041.04)  (1,516.54)
9 Long term borrowings  -  -  (374.98)  (323.27)
10 Financial benefit on the Corporate Guarantee 

received from the Holding Company  -  -  56.41  85.84 
11 Advances from customers including mobilisation 

advances  -  -  (780.42)  (631.27)
12 Bank Guarantee limits utilised  -  -  1,841.50  1,530.00 
13 Letter of Credit Limits utilised  -  -  2,686.56  - 
14 Corporate Guarantees given  -  -  1,092.89  1,141.60 
15 Corporate Guarantees received (including 

corporate guarantees given to bankers)  -  -  9,824.99  7,965.63 
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30.3 Compensation of Key Managerial Personnel

Particulars Year ended  
31st March, 2021

Year ended  
31st March, 2020

Short-term benefits  137.88  134.62 
Directors’ Sitting Fees (Refer Note 28)  15.90  12.20 
Total  153.78  146.82 
Note: As gratuity and compensated absences are computed for all the employees on an aggregate basis in the 
actuarial valuation report, the amounts relating to the Key Managerial Personnel cannot be individually identified.

31. 	 Earnings per share of  ₹ 1 Face value

Particulars Year ended  
31st March, 2021

Year ended  
31st March, 2020

Basic & Diluted earnings per share 
      From continuing operations  (1.54)  (0.20)

Reconciliation of earnings used in calculating earnings per share

Particulars Year ended  
31st March, 2021

Year ended  
31st March, 2020

Basic & Diluted earnings per share 
Profit/(loss) attributable to the equity holders of the Company used in 
calculating basic earnings per share  (567.88)  (73.71)

Weighted average number of shares used as the denominator

Particulars Year ended  
31st March, 2021

Year ended  
31st March, 2020

Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominator in 
calculating basic earnings per share (Nos. in lakhs)  369.20  369.20 
Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominator in 
calculating diluted earnings per share (Nos. in lakhs)  369.20  369.20 
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32. 	 Employee benefits plans
32.1 Defined Contribution plan
	 In respect of defined contribution plans, contributions are made to provident fund for employees at the rate of 12% 

of basic salary as per regulations. The contributions are made to registered provident fund administered by the 
Government. The obligation of the Company is limited to the amount contributed and it has no further contractual 
nor any constructive obligation. The expense recognised during the period towards defined contribution plan is 
₹ 54.40 lakhs (31st March, 2020 – ₹ 55.72 lakhs).

32.2 Defined benefit plans
	 The Company provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees 

who are in continuous service for a period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable 
on retirement/termination is the employee’s last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 
days salary multiplied for the number of years of service. The gratuity plan is a funded plan and the Company 
makes contributions to Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC). The Company does not fully fund the liability 
and maintains a target level of funding to be maintained over a period of time based on estimations of expected 
gratuity payments.

	 (a) 	 The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows:

Particulars Year ended  
31st March, 2021

Year ended  
31st March, 2020

Discount rate 6.31% 6.51%
Expected rate of salary increase 8.00% 8.00%

	 (b) 	 Amounts recognised in statement of profit and loss in respect of these defined benefits plans are 
as follows :

Particulars Year ended  
31st March, 2021

Year ended  
31st March, 2020

Service Cost
Current Service Cost  17.53  14.80 
Net Interest expense  0.08  0.23 
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in the 
statement of profit or loss (included under Contribution to 
Provident and Other Funds - Note 24)  17.61  15.03 

Particulars Year ended  
31st March, 2021

Year ended  
31st March, 2020

Remeasurement on the net defined benefit liability :
Actuarial (Gains)/losses arising from changes in financial  assumptions  1.00  3.30 
Actuarial (Gains)/losses arising from experience assumptions  (14.43)  (8.45)
Return on plan assets excluding amounts included in Net 
Interest expense/(income) on above  3.64  (3.15)
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other 
comprehensive income  (9.79)  (8.30)



Annual Report 2020-21 99

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2021 (Contd.)

Notice ● Board’s Report ● Financial Statements

	 	 The current service cost for the year is included in Note 24 - ‘Employee benefit expense’ in the Statement 
of Profit and Loss.

	 	 The remeasurement of the net defined liability is included in Other Comprehensive Income.

	 (c) 	 The amount included in the Balance Sheet arising from the Company’s obligation in respect of its 
defined benefit plans is as follows :

Particulars Year ended  
31st March, 2021

Year ended  
31st March, 2020

Present value of funded defined benefit obligation  67.05  59.23 
Fair value of plan assets  62.12  49.21 
Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation  4.93  10.02 

	 (d) 	 Change in Defined benefit obligation during the year

Particulars Year ended  
31st March, 2021

Year ended  
31st March, 2020

Opening defined benefit obligations  59.23  44.85 
Current service cost  17.53  14.80 
Interest Cost  3.72  3.26 
Transfer in Liability  -  3.92 
Actuarial (Gains)/losses arising from changes in financial  
assumptions  1.00  3.30 
Actuarial (Gains)/losses arising from experience assumptions  (14.43)  (8.45)
Benefits paid (including benefits paid directly by employer)  -  (2.45)
Closing defined benefit obligation  67.05  59.23 

	 (e) 	 Change in the fair value of the plan assets during the year :

Particulars Year ended  
31st March, 2021

Year ended  
31st March, 2020

Opening fair value of plan assets  49.22  36.25 
Interest income  3.64  3.03 
Return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net 
interest expense)  (3.64)  3.15 
Contribution from the employer  12.90  9.24 
Benefits paid  -  (2.45)
Closing fair value of plan assets  62.12  49.22 
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	 (f) 	 Summary of the Funded status of the defined benefit plans for the past five years:

Particulars 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
Defined Benefit Obligation  67.05  59.23  44.85  37.32  37.16 
Fair Value of Plan Assets  62.12  49.21  36.25  23.10  24.91 
(Surplus)/Deficit  4.93  10.02  8.60  14.22  12.25 

	 (g) 	 Summary of the Experience adjustments on the defined benefit plans for the past five years:

Particulars 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
Experience Adjustment on Plan 
Liabilities [(Gain)/Loss]  (13.42)  (5.15)  (1.44)  (5.48)  1.37 
Experience Adjustment on Plan 
Asset [(Gain)/Loss]  3.64  (3.15)  0.91  1.14  (0.11)

	 (h) 	 Sensitivity Analysis - Defined Benefit plan

Particulars Year ended  
31st March, 2021

Year ended  
31st March, 2020

Discount rate
Impact of 1% increase to the defined benefit obligation  (4.77)  (4.02)
Impact of 1% decrease to the defined benefit obligation  5.44  4.57 
Salary escalation rate
Impact of 1% increase to the defined benefit obligation  5.05  4.25 
Impact of 1% decrease to the defined benefit obligation  (4.52)  (3.82)

	 (i) 	 Expected cash flow profile of the benefits to be paid

Particulars
Expected 
Payout -  
Year 1

Expected 
Payout -  
Year 2

Expected  
Payout -  
Year 3

Expected  
Payout -  
Year 4

Expected  
Payout -  
Year 5

Expected  
Payout -  

Year 6 and 
above

Expected benefits pay out  4.52  5.14  6.56  5.91  10.20  30.21 

	 	 The weighted average duration of the payment of these cash flows for the year ended 31st March, 2021 is 
6.64 years.

	 	 Expected contribution to be made to plan assets in the Financial Year 2021-22 is ₹ 4.52 lakhs (31st March, 
2020: ₹ 12.24 lakhs)
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32.3  Other long-term employee benefits - Compensated Absences
	 The Compensated absences cover the Company’s liability for earned leave and sick leave

	 (a) 	 Funded status of obligation towards compensated absences and the charge in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss

Particulars Year ended  
31st March, 2021

Year ended  
31st March, 2020

Funded Status
Present value of obligation  59.26  76.66 
Fair Value of Plan Assets  -  - 
(Surplus) / Deficit  59.26  76.66 
Charge in the Statement of Profit and Loss 37.63 32.16

33. 	 Fair Values
	 The Management assessed that trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, other 

financial assets, short term borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabilities approximate their carrying 
amounts largely due to the short-term maturities or interest bearing nature of these instruments. The fair value 
of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a 
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

	 Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company’s financial 
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that are reasonable approximations of fair values:

	 (i) 	 Financial instruments by category

Particulars
Carrying value

As at 31st 
March, 2021

As at 31st 
March, 2020

Financial assets 
At amortised cost
Trade receivables  6,607.05  3,471.75 
Cash and cash equivalents  51.17  66.77 
Other bank balances  131.82  108.99 
Other financial assets  5,869.52  7,109.44 
Total financial assets  12,659.56  10,756.95 

Financial liabilities 
At amortised cost
Borrowings  4,545.46  5,731.62 
Trade payables  8,984.26  6,782.93 
Other financial liabilities  954.27  333.54 
Total financial liabilities  14,483.99  12,848.09 
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	 (ii) 	 Fair value hierarchy
	 	 This section explains the judgments and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial 

instruments that are measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial 
statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the 
Company has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting 
standard. An explanation of each level follows underneath the table.

	 	 Assets and liabilities which are measured at amortised cost for which fair values are disclosed

As at 31st March, 2021 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Trade receivables  -  -  6,607.05  6,607.05 
Cash and cash equivalents  -  -  51.17  51.17 
Other bank balances  -  -  131.82  131.82 
Other financial assets  -  -  5,869.52  5,869.52 
Total financial assets  -  -  12,659.56  12,659.56 

Financial liabilities
Borrowings  -  -  4,545.46  4,545.46 
Trade payables  -  -  8,984.26  8,984.26 
Other financial liabilities  -  -  954.27  954.27 
Total financial liabilities  -  -  14,483.99  14,483.99 

As at 31st March, 2020 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Trade receivables  -  -  3,471.75  3,471.75 
Cash and cash equivalents  -  -  66.77  66.77 
Other bank balances  -  -  108.99  108.99 
Other financial assets  -  -  7,109.44  7,109.44 
Total financial assets  -  -  10,756.95  10,756.95 

Financial liabilities
Borrowings  -  -  5,731.62  5,731.62 
Trade payables  -  -  6,782.93  6,782.93 
Other financial liabilities  -  -  333.54  333.54 
Total financial liabilities  -  -  12,848.09  12,848.09 

	 	 All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are 
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is 
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
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	 	 Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

	 	 Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

	 	 Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement is unobservable

34. 	 Financial Risk Management
A. 	 Credit risk
	 Credit risk is the risk arising from credit exposure to customers, cash and cash equivalents held with banks and 

current and non-current held-to maturity financial assets.

	 (i) 	 Credit risk Management
	 	 The credit risk to the Company arises from two sources:

	 	 (a) 	 Customers, who default on their contractual obligations, thus resulting in financial loss to the Company

	 	 (b) 	 Non certification by the customers, either in part or in full, the works billed as per the contract, being 
non claimable cost as per the terms of the contract with the customer.

		  (a) 	 Customers
	 	 	 The Company evaluates the credentials of a customer at a very early stage of the bid. The Company 

has adopted a policy of 3 tier verification before participating for any bid. The first step of such 
verification includes verification of customer credentials. The Company, as part of verification of the 
customer credentials,ensures the compliance with the following criterion, 

	 	 	 (i) 	 Customer’s financial health by examining the audited financial statements

	 	 	 (ii) 	 Whether the Customer has achieved the financial closure for the work for which the Company 
is bidding

	 	 	 (iii) 	 Brand and market reputation of the customer 

	 	 	 (iv) 	 Details of other contractors working with the customer

	 	 	 (v) 	 Where the customer is Public Sector Undertaking, sanction and availability of adequate financial 
resources for the proposed work.

	 	 	 The Company makes provision on it’s financial assets, on every reporting period, as per Expected 
Credit Loss Method. The provision is made separately for each financial assets of each business line. 
The percentage at which the provision is made,is determined on the basis of historical experience of 
such provisions,modified to the current and prospective business and customer profile.

	 	 	 Trade receivables consist of large number of customers, spread across diverse industries and 
geographical areas. Majority of the customers of the Company comprise of Public Sector Undertakings, 
with whom the Company does not perceive any default risk, however there would be a credit risk 
on account of delays in payments. Additionally the Company has significant revenue contracts with 
Holding Company, Tata Projects Limited, the credit risk for these transactions has been considered 
minimal. As regards the customers from private sector, The Company carries out financial evaluation 
on regular basis and provides for any amount perceived as non realisable,in the books of accounts.
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		  (b) 	 Non certification of works billed 
	 	 	 The costs incurred on projects are regularly monitored through the Project budgets. Costs which 

are incurred beyond the agreed terms and conditions of the contract, would be claimed from the 
customer, based on the actual works performed. The realisability of such claims is reviewed by the 
Management on a periodic basis and the costs, which are identified as non tenable or costs beyond 
the collectible amounts would be provided in the books of accounts.

	 (ii) 	 Provision for Expected Credit Loss
	 	 Refer Note 5.1 of the Financial Statements

B. 	 Liquidity risk
	 The Company being an EPC contractor, has a constant liquidity pressures to meet the project requirements. 

These requirements are met by a balanced mix of borrowings and project cash flows. Cash flow forecast is 
made for all projects on monthly basis and the same are tracked for actual performance on daily basis. Shortfall 
in cash flows are matched through short term borrowings and other strategic financing means. The daily project 
requirements are met by allocating the daily aggregated cash flows among the projects. The Company has 
established practice of prioritising the site level payments and regulatory payments above other payment 
requirements.

	 (i) 	 Financing arrangements
	 	 The Company had access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of the reporting period:

Particulars Year ended  
31st March, 2021

Year ended  
31st March, 2020

Secured Borrowings:
Floating rate
Expiring within one year (bank overdraft and working capital 
demand loan)  472.21 3.91

	 (ii) 	 Maturities of financial liabilities
		  The table below provides Company financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their 

contractual maturities for all non-derivative financial liabilities

Particulars Less than 1 
year 1-2 years 2-4 years Total

Trade payables  8,984.26  -  -  8,984.26 
Lease liabilities  23.33  25.77  27.95  77.05 
Other financial liabilities  954.27  -  -  954.27 

C. 	 Market risk
	 (i) 	 Foreign currency risk
	 	 The Company operates internationally and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign 

currency transactions, Primarily with respect to USD (United States Dollars), AED (United Arab Emirates 
Dirham) and KWD (Kuwaiti Dinar).



Annual Report 2020-21 105

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2021 (Contd.)

Notice ● Board’s Report ● Financial Statements

		  (a) 	 Foreign currency risk exposure
	 	 	 The carrying amounts of the Company’s foreign currency denominated monetary assets and 

monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Particulars
Year ended  

31st March, 2021  
(₹ in Lakhs)

Year ended  
31st March, 2020  

(₹ in Lakhs)
USD KWD USD AED KWD

Cash and Cash equivalents  -  0.21  -  -  0.26 
Trade Receivables  50.44  -  -  615.19  - 
Other Financial Assets  -  -  -  5.69  - 
Trade Payables  -  -  (266.38)  (39.02)  - 
Net Assets /(Liabilities)  50.44  0.21  (266.38)  581.86  0.26 

		  (b) 	 Foreign Currency sensitivity analysis
	 	 	 The above exposures when subjected to a sensitivity of 10% have the following impact:

Particulars  Currency 

 Impact on profit after tax 
with increase in  

rate by 10%* 

 Impact on profit after tax 
with decrease in  

rate by 10%* 
 As at  

31st March, 
2021 

 As at  
31st March, 

2020 

 As at  
31st March, 

2021 

 As at  
31st March, 

2020 
United Arab Emirates  AED  -  42.00  -  (42.00)
US Dollars  USD  3.64  19.23  (3.64)  (19.23)
Kuwait Dinar  KWD  0.01  0.02  (0.01)  (0.02)

		  (c) 	 Forward Foreign Exchange contracts

			   The following table details the Company’s liquidity analysis for its derivative financial instruments.

Particulars Less than 
1 year

1-2 
years

2-4 
years

Total

31st March 2021
Foreign exchange forward contracts (Payable)  -  -  -  - 
Foreign exchange forward contracts (Receivable)  -  -  -  - 
31st March 2020
Foreign exchange forward contracts (Payable) 266.38  -  -  266.38 
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	 (ii) 	 Interest rate risk
		  (a) 	 Interest rate risk exposure
			   The exposure of the Company’s borrowing to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period 

is as follows:

Particulars 31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
Variable rate borrowings  4,920.47  5,408.35 
Total Borrowings  4,920.47  5,408.35 

		  (b) 	 Sensitivity
			   Profit or loss is sensitive to higher/lower interest expense from borrowings as a result of changes in 

interest rates.

Particulars
Impact on Loss after tax
As at  

31st March, 2021
As at  

31st March, 2020
Interest rates-increase by 50 basis points 19.20 17.75
Interest rates-decrease by 50 basis points (19.20) (17.75)

35.	 Capital Management
	 The Company’s business model is working capital centric. The Company manages its working capital needs 

and long-term capital expenditure, through a balanced mix of capital (including retained earnings) and short-
term debt.

	 The capital structure of the Company comprises of net debt (borrowings reduced by cash and bank balances) 
and equity.

	 The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.

	 The Company reviews its capital requirements on an annual basis, in the form of Annual Operating Plan (AOP). 
The AOP of the Company aggregates the capital required for execution of projects identified and the financing 
mechanism of such requirements is determined as part of AOP. 

	 The Company’s debt to adjusted capital ratio at the end of the reporting period was as follows:

Particulars 31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
Total liabilities  5,295.46  5,731.62 
Less : Cash and Cash equivalents  51.17  66.77 
Adjusted net debt  5,244.29  5,664.85 
Total equity  11.47  515.91 
Adjusted net debt to adjusted equity ratio  457.33  10.98 
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36. 	 Operating Lease Arrangements

Particulars Year ended  
31st March, 2021

Year ended   
31st March, 2020

Rental expense relating to operating leases  39.02  30.90 

37. 	 Segment information
	 The Company operates in only one business segment viz. Supply of Equipment, steel structure and site services 

for mechanical works. Therefore, segment-wise reporting under Ind AS 108 is not applicable.

Breakup of Revenue from Operations Year ended  
31st March, 2021

Year ended   
31st March, 2020

Income from sale of goods  4,336.50  5,094.86 
Income from contracts  10,555.78  11,148.39 
Other operating revenues  135.93  56.96 
Total  15,028.21  16,300.21 

Information about geographical areas Year ended  
31st March, 2021

Year ended   
31st March, 2020

Revenues
India  14,934.52  16,045.86 
Outside India  93.69  254.35 
Total  15,028.21  16,300.21 

Non-current assets
India  2,273.52  2,421.50 
Total

	 Significant clients
	 Two customers individually accounted for more than 10% of the revenues in the year ended 31st March, 2021 

(31st March, 2020: Four clients individually accounted for more than 10% of the revenues).
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38. 	� Disclosure in accordance with Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 
2006:

	 According to information available with the Management, on the basis of intimation received from suppliers 
regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act), 
the Company has the following amounts due to micro and small enterprises under the said Act:

	 Disclosure under Section of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

Particulars Year ended  
31st March, 2021

Year ended   
31st March, 2020

i Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the 
end of the accounting year  374.03  568.20 

ii Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the 
end of the accounting year  46.37 14.53

iii The amount of interest paid along with the amounts of the 
payment made to supplier beyond the appointed day  -     -   

iv The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay 
in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the 
appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest 
specified under the MSMED Act  -     -   

v The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the 
end of the accounting year  73.27  26.90

vi The amount of further interest due and payable even in the 
succeeding year, until such date when the interest dues as 
above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose 
of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23  73.27  26.90 

# amounts unpaid to micro and small enterprises on account of retention money has not been considered for 
the purpose of interest calculations.

	 Dues to the Micro and small enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified 
on the basis of information collected by the Management.

39. 	� The Company was registered with the Board for Industrial and Financial Reconstruction (BIFR) as a sick 
Company and BIFR, vide its order dated December 18, 2017, had sanctioned the rehabilitation scheme. With 
effect from 1st December, 2016 the Ministry of Finance, Government of India notified the SICA Repeal Act, 
2003 by virtue of which BIFR stood dissolved and all appeals, references, inquiries and proceedings pending 
before BIFR stand abated except for the Schemes already sanctioned. Whereas, the Company had an option 
to refer the case to National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), the Management, considering the current financial 
performance and order booking, had decided not to pursue the matter with NCLT.
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40. 	 Legal and professional fees include Auditors’ remuneration as below

Nature of Services Year ended  
31st March, 2021

Year ended  
31st March, 2020

Audit fees  12.30  12.30 
Tax Audit fees  1.00  1.00 
Reimbursement of expenses  0.19  0.80 
Total  13.49  14.10 

41. 	 Corporate social responsibility expenditure

Particulars Year ended  
31st March, 2021

Year ended  
31st March, 2020

Contribution to Foundation for Academic Excellence & Access 
(FAEA)  7.70  - 
Contribution to PM CARES Fund  0.20  - 

Amount required to be spent as per Section 135 of the Act 7.86  - 
Amount spent during the year on
(i) 	 Construction/acquisition of an asset  -  - 
(ii) 	 On purposes other than (i) above  7.90  - 

	 Details of excess CSR expenditure under Section 135(5) of the Act

Balance excess spent 
as at 1st April 2020

Amount required to be 
spent during the year

Amount spent during 
the year

Balance excess spent 
as at 31st March 2021

 -  7.86  7.90  0.04

42. 	� Capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the reporting period but not recognised as liabilities is - ₹ Nil 
(31st March, 2020 - ₹ 37.65 lakhs).

43. 	 Contingent liabilities

Particulars As at 
 31st March, 2021

As at  
31st March, 2020

Contingent liabilities
Claim against the Company not acknowledged as debts
Matters under dispute:
	 (i) 	 Sales Tax Matters/ Value Added Tax Matters  44.32  44.32 
	 (ii)	 Third party claims from disputes relating to contracts  66.32  66.32 

 110.64  110.64 
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44. 	 Leases

Particulars As at 
 31st March, 2021

Balance as at 1st April, 2020  98.17 
Finance cost accrued during the year  8.87 
Payment of lease liabilities
Balance as on 31st March 2021  77.05 

Current and Non Current Classification

Particulars As at 
 31st March, 2021

Current  29.99 
Non current Lease Liability  47.06 

Contractual maturities of lease liabilities at undiscounted values

Particulars As at 
 31st March, 2021

Within one year  29.99 
Later than one year but not later than five years  60.27 
Later than five years  - 

45. 	� COVID-19 has contributed to a significant decline in economic activities and volatility in the businesses. Post 
announcement by WHO as a global pandemic, numerous steps have been taken by the Government and 
Companies to contain the spread of the virus. The extent to which the business/operations of the Company 
will be impacted will depend on future developments which are highly uncertain. Whilst the Company has a 
committed order book of ` 26,099.14 lakhs as at 31st March 2021, there is considerable uncertainty regarding 
the extent that COVID-19 will affect the business and operations of the Company. Further, the Company has 
carried out an assessment of “going concern”, the recoverability and carry value of assets, etc. based on 
certain assumptions viz., cumulative knowledge and understanding of the business, current indications of future 
economic conditions, have made adjustments wherever necessary. However, the actual impact may be different 
from that estimated as at the date of approval of the financial statements.

46.	� The Company during the year ended 31st March 2021 has incurred a net loss of ` 567.88 lakhs and as at 
31st March 2021 the accumulated losses of the Company (including other comprehensive income) stood at  
` 4,714.60 lakhs. Consequently, the networth came down to ` 11.47 lakhs as on 31st March 2021. On account 
of the significant operating loss during the year and other indicators, the Management including the Board of 
Directors of the Company, have performed an assessment on their ability to continue as a going concern. The 
Board of Directors based on their review of the approved business plan and the future cash flow projections 
prepared for the next twelve months from the date of the financial statements has assessed that it would be able 
to meet its cash flow requirements for the next twelve months from the date of financial statements considering 
the following reasons

	 a) 	 The Company has incurred cash loss during the year ended 31st March 2021 mainly on account of the 
certain projects turning onerous due to increase in costs to complete them and on account of the impact 
on the business operations during the current year attributable to Covid-19.
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	 b) 	 The Company expects a growth in the business, improvements in the operating margins and improvement 
in the Cash flows in the future by focusing on the following:

	 	 i. 	 The Company has a pending order book for around ` 26,099.14 lakhs as at 31st March 2021. 
Additionally, the Company is hopeful of receiving some orders for which it has already submitted 
their bids.

	 	 ii. 	 The Company is in the process of bidding for multiple projects for Tata Projects Limited (‘TPL’), 
Holding Company and it is hopeful of receiving orders from TPL in the coming quarters based on 
competitive bidding and Arm’s Length Pricing norms.

	 	 iii. 	 The Company plans to successfully pursue for customer claims in the coming quarters, which would 
significantly improve their operating margins as well as their cash flows.

	 	 iv. 	 Some of the major projects of the Company are in the final stages of completion and the Company 
plans to complete the pending milestones for these projects in the next quarter. This would reduce 
the unbilled revenue amount which in turn would improve the working capital/Cash flow situation of 
the Company.

	 	 v. 	 The Company has registered itself as a Medium Enterprise as per the requirements of the Micro, 
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. This would significantly improve the working 
capital situation/Cash flow situation of the Company as the customers would be obligated to make 
the payment to the Company within the stipulated timelines under the Act.

	 	 vi. 	 The Company is also in the process of reviewing its borrowing facilities and currently renegotiating 
with lenders for lower interest rates. The Company through this exercise is trying to reduce their 
finance cost thereby improving the overall margins.

	 c) 	 As at 31st March 2021 there are three Directors nominated by TPL on the Board of Company, which 
demonstrates continuous operational and business support.

	 	 Based on the assessment performed above, Management has prepared these financial statements on a 
going concern basis.

47.	� Previous year’s figures have been regrouped and restated wherever necessary to make their classification 
comparable with that of the current year.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
FRN: 304026E/ E-300009

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sunit Kumar Basu
Partner
Membership No. 55000
Place: Hyderabad

Vinayak K. Deshpande 
Chairman
DIN:00036827
Place: Pune

Nalin M. Shah
Director
DIN:00882723
Place: Mumbai

Saket Mathur
Manager 
Place: Hyderabad

S. Balaji
Chief Financial Officer
Place: Hyderabad

Deepak Tibrewal
Company Secretary
Place: Hyderabad

Date: 21 April 2021 Date: 21 April 2021
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ARTSON ENGINEERING LIMITED
CIN: L27290MH1978PLC020644

(A Subsidiary of Tata Projects Limited)
Registered office: 2nd Floor, One Boulevard, Lake Boulevard Road, Hiranandani Business Park, Powai, Mumbai – 400076, Maharashtra

Email: investors@artson.net; Website: www.artson.net

SHAREHOLDERS DETAILS UPDATION FORM
To
Link Intime (India) Private Limited,
(Unit: Artson Engineering Limited)
C 101, 247 Park, L B S Marg, Vikhroli West, Mumbai - 400083, Maharashtra
Email ID: rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in

I /we hereby request you to record/ update the following details against my/ our folio no.:

Name of the Sole/First named shareholder :
Folio No. :
Full Address (with pin code) :
CIN / Registration number: *
(applicable to corporate shareholders)

:

E-mail Id (to be registered) :
PAN no. *
(of the sole/ first named shareholder)

:

Phone / Mobile number :

*self-attested copy of the document enclosed

Bank Details:

IFSC :
MICR :
Bank A/c type :
Bank Account No.@ :
Name of the Bank :
Name of the Branch :
Bank Branch Address :

@ A blank cancelled cheque is enclosed to enable verification of bank details

I/ We hereby declare that the particulars given above are correct and complete. If the transaction is delayed because 
of incomplete information, I / we would not hold the Company / RTA responsible. I /We undertake to inform any 
subsequent changes in the above particulars as and when the changes take place. I / We understand that the above 
details shall be maintained till I / we hold the securities under the above mentioned Folio No. / Beneficiary account.

Place:	 ………………………………………...

Date:	 Signature of Sole/ First Shareholder
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DEMATERIALIZATION OF SHARES

Introduction:
In order to mitigate the risks associated with share trading in paper format, concept of dematerialization was introduced 
in Indian Financial Market. Dematerialization (Demat) in short is the process through which an investor’s physical 
share certificate gets converted to electronic format which is maintained in an account with the Depository Participant 
(DP). The ownership thereof is entered into and retained in a fungible form on a Depository by way of electronic 
balances. The name of the Shareholder is registered as a Beneficial Owner.

Depository
Depository is the body which is responsible for storing and maintaining investor’s securities in demat or electronic 
format. In India there are two depositories i.e. NSDL and CDSL.

Advantages of Demat
Dealing in demat format is beneficial for investors, brokers and Companies alike. It reduces the risk of holding shares 
in physical format from investor’s perspective. From share issuing Company’s perspective, issuance in demat format 
reduces the cost of new issue as papers are not involved. Efficiency and timeliness of the issue is also maintained 
while Companies deal in demat form.

The benefits of conversion of shares in to demat form to the common investor are listed herein below:

•	 No stamp duty payable on transfer of shares.

•	 Safer and quicker process of transfer/ trading of shares.

•	 Faster settlement cycle.

•	 Faster disbursement of non-cash corporate benefits like rights, bonus etc.

•	 Demat form reduces the risk of bad deliveries.

•	 Time and money is saved as you are not dealing in paper now. You need not go to the notary, broker for taking 
delivery or submitting the share certificate.

•	 Liquidity is very high in case of demat format as whole process in automated.

•	 All the benefits of corporate action like bonus, stock split, rights etc. are managed through the depository leading 
to elimination of transit losses.

•	 Interest on loan against demat shares are less as compared to physical shares.

•	 One needs to pay less brokerage in case of demat shares.

•	 Periodic status reports and information available on internet thereby facilitating convenience in monitoring 
shareholding in all the Companies.
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Procedure to be followed for dematerialization of shares:
•	 The Shareholder has to fill up a Demat Request Form (DRF) and has to submit to the Depository Participant 

(DP) the DRF as well as the defaced share certificate;

•	 The concerned DP will verify the details and if found in order, it will generate a Demat Request Number (DRN) 
and intimate the Depository and Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (RTA) through e-system. Simultaneous to 
this, the DP will send the DRF and share certificate to RTA;

•	 RTA will verify the details of the electronic request as well as those mentioned in the DRF and Share Certificates 
with the records maintained by it.

When demat request is found valid in all respects:
•	 RTA will update the Register of Members and then validate the request; it will then electronically confirm the 

DRN to Depository and DP;

•	 The Depository will credit the DP’s account and consequently, the DP will update the investor’s demat account 
and inform the investor accordingly.

When demat request is found invalid for any reasons:
•	 RTA will electronically reject the DRN and intimate the same with reasons of rejection to the Depository and DP. 

The Depository and the DP will cancel the DRN from its system, respectively;

•	 RTA will then return the DRF and Share Certificates to the DP with an objection memo stating the grounds of 
objection/ rejection.

Legal Requirement
Pursuant to SEBI notification no. SEBI/LAD-NRO/GN/2018/24 dated 8th June 2018 and Circular no. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/
RTAMB/CIR/P/2020/166 dated 7th September 2020 requests for effecting transfer of securities (except in case of 
transmission and transposition of securities) held in physical mode has been discontinued w.e.f. 31st March 2019, 
and re-lodgement, if any as the case may be, were also permitted only up to 31st March 2021. Therefore, holders of 
the Company’s equity shares in physical form may consider dematerializing their holdings. 

*****
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